Eliot Select Board Agenda
Thursday March 28, 2024, 4PM Town Hall
Meeting Room and use of the OWL for Remote via ZOOM

Call to order

Roll Call

COow

mm

J.

Pledge of Allegiance
Public Comments
Approval of Minutes. January 25, 2024
Public Hearings
1. Adult Cannabis Cultivation, Judley LLC, Caregiver Hughes Pope
Reports Town Manager
Appointments/Resignations
1.Jennifer Stavros Aging in Place Ad-hoc Committee term ending June 30, 2024
New Business
1.Request to expend $5,949.30 Sewer Reserve, (spare pump)
2.Fuel Assistance Fund Donation
3.Request to Donate Land 1 lan Lane
4.Spinney Creek Annual Tide Gate Schedule
5.Request for Cruiser Purchase, Chief Moya

. Old Business

1.Flood Plain Ordinance Chapter 1 General Provisions, Chapter 25 Flood Plain
2. Growth Permit Allocation, calendar year 2025
2.Reserve Account Allocations Warrant Article
3.Charter Revision Update
4, FY 2023 Final Audit

Public Approval of Warrants

Payroll Warrant(s)
#89 $52,674.66
#91 $49,054.32

AP Warrant
#90 $1,033,758.19
#92 $83,184.41

Adjourn

Topic: Eliot Select Board

Time: Mar 28, 2024 04:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Mesting
hitbs:flusdéweb.zoom.usfif851387757332pwd=hFym3fl5UsUdhEMO5al.PRklgad3610.1

Meeting |D: 851 3877 5733

Passcode: 359256

One tap mobile
+13126266799,,861387757334,,,,*359255# US (Chicago)
+16465588656,,85138775733#,,,,*369255# US (New York)
Dial by your focation

« +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago}

+ +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

Meeting ID: 851 3877 5733

Passcode: 359255

Find your local number: hitps://usO6web.zoom.us/u/kgdxQBWhe



O~ R wN R

WO W WwwwWwWwWwMNMNNNNNNRNNDR R R B B 1 s
53&3&900-403(;1.&wmr—xowooumm-hwm:—aomoawmm.n.wmn—\ow

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM
Town Hall/Hybrid

Quorum noted

5:30 PM: Meeting called to order by Chairperson Donhauser.

Roll Call: Mr. Donhauser, Mr. Widi, Ms. Dow, Mr. Shapleigh, and Mr. Trott.

A. Pledge of Allegiance recited

B.

C.

Public Comment: None

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)

5:31 PM Motion by Mr. Donhauser, second by Mr. Widi, to approve the minutes of

b
K
F.
G

September 23, 2023, as written.
Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes

Mr, Widi - Yes

Ms. Dow — Yes

Mr. Shapleigh — Yes

Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

Public Hearing: None

- Reports: None

Appointments/Resignations: None

New Business:

5:33PM 1. Discussion Depot Road and HL, Dow Highway (Dutton)

Randy Dutton from Gorrill-Palmer was present on Zoom, as well as Mr.,
Brubaker, for this item.

Mr. Dutton said that this a brief summary of the intersection evaluation we just
completed on the Route 236/Depot Road/ Cedar Road intersection. He shared his
sereen for the presentation, The team for this study included the Town of Eliot,
SMPDC, Maine DOT, and us. The evaluations we completed were the safety
review, level of service, queue, and benefit/cost assessment. The purpose was to



44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85

3:39 PM

5:41 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

review and evaluate potential alternatives for the intersection previously identified
in 2022. One was a ‘no-build’ that would maintain the existing configuration, the
‘modified traffic circle’ that included adding Cedar Road to the signal, or the
‘round-about’ that also included adding Cedar Road to the intersection signal.
Efforts completed were capacity analysis for 2023/2033/2043 (level of service &
queue), safety review (not high crash location), opinion of cost, and benefit/cost
assessment (need minimum of 1 or higher). The net benefit cost for this
evaluation was -0.11 for reconfigured signal and -0.07 for the round-about. The
recommendation that came out of this study was to maintain the existing
geometry and some mitigation to be done. Mitigation would include installing
Adaptive Traffic Control (ATC); upgrading traffic signal heads with louvered
backplates and retroreflective boarders; ADA landings, enhancement of
pedestrian crossing with the school right there, upgrade to countdown pedestrian
crossing heads, and emergency pre-emption to relicve intersection congestion.
That’s really the evaluation in a nutshell.

Mr. Sullivan asked if there is an ability for Gorrill-Palmer to do a cost analysis of
the minor upgrade recommendations.

M. Dutton said that we can absolutely do that. T will coordinate that with Mr,
Brubaker.

Mr. Trott asked if Cedar Road was considered in the minor upgrades,

Mr. Dutton said that these are more upgrades to the traffic signal and not really to
Cedar Road. This intersection is not considered a high crash location. It had only
four crashes for the three years from 2020-2022. Part of the reason that the
modified and round-about intersections had such low cost/benefit ratios is because
the intersection is actually operating safer than what’s predicted, even though it’s
a little dysfunctional and unique.

Mr. Donhauser asked if they addressed students crossing that intersection in some
way.

Mr. Dutton said that, as part of the recommendations, we are suggesting
additional accommodations for students crossing. It would include improvements
to the pedestrian crossings, such as landings that would give students a safe place
to stand while they wait to cross, enhancement of the pedestrian crossing
(different or enhanced striping), upgrade countdowns to pedestrian heads that
gives students a better indication of how long they have to cross and when it’s
safe to cross.



86
87
88
89
20
91
92
a3
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128

5:43 PM_

5:45 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Mr. Donhauser asked who would pay for the costs of construction, as Route 236
is a State-owned road.

Mr. Dutton said that there are several avenues to receive funds. You could
apptoach the DOT and they could partially pay for some of the improvements,
depending on what the improvements were and depending on which avenue you
chose, which funding source you chose. It could be a BPI (Business Partnership
Initiative), a PP, which is basically an initiative — a downtown study initiative,
There is also a VPI (Village Partnership Initiative). They are all very similar and
all include contributions from the Maine DOT.

Mr. Sullivan said that, because of the score, it would be hard. I think Mr. Dutton
is trying to be nice, that the Town would probably pay for this.

Mr. Dutton agreed.

Ms. Dow asked if there is currently a crosswalk there.

Mr. Dutton said yes. , R

~

Ms. Dow said that I was just there this morning and didn’t notice it.
Mr. Dutton said that that’s part of the problem. It doesn’t stand out.

Ms. Dow said that it seems that would be important to make them stand out next
to the school ‘and a very valid thing to put our energy into.

Ms. Lemire said that a plus, when the lights are goinig to slow the traffic down
when kids are going to and from school, people slow down.

Mir. Sullivan said that one of the challenges is that the Maine DOT limits the time
period you can have those flashing lights working; that activities that get out later
you can’t have them blinking for those events under DOPT rules. It’s really
unfortunate that we don’t have more control to make it fit the school schedule.

Ms. Dow moved, second by Mr. Trott, that the Eliot Select Board
recommend no substantial change be made to the Town of Eliot Depot Road
and Harold L. Dow Highway intersection as the preferred design and inform
the Maine Department of Transportation of the stated preference.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser - Yes



129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
158
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171

5:47TPM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Mr. Widi — Yes
Ms. Dow — Yes
Mr, Shapleigh — Yes
Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.
2. Tri-State Trek ALS June 23, 2024 request for approval

Mr. Sullivan said that we have a number of similar request during the year for
bike group to come through, usually fundraisers. In this case, River Road will be
used and stops at a park just over the border in South Berwick. The Police and
Fire Departments have no concerns, The group has provided us with an insurance
rider and a map is in your packets.

M. Shapleigh said that it's the William Bray Park; that he died of ALS,

Mr. Trott moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Eliot Select Board allow
the June 23, 2024 ALS Tri-State Trek to use the streets, as described, for this
annual regional fundraiser and thank them for their efforts,

Roll Call Vote:
Mr. Donhauser — Yes

Mr. Widi - Yes
Ms. Dow — Yes

+ Mr. Shapleigh — Yes
" Mr, Trott - Yes

o,

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

H. (1d Business:

5:49 PM

1. Town Manager Annual Evaluation

Mr. Donhauser said that I have not quite completed the evaluation compilation the
SB has been working on so I would like to table it until the next meeting,

It was the consensus of the Select Board to table this agenda item to the next
regular mecting.



172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214

5:50 PM

5:55PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

2. Charter Revision Discussion

Mr. Widi discussed the suggestions he made, keeping most of them on the minor
side. T got.thins on paper for the SB’s review so we could decide whether to go
forward with a charter commission, do nothing, or determine these are minor
changes to put before the voters.

Mr. Trott also had recommendations, as well. ‘The biggest one is in Article 3
(under Town Manager job description/qualifications). My recommendation: he or
she should possess the following recommended qualifications. I don’t want to say
‘minimum’ because throughout we have encouraged Mr. Sullivan to train people
within and move up. We should add language to those qualifications to allow
leeway for someone who has been in this Town and working their way up, such as
the TownClerk, as an example. I have down 27 years as a municipal employee in
other towns and worked for some really great town managers, most of whom
came up through the ranks, being supporied with training by the towns they were
in, and all started at the bottom of the proverbial ladder. T will put my suggestions
in writing. Regarding Article 6.3, I’d like to see the Budget Committee added. All
I'm looking to add is a description for them — ‘the Budget Committee shall have
input to development of financial policies in matters of investment or knowledge
related to their budget.” I would like to see the Budget Committee become more
budget/finance committee than just a budget committee. Not that they will set the
policies but involved with developing policies. The other thing I would like to add
to the Budget Committee is ‘the budget committee, as elected officials, shall
receive compensation set forth by the Town Manager and approved by the Select
Board.” We have other unelected committees that do receive compensation and
these people put a lot of time in. I think we need to start recognizing the amount
of time our committees put in,

Mr. (Gene) Wypyski, Creek Crossing, also member of the Budget Committee,
said that what I would like you to note in your recommendation is that, on today’s
Charter, the Budget Committee is in service to the legislative body, the citizenry.
Should we take on additional responsibilities in terms of policy, etc., wouldn’t the
result of those recommendations be to you (SB), which is different than what the
Budget Committee does today. We don’t make recommendations to you at all.

Mr. Trott said that my thought, as our Finance Manager is looking at doing things,
your involvement would be so you could report back to the legislative body and
have knowledge of where we’re going and the things that are being done, 1 know
the wording needs to be worked on.

Mr. Wypyski said that my thought is simply because everything that we do is to
the legislative body, you are going to substantially change the nature of the



215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257

5:57 PM

5:58 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Budget Committee if, now, we’re making recommendations or analyses that
wouldn’t necessarily benefit the legislative body.

Mr. Trott said that I'm not asking you to make policies; be involved in
development so you, as the budget people, can have maybe recommendations and
input to the finance director people.

Mr. Wypyski said that that’s my point. Right now, the Charter says that we make
those recommendations to the legislative body and that’s our reason for existence.

Mr. Wypyski said that all I’'m suggesting is that, if we were to take on new
responsibilities, which I think is a good thing, might we get caught up in the
Charter issue of who we work for and still effect good stuff for the people.

M. Trott said that this is why I brought it to you at your meeting last week, to
look at the verbiage and see what your thoughts were. This is not something that
would be done right away.

Mr. Wypyski said that I will put it on our next agenda for discussion.

Mr. Trott said that, until we get the language down, we won’t know if this would
be a significant change to the Charter or a revision through our legal counsel.

M. Sullivan said that I think we can craft some language that would bifurcate
those respongibilities, the Budget Committee answering on budgetary items and
making recommendations to the legislative body and also making
recommendations or reviewing changes in policy - financial investment, bonding
—~just as a review mechanism and recommended back to the SB. I think the SB is
open to getting recommendations from others about things like bonding, about our
investment policies. So, I think there are ways that the language can be crafted,
working with Mr. Trott and Mr. Wypyski to make sure everyone understands the
input. I will then run it by counsel to find out if it would be a change or a revision.
It is very helpful to hear these different points of view. I don’t think anyone
disagrees to having people involved in areas that they understand; that it will
benefit the Town. The Sb determines the threshold of revision versus significant
change and [ would strongly urge you to do it on advice of counsel. If it isn’t a
material change to the role that the effective Charter article has on the Town or
governance of the Town, then it’s considered a revision and has to go before the
voters, anyway, that it should have plenty of discussion, We bring it up now
because, if there is going to be language, we want to get it sometime in February
somewhat nailed down so there can be discussion in March and it does, or does
not, go on a ballot in April.



258

259
260
261
262
263
264
265

266

267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299

0:01 PM

-

e

v LE s

6:08 PM

6:12 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Mr. Widi reviewed the changes lie suggested:

» 2.10 Remove “at least twice a month”, We should be meeting to
accomplish a task, not just to meet. In November, our second meeting
always falls on Thanksgiving.

» 2.13 Change language to “1 year or the same month the article was voted
on the prior year” because not every approval date aligns with exactly one
year.

2.15 Authentication of recording of ordinances — add “reference to

website”. : . .

2.16 Codification of ordinances. Delete ‘within three years after adoption

of Charter”, We are well beyond three years.

3.1 Paragraph 6 — clean up language and move to Paragraph 5.

3.2A, B., B.8,, B.11 Appointment process of Town Manager (TM) (first

time used) — need to shorten the time taken for this process. Not good for

the Town and expensive. Concern mentioned for legal notice

" requirements. Positive comments about the process, itself, once started.
Other factors impacted time to complete.

YV WV Vv

Mr. Sullivan commented, using experience with other charters, that there seemed
to be a sense that almost everything is overprescribed and doesn’t give elected
officials the ability to adapt to the situation. He gave two examples that could
cause issues. One regarding the language that a full majority of SB had to vote for
or against the TM hire (use seated members) and if a TM can’t be selected the
language says you have to re-start the process (not using the foundation already
created). :

Mr. Widi said the last suggestion was adding a section to finding a TM — “The SB
may consider a candidate who is currently employed by the Town of Eliot without
calling a search committee. That candidate must be qualified according to §3.1, In
this situation a public interview must be performed in addition to an optional
executive session interview.” That is to encourage continuity. I understand the *3-
bid rule’ mindset; that you want to have the best of the best, There is something to
be said that somebody can feel they can move up in the organization.

Mr. Trott said that in the Charter the search committee must do all interviews in
executive session (3.2.B.8). Not saying that we can’t change it. He also discussed
his confusion where the Charter says that a former SB member may be appointed
without the minimum requirements; that it’s not clarified if this is for only
emergencies and is something else we need to look at.

Mr. Sullivan said that I think that is an area that Bernstein & Shur should review,
particularly to make it consistent with the ethics laws. You might want to appoint



300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
338
340
341
342

6:19 PM

6:21 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
Janunary 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

a subcommittee of two members to review the language and concerns and bring it
back to the full SB.

Mr. Widi continued:
» 4.5 says “All departments and offices shall be administered by a
department head.” Some departments have one person.
» 4.13 “The Town shall provide compensation to appointed officials for the
performances of their duties, as determined by the TM.” I would add
board and committee members.

Mr. Sullivan said that I would change ‘determination by’ to recommended to the
SB’ because the SB is the appointing authority and you should be making the
ﬁnal decision. The TM can work with the SB to find Just compensation.

Mr, Widi contmued: 7

> 6.3 I would remove budget committee filling their own vacancies. The SB
doesn’t and I think this should be consistent for both.

» 6.5 SB action on budget. It currently says that the budget committee must
make their recommendation before the SB. If they are acting
independently from the SB (as said in the Charter) why does it matter
when they make their recommendations in relation to us.

Mr. Donhauser agreed with Mr. Sullivan’s suggestion to form a subcommittee.
Mr. Trott and Mr. Widi agreed to be on that subcommittee, with Mr. Trott

suggesting keeping the Budget Committee up to speed, at least, on our
deliberations,

The SB agreed by consensus.

Ms. (Suzanne) O’Connor, Planning Board member, said that the PB had just
reviewed some comments that we came up with but T don’t have anything in
writing. I would look for opportunity to provide written comments to you on a
couple of things that we found before you close out this process.

Mr, Donhauser said that that would be great.

Mr. Sullivan said that I think it’s good to get used to having the Charter
adjustments and changes discussed regularly, sections of it, and a healthy thing



343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385

6:24 PM

6:25 PM

6:26 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

3. Public Works Truck Bid Acceptance

Mr. Sullivan said that they reached out to 16 different dealers from Maine and NH
and only got one bid. They would like to go back out for bid. I spoke to the Chair
and he said I could take it off the agenda for tonight.

4, Re-appoint Chief Jay Muzeroll

Mr. Donhauser moved; second by Ms. Dow, that the Eliot Select Board re-
appoint Chief Jay Muzeroll as the Town of Eliot Fire Chief for one year.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow — Yes

Mr. Shapleigh — Yes
Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

ool sk ook sk ok

Mr. Sullivan apologized, saying he had a request late this afternoon to make sure
that we follow the process in notifying you. We’ve looked through some of the
personnel policies and records and we can’t find where the public was notified. |
didn’t even know that the public had to be notified. We have added an officer to
the Eliot Police Department — Officer Casey Cyr. She has gone through the
academy and worked for us, now, for almost a year and 3 months. Officer

William Dries has been with us since 2021, Officer Robert Govoni has been with
us almost three years, now, and he is through the academy. Paul Shield has been
appointed as the Animal Control Officer (ACO), AS we go back through the
records, we may find more of these, and will make public announcements.

L Approval of Warrant(s):

6:28 PM

Mr. Donhauser moved, second by Mr. Trott, that the Select Board approve
Payroll Warrant #64 in the amount of $58,648.96 dated January 10, 2024;
Payroll Warrant #66 in the amount of $54,489.97, dated January 17, 2024,

Roll Call Vote:

Myr. Donhauser — Yes



386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428

6:30 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
-January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Mr. Widi - Yes
Ms. Dow — Yes
Mr. Shapleigh — Yes
Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

Mr. Donhauser moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Select Board
approve A/P Warrant #63 in the amount of $369.11, dated January 9, 2024;
A/P Warrant #65 in the amount of $122,361.50 dated January 10, 2024; A/P
Warrant #67 in the amount of $84,440.93, dated January 17, 2024.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow — Yes

My, Shapleigh — Yes
Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

J. Adjourn

Mr. Donhauser moved, second by Mr. Shapleigh, that the Select Board
adjourn.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow — Yes

Mr. Shapleigh — Yes .
Mr. Trott - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

The meeting adjourned at 6:31 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Ellen Lemire, Recording Secretary

10



429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437

438
439
440
441

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
January 25, 2024 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall/Hybrid

Lauren Dow, Secretary

Date approved:

11



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
OFFICE OF THE SELECT BOARD
1333 State Road, Eliot, ME 03903

AUTHORITY: ELIOT SELECT BOARD

PLACE: | ELIOT TOWN OFFICE

DATE OF HEARING: THURSDAY March 28, 2024
- TIME: 5:30 PM

Notice is hereby given that the Select Board of the Town of Eliot, Maine will hold a public
hearing on Thursday, March 28, 2024 at 5:30PM in said Town to hear public comment on
the following:

1. Medical Cannabis Cultivation Application, 483 Harold L. Dow Highway, Hughes
Pope/Judley LLC

The applicant has subritted a full application availabie for inspection at Eliot Town Hall
1333 State Road Eliot, Maine and therefore compliant with Section 11-10(b) of the Eliot
Code of Ordinances. Please contact msullivan@eliotme.org to arrange an inspection of
the application. -

All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an
opportunity to be heard at that time. Please refer to the Town of Eliot's website for zoom
instructions if you do not want to participate in person at the town office.

If you cannot attend meeting in person or zoom, and want t¢ make comments in regard
to the topic, please send any correspondence to the Town Manager prior to meeting
date at fownmanager@eliotme.org

Copies of the renewal submittal is available at the town office for review.



Eliot Town Manager Report

March 21, 2024
Submitted by
Michael J. Sullivan to the Eliot Selectboard

Honorable Select Board, this is an abridged accounting of some of the projects and issues I and
the dedicated municipal staff have been working on lately for the benefit of the Town of Eliot
and its citizens.

Transfer Station.

We have paused in moving to a single stream recycling model and will reconvene the discussion
at the April 25" Select Board Meeting. T have recently met with Jim Tessier a former member of
the Eliot Recycling Committee who spoke at the March 14" meeting about some concerns and
observation.

Mr. Tessier and I agree that once we leave the “sorting” recycling model it will be nearly
impossible to return to that method in the future. Jim encourages us to take a measured approach
as we consider making any changes to the recycling process and model.

He has offered to review some additional data and we will circle back and meet prior to the next
SB discussion on the matter. I want to thank him for his interest and appreciate the fact that we
are both looking for the most efficient and cost-effective model for the Eliot Transfer Station.

Website Rebuild.

This incredibly complicated and time intensive project is really taking shape. Thank you to
Wendy Rawski, David Ross-Lyons and especially Kim Tackett for the efforts you have made on
this significant undertaking.

This week was another eye-watering seven-hour training on widgets and best practices from
CivicPlus. 1 was able to sit through three hours and my biggest takeaway was [ hope Kim,
Wendy and David are getting all this, because it is a lot!



We will eventually look to offer training to other interested parties including board members if
practicable, other employees as back-ups or as responsible parties or to others who may be
inclined and are linked to municipal activities.

There are strict “permissions” for different levels of editing and posting which will be evaluated
on a case-by-case basis. We will continue to reserve the right to remove material, which is
political, in accurate or otherwise detrimental to the accurate dissemination of information. The
Town Manager will be the arbiter, Kim Tackett will be the point of contact and any aggrieved
party may appeal to the Select Board..

National, State, Policy Development Participation.

The Town of Eliot Town Clerk Wendy Rawski has been asked by the Secretary of State Sheena
Bellows to represent the State of Maine at a national conference in Indiana preparing for the
upcoming November Presidential Election.

The conference will center around safety, security, and election integrity. This is a huge honor
for Eliot’s esteemed Town Clerk and speaks to the respect her colleagues have for Clerk Rawski.
I can only imagine what level of learning will be on display at this conference, given the
controversial nature of this November election. Yes, the June 11 election is important, but I
suspect Eliot’s June election will not be the focus in Indianapolis, Indiana.

Eliot is quietly building a reputation as a placé of knowledge, experience and respect throughout
the State of Maine and beyond, our Planner has been a featured presenter at universities, our
Assistant Town Manager and General Assistance Administrator has been asked to serve as board
member for the GA’s association, and the Chief of Police is serving on a statewide panel to
review police training, as well as being invited to present at conferences across the country.

These experiences are advantageous and of significant educational value for the Town of Eliot.
Having opportunities to meet other like professionals opens up a door to move from “how-
always-do-it” to the possibility of a “better-way™. It is not hard to see why I continuously say I
am very lucky to work with such talented colleagues.

MAP and Public Teamsters Contracts.

The labor agreements for both the police and public works union employees will lapse June 30,
2024. As is the case, the process of bargaining has begun. As instructed and supported by the
Select Board the negotiations are being conducted by the management, which is also the usual
process in municipalities.

If it is deemed necessary and will assist the bargaining the Town Manager will notify the Chair
of the Select Board to call for a “team” approach which would include all required parties. The
goal is to have the process complete prior to the expiration and all sessions are under executive
privilege. So, there is nothing else I can add publicly at this time,



FY 23 Audit.

We recently received the completed FY 23 audit from RHR Smith Associates, congratulations to
Finance Director Kristin McNulty for an outstanding review., While there is still work to do, the
auditors clearly recognized the oversized progress we are making to create a well-managed
financial picture,

The FY 23 audit describes an exceptionally solid financial picture for the Town of Eliot. With
$6-+million in unassigned funds, reserves that are sensible and a greater focus on creating strong
financial policies. Great work to the Budget Committee, Select Board and especially to the
Finance Director.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael J. Sullivan

Town Manager, Eliot



"TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
1333 STATE ROAD, ELIOT, ME 03903
TELEPHONE: (207) 439-1817 EMAIL: wrawski@eliotme.org

ACCORDING TOTHE TOWN OF ELIOT ORDINANCE, G@VERNiN G
MUNICIPAL BOAR!)S E’L’EASE AN W‘BER THE I*’OLL%E} WING
QUESTIONS. e _ ,
1. Expregg your mterest as to Why you want w server
i w&f\@f»«&fmﬁ Blgurny To m(,u nt my mﬁf&mmﬁ [ want

\p (VMg & [ 6C 0. Clra s plr e o g L en Flade
2. Givea brief reason(s) as to why the Select eard shouid support your”
.'5. ;:?F ‘:“I

- appoittment. .
m (Ll 7y 7 G ALY ffi‘w/g ldn e /géfzé’# £
Lean/l. DA Aeq VLS Raedl S7 T va o v LAY 4 @{f %
3 Gw& 2 br;ef summary aa to-how you will maintain an unbiased participation e

on & regu]ar and contmuing basis throughout

te
’ - “%ﬁ?}ﬁ aff Eia 7 c?nS G zé’; s e
; Y P IR EAL, Y‘uf/mfrm,?‘/)

4, Any k’mw cmﬂm’c of i iﬁtereﬁt YES @ NO if yes, pleaw ist

BY SUBMITTING THIS APPLICATION YOU UNI)ERSTAND THE _
FOLLOWING: |
1. This application is for consideration and does not mean you will nacessamiy
. be appointed to this Board/Commission or Committee.

2. The Town Manager will review yeur appiwatmn, may contact you, and .
determine any potential conflict of interests,

3. This application will be forwarded to the Sei@r:t Board for consideration, the
Board will want to interview possible-appointees. Your application will be
placed on the next available agenda.

4. Appointee agrees to take a-sworn oath by Town Clerk except for Ad Hoe
Committee members/Select Board Advisory Comimittges. - |

5.=._Appl;cant agrees that if appointed will attend all 1 meetings, exoept for
sickriess or emergﬁncy, aﬂd will. adﬁS@ the Chairperson when you are unable

- to attend. ;

- Please read the Tawn (rf Lhot, Mam& Ordmance Gwemmg Municipal Boards,
Commisgiogs, and Commitiess available at the Towa Office or on ﬂxe ’I‘n w Website,.
(”“‘ ,ﬁ S0 [ DGt

Rev 0372022



}
fred.
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE FEB2 0 b
1333 STATE ROAD, ELIOT, ME 03903 A
TELEPHONE: (207) 439-1817 EMAIL: wrawski@eliotme.org

INITIAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO TOWN BOARDS,
COMMITTEES & COMMISSIONS ~

O RE-APPOINTMENT TO TOWN BOARDS, CC)MNHTTEES &

-coMmssmNs |
vave:_JenntferStaveos
RESIDENCE: _ 20 T A Lane. :

MAILING (if different)

Agmg-In—»Piace «Ci)mmm@e

(:) Agricultute and Food Security Commission
-~ (OBoard of Appeals

- (O Capital Improvement Committee

(O Conservation Commission

() Planning Board

MhMB‘Ei{SP{[P PREFBRENCE Regular ‘Mi Aitf:mﬁte No Prefe?erme

API?&BINTMENT E?ERM s Full ’I‘ex:myi?mtiél‘ Term___No 'E’wferénce;
EDUCATION/TRAINING: e

RELATED EXPERIENCE (Inc}.udiﬂg omer B@aa dstomﬂutte' aﬁd Cbmusmo
Mww.&f“?’“f” 2 T - {2t Dty
BI L2 H S BDU R ;»@ st

PRESENT EWLOYMENT- gggffff ( ]LM (s @ M 7{352.‘

ARE YOU 18 YEARS OR OLDER d{?}:s ONo

§ .

7)) M/Mé’&wf%

Rev 03/2022



Town of Eliot

Public Works Department
478 Dow Highway
Hliot, Mains 03903
(207)-439-9451

March 20, 2024
Honorable Select Board and Town Manager

The Public Works is requesting to pay the attached Invoice for $5949.30 from
resexve account # 90-25-25 (Sewer Dopt Reserves) This invoice could not be placed
out to bid due fo specific pipe fitment and the neod to have this pump on premise for
any emergent needs, This spare pump will serve g5 a back up for both pump station
#1 and #2 minimizing downtime and additional costs should either pump break
down,

Thaink you for time

Norman Albert
Operations Manager



Memo

To: Select Board Member

From: Melissa Albert, GA Director
ca: Mike Sullivan, Town Manager
Date: March 13, 2024

Re: Fuel Assistance Donatioh

Select Board Members and Town Manager,

\We received donations for the fuel fund. Can the board please accept the following by vote at
your March 28, 2024, meeting.

. $200.00- Churches in the Lead

$538.97~ Living Water United Methodist Church
$600.00- Anonymous Donor

. $500.00- Anonymous Donor

PN =

Total: $1,838.97
We appreciate all the generous donations to this fund to keep Eliot residents warm.
Thank you for your continued support and consideration.

Melissa Albert
Melisaa AlBert

GA Director



Proposed Spinney Creek Tide Gate Schedule
To all interested parties:

After several years of interruptions to the tide gate operation due to aged and broken
infrastructure and other maintenance challenges, DOT has mostly rebuilt the tide gate as of
November 2023. Over the past several years, we have seen dramatic growth of Rupia
maritima, also called widgeon grass and other fouling marine species that thrive in eutrophic
(over nutrified) environments such as Spinney Creek. We believe this degradation of the
Spinney Creek environment is the direct effect of reduced tide gate openings and increased
nutrient flow due to excessive rainfall events whlch seem to be our new normal. Although
impactful around mugch of the shoreline of Spmnéy Creek, the headwaters of Spinney Creek has
gotten to a pomt where the fouling has kllled ff.maost other marine life under the vast floating

| Activities for the weekenqls and holidays. Webéli
openings, especially inthe Spring and Fall months, we can start to miti
nutrients which have:btilt up over time. it is also needed t6 remove the n

the more extreme ramfall/runoff events we have bee




Subject:
To:
From:
Date:

Interdepartmental Memorandum

Cruiser Purchase
Select Board
Elliott Moya
March 19, 2024

This rhemo respectfully requests the Select Board to approve purchasing a 2024 Ford
Explorer Utility Cruiser from Quirk Auto for $50,031.00 using funds from the Police
Reserve account.

Quirk Auto has limited inventory available to municipalities for purchase, and this
vehicle is available for immediate delivery.

While vehicle availability has improved, we saw a new challenge in the timely up fitting
of our last vehicle.

This 2024 Ford Explorer Utility will have emergency lighting straight from the factory.
While additional upfitting will still be required, pre-installed emergency lighting will
streamline' this process.

| respectfully ask the Board to consider forgoing the bid process on this purchase as this
“Patrol Ready’ cruiser is available immediately. .

| have attached the price and specifications summary sheet for the cruiser.
Recommendation:

The Eliot Select Board authorizes the Eliot Police Chief to purchase (1) Ford Explorer
Utility Cruiser from Quirk Auto, Augusta, Maine, for $50,031.00.

Eliot Police Department

Service with Respect, Integrity, Leadership, Fairness & Empathy



B QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO cHtx;P[NE | 207-430-1621

' Vehicle: [Fleet] 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Utliity (K8A) AWD

AF 1 F824
THANKYOU FOR THE OPRORTUNITY TO QUOTE YOU ON YOUR NEXT.PURCHASE. IE YOU
HAVE ANY QUESTION,
PLEASE GIVE ME A GALL.



QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621
Vehicle: [Flest] 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Uiy (KBA) AWD (# Complts)

e i e ST TR PN — et e e s SV N S

AAAAAA ) Base .P_ri_ce %;-7.165,00 ;
T Total Options I Tsss0t00
Vohicle Subtatal a ' - ' S $52,466.00
Destination Charge ' o A I $1,505.00
Grand Total R ) " | $s4061.00
*y A H

”

Thit document contalng information constdered Conlidantlal betwaen M and it Clierts uniquely, The fntarmation pravided Is net intended for pubiie disclosure. Prices,
apenifications, and avaflability are subject o change withoutnatice, and do net Ingude ceriain fees, laxes and charges that may be raquiead by law or vary by manufasturer or reglon,
Ferformance figures are guldalines only, and actual perfermange may vaty, Photos may not represent actust vehicles or exact configurations. Content based on report preparer's
thputls subject to the acouracy of the input provided, ) ’

Dala Version: 21943, Data Uptiatad: Mar 13, 7034 8:3%:00 BM PRT.

Mar 14, 2024

w . ‘ - ) ' Page 2




QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO.CHICOINE | 207-430-1621
“Vehicle: [Floe] 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Uity (K&A) AWD (4 complete ) )

WEIGHT WEIGHT

Engirie: 3.9L V& Directinjection (FFV)-Inc: (136-MPH top spesd), 8,00 Ibs 0.00ths $2,830.00) L/
Deletes regenerative braking and Hibdum-ion battery pack; adds

250-armp dlternator, roplaces HT AGM battery {800 CCA/S0-amp)

w7 SLI battery (730 CCA/BG-amp) and redlacas 19-gallon tank

wiZ.d-gallon tank *CREDIT= g

DESCRIPTION

WEIGHY WEIGHT

42y Transmission: 10-Speed Altomiatic (440) - 0.001bs 0.00 168 $0.00

AL

CODE DESCRIPTION T S FRONT  REAR  MSRP
WEIGHT WEIGHT
5004 " Order Code 500A ' | ' 0.00ibs 00015 $0.00
CODE  DESCRIPTION o " FRONT  REAR MSRP
| __ L WEIGHT VEIGHT
. a73AdeRafio(STD) | 0.00 Ibs 0.00 fos

CODE | DESCRIPTION . FRONT REAR
- S WEIGHT  WEIGHT
UM Agate Black o | 0.00 Ibs 0.00lbs  $0.00

Thiz doctment gonlaing Infarmation sansidered Confidential batwean GM and Its Clishts unlquely. “Thé Infotmation providad 1s niot Intanded for publte disclosure, Piices,
specifications, and avalabilty are sublect to change withous sotico, and de notindude cerzinfees, taxes and charges that may b required by law orvary by manufacturer or ragion,
Parformance figires are guidelines only, and aviual performance may very: Priclos may riot represent actusl vehitles or'exact conilgurations. Cantent based on rehést pregiref's
inut is subjectto the acauracy of the tnput provided, L

Data Version: 21943, Data Updated; Mar 13, 2024 8:39:00 PM PDT,

3

Mar 14, 2024 S ' ' ' S ' : Page 6




QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

R ——— " oy

CODE DESCRIPTION FRONT REAR MSRP

WEIGHT WEIGH’I"
96 - Charcoal Black, Uniqua HD Gioth Front Euckat aeais anyl Raar 0 QU ibs 0 00 lbs $0.00
-inc: reduced bolsters, driver 8-way power track (fore/aft‘ upldawn,
fitveimanual recling, Zaway. mantial lumbar), passenger 2-way
mariugl traclk (forelalt, wimanual rasline) and bulltdin steal Infrusion.
plates o both driveripassenger seatbacks

bt e S

CODE  DESCRFTON "~ PRONT  REAR  MSRP
| WEIGHT  WEIGHT
" 87H ReadyFor The Road Package -inc: Whelen Cencom light 0,00 bs 0.00Ibs $3.595.00."

contrdlier head widimmable back light, Whelen Cencom relay
centér/slven/amp witraffic advisor control {mounted behind 2nd row
seat), ight controller/relay Cencom wirlng (witing Harness)
wiaddiional inputiautputpigtalls, high curent pigtail, Whelen
specific WECAN cable {tonsole to cargo arséyconfiscts Ceneam
to cohtrof head and giifle llnear LED lights {red/biue} harness,
Frant Headlamp Lighting Selution, LED low beam/high beam
headlamp, wig-wag fubiclion ant (2) rediblualwhits LED-side
waining lights In each héadlamp (faciory configured: driver's side
white/redipassenger skie whitefolue), Wiing ang LED lghts
Indluded {in headlamps onsfy; grils lights not included), Controfler
notincluded, Grille LED Lights, Siren & Spealer. Pre-Wiring, 100
Watt Sir&n/ﬁpeaker wiBrackat & Pigtall, Tail Lamp Lighting
Selution, LED lights flus (2) rear intégrated hemiapheric lighthead
white LED:side warming lights in tallamps, LED lights only, Wirng
and gontroller-nat ircluded, Rear Lighting Sofution, {2) backilt
flashing linear high-intensity LED lights: {driver's side
réd/pasyeiger side blue) mounted o inside liftgate glass and (2}
backilt flashing inear high-intensity LED lights {driver's slde
rec/passengar sida biue) installed on inside fp of litgate (fghts
activate when liftgate is opén), LED lights.only, Wiring and
controller not Incleded, Hideen DoseLock Plunger, reardopr
controls inopsiable {locks, hendles and windows), Can manually
remave window or doar disable plate wispecial tool,
Lacks/windows operabile frem driver's.door switches, Rear Consale
Plate, Contours through 2nd row; channel for wiring

This documem confains ?nfarmaﬂon cunska‘éred Conﬁdantial batween GM ard ts Cl enis uniguely.- The Ihfcrmat on prowded I viot intemied forpub%u: dmciosure Prices,
spaciications, and avaliabi!lty are subject fo change without sotlss, and-do not include carlain fess, texes and:charges thal may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or ragion,
Performanca figures are guidelines anly, and aciual performance may vary, Photbs miay not resréBent dotual vehizies oraxact configurations. Content based on report praparers
nputis subject to the accuracy of theinpul provided.

Date Verslon: 29843, Data Updarted Mar 13‘ 2024 £:49:00 PM Pm'

far 14,2024 o o ' Page 7




LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

Vehicle: [Figef] 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Utility (KSA) AWD (# Garplete)

e 4 SR——,

RN RS
DESCRIFTIO

REAR  MSRP
WEIGHT

FRONT
WEIGHT

N

ATA Poilce Engine idle Feature -inc: This featurs allows you to lea
the engine running and pravents your vehidls from unavthorized
uge when eutside. of your vehidle, Allows the key to be removed
fror Ignition white vehitte remaing idling .

P o it
' FRONT REAR . MSRP

WEMGHT WEIGHT

o e - e lb$ e $000
18X 00 Walt Siren/Spaaksr w/Bracket & Pigtall o 0.0 bs 0.001bs e,
CBIR Driver Only LED Spot Lamp (Unity) o 0.601bs 0.001bs 3;3953.9_91,-/
549 Heatei Sideview Mimors o 0.00 1bs 000 los s000"" P
598 Keyed Alike- 1284x B 0.00 Tos 000ts  $50.00 47
BEA. Front Headlamp Lighling Soludion -ine; LEE low beamvhigh beam  0.00tbs 0.00 ibs Ing.
headlamp, wig-way function and {2) red/biuefwhite LED side
warning lights in each headlamp (fastory configured: driver's slde
white/retlpassenger side white/btue), Wiring and LED lights
included {in headlatyips only; grillé lighte not intluded), Controller
het included, Grille LED Lights, Slren-& Speaker Pre-Wiring
668 Tail Lamp Lighting Solution -nc: LED Hights plus (2) rear Integrated 000108 0.001bs ine.
hemispheric luhthead white LED slde warning fights i taillamps,
LEDHights only, Wiring and contrafler not ihaluded

860 Rear Lighting 8olution -ing: {2) backiit Tashing linear high-lntensity  0.00 s 0.00 1os Ine.
LED lights (driver's side redipassenger side blue) mounted to
Inside liftgate glass-and (2) backiit fiashing linear High-intensity
LED iights (drivers side redipassenger side blug) Installed on
inside lip of fiftgaite dights activate when liflgate i open), LED
lights only, Wiring.and controlier riot included

06T "Rear Spoller Traffic Warning LED Lights -inc: Fully Integrated i 0.00168  0.0008  $1495.00
rear spoilar for anhanced visibility, Provides rediblusfamber
dirgctionatlighting - fully programmabie

z12 _ PIU Grllle Blue & Biue | 0001bs .00 lbs $53.00
Zi4  PIURearLED Blue& Blue | ~ om6ks  000bs  $6000
ZLF PIU Reer Marker Blue & Blue ©000lbs  0.00Ws $63.00

This document contains inforration considared Ganfidantial batween GMand its Glieats unlquely, The Information provided fs not intended far publis disciosuts, Pricas,
spasifications, and avaliability are suliject to-change without nofles, and o nat include ceriain fess, taxes and charges that may be fequirgd by law ot vary by matufacturer orreglon.
Performance flgures are Guidelivies only, and acis! performarita mayvery, Prictos may not réproseit actusl vehicles or oxact configurations. Cortent based on report praparers
tnput Ia subjict 10 1he acouragy of tha input provided, '

Lata Version: 21943, Data Updated: Mar 43, 2024 8:39:00 PM POT,

Mar 14, 2024 Fages



B QUIRK AUTO GROUP
- LEQ CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

Vehicle: [Fleet] 2024 Ford Police Intorceptor Uty (KBA) AWD. (+ Complots)

Zﬁ»%\’é ﬁ%

" CoDpE DESCRIPTION -
. WEIGHT  WHEGHT
T Swlt&h'aiﬂe Radl\:’\n;ll.v eLighling in Cargo Area -Ine: Deletas 3rd row 0,00 [bs 0.00 tbs $80.00
overhaad map lght _ _
4 * Dark Gar Faature -ing; Courtesy lamps disablad when any dooris 0,00 b 0,00 Jbs. $25.00
opened
CEp Hiddert Poor-Lock Piungsr «fhgs rear-ddor controls inoparable .00 Ibs .00 1bs ing.

(loeks, handles and windows), Can manually remove window or
doot disable tlate wispachl tool, Looks/windows operable from
driver's door switthes

55F  Remote Keyless Entiy-Key Fob wio Key Pad -ino: Doss notinciuds. 0.0010e o.o0te $aatid

PATS, d-key fobs, Key foby are not fobbad aflke whan ordered
wikeyed-alike :

S9W 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hotspot Crodit "GREDIT* - 0.001a  0.00Ms

B0A ~ Grille LED Lights, Slen & Speaker Pre-Wirlig | 0.00 Ibs 0.00Ibs

BOR Nolse Suppression Bonds (Ground Straps) 0.00 Ibs 0.00bs - $100.00 L

[

B7v Front & Rear Police Wire Hamess Connegtor Kit -ng: For 0.00-bs .00 s $185.00 /
connaclivity fo Ford Pt Package solutions inclisdes front (2) wiate 4-
pin connectors fir airen, (5) female 4-pih connactors for
lighting/siren/speaker, (1) 4-pln IP connector for speakers, (1) 4-pin
IP connector for siren controffer connectivity, (1) 8-pin sealed
cennactor, (1) 14-pin iF-cannecior, rear {2) male 4-pin connectors
for siren, {5) female 4-pin connectors for lighting/sirenispesker, (1)
4spint 1P conneator for spsakers, (1) 4-pin 1P sonnector for siren
controlier conneativity, (1) 8-pln sealed connector and (1) 14-pin IP
sonnector

$275.00

Ino

TR St N L 1 04 P e

sR Reverse Sensirg Sysfem * 0.001bs

g, B A 3 AR S M e e e R 8

85R ' Rear Consale Plate:mc: Contours .%hreugh‘ZHd row; channe!forﬁﬂﬂibs :
wiring

87R Rear View Camera -ihe: Displayed in rear view miror, This-opfion  0.00 lbs 8.001bs $0.00
replaces the standard display in the center stack ared, Camera can
enly be displayed in the centor stack (sid) or the rear view mirror
{B7R), Electrochromic Rear View Mirior, Video i displayed in rear
view mirror '

e

96W Frant Interior Visor LED Light Bar -inc: Super low-profile waming 0.00 lhs 000 T $1.145.00
LED Byght har fully infegreted into the fop of the windshisld nearthe
headliner - fully programumeable, (Redired or blua/biue operation,
White take down and seene capabilities)

Options Total 0.00 ths 0.00Ms $5,301.00

This docurnent contding informatiah sansiderad Confidental belween G and its Clients urigusly. The information providerd Is not Intended for public discloswre. Prices,
speoificallons, and avatablity are subiec: lo charige withegt nollcs, and do 164 ficiude cenain feesh favek and oharges that may ba requlred by law or vary by manufacturer or yaglon:
Performance figures are guidelines enly, ahd aclual perfurmance may vary, Photes may not reptesent setusl vehilcles or exact configurations, Confant based on report prepargrs
tnput Is subjact to this aceuracy of the put provided. - - '

Data Vetslon: 21943, Dala Updaled: Mar 13, 2024 8:39:00. PM PDT,

Mar 14,2024 . ' ' - ' Paged



QUERK AUTO GROUP
LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

Vehmia [Fleet] 2024 Ford F’e!ice Intercepwr U’ti!:ty (KSA) AWD {@Completa;

LB KRS AL RN

Technical Speciﬂcaﬁons

RSt m‘ém%i.{. 2.

Trausmission
Drivatrain - Al Wheal Drive “Trarts Order Code oy o
‘I‘rans 'i‘ype 10 - Transg :Desoﬂp'ﬂon Cont, Automatic wfbD
Trans Dmcﬁbﬁ&n Coni Again | NM T Flrstear Ratio (1) 470 '
Second Gear Ratto ( 1 ) ' 2.98 Third-Gear Ratio {& ‘1) 215
F”ou&h G (1) o e e ﬁfﬁhéggr éaﬂc;( ) D R
Slth Goar Ratio 1) * o Reverse Ratio (:1) 487
CluchSize NA Trans Power Take Of NIA ‘“
Final Drive Axle Ratis (1) TNIA Transfer Cese Modal None
M:I:ranafer Case; Ge;ar Rnétsod( 1)";I{gi; - MWE:E,-'AM “ Trangfor Case @ear Ratic} ( ‘i) l.@w S NIA R
Transfar Gase Powar Talgggﬁ 7 TN seventh Géar Ratu ( 1} Y
E‘ngmh Gear Ratio {: 1} T o§5 T Ninth @eer Ratfo (4) ” Twa
Tenth Gear Ratio {:1) NA
Miloags
EPA F'uefamnomy Estotwy  NA ‘Crusing Range- Ry NA
‘éPA Fuel Econcmy Est - Gity N NfA mF'uél Ec:onamy Estombmed NIA
-_Crulsmg Range - Hwy | NIA Estimated Battéry Range NA
Ehgine
Engine drder Co,dé- 998 Engiﬁe Type - ‘;E;?ﬁgulaf Unleaded
"pisplacement 331004 Fuel Syster " Gasoline Dirsot
o . ‘ injection
SAE Net Harsepower @ RPM 265 @ 6500 " "SAE Net Torque @ RPM 260 @ 4000
“Engine Ol Cooler Mih?egmar puty
Eloctripal
Coid“*:’}r_ank ing Amps @ 0° F (anary} a0 " Gold Cranking Amips @ 0° F (2nd) T30
Cofdncrari{ing Ar;apﬂs@‘ 0" F (3rd) o I:JIA | M;X!mum Altemégér Cap;mlty (ampé; o Mé%‘)é T

THis decument eonling information oorssidered Confidertiol b&iween Gl and’ its Cliants un qualy\ Tha lnfarmatioh pmvlded Is not lmemded for publindlsciosure Pricas,
specilcations, and availebllity are subject f change without rotice, and do natindids certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufeciurer or reglon,
© Ferformanca figures are guidslines anly, and actual perfervianee-may vary. Pholos may nol represent agtual vehicles-or exast configurations. Content based oh report preparers

nput is subfant to the accuracy ¢f the input pravided,

ng.Verglnn: 21343, Dala Updated: Mar 13,2034 .ﬁ:SQ:.Gi‘) PMPDT.

Mar 14, 2024

Page 3



QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

Cuoﬁng System _
Total Cooling ggstem Gapacsty o BI/A o

Interior Dimensions
"péééen};é}“é;mty | 5 e
_Frcﬁt Leg Roam T a o Front Shoulder Roam YT )
Sy - e S Head R e
second LegRoom 407i “Second Shouldar Room 6131 a
Second Hip Room  s9din

Exterior Dimensions:
Wheeibase | o 11980 | Length, Overall wirsar bumpar - N/A
“"Langth Overa![ e e _ ”‘Width o wlc;hm?a;t;;é' . et s oot e+
Height, Overall 6osm Treick Width “F“;a;tw i
Track Width, Rear 66.91n " T Overhang, Front
Overhang, R Rearw!o buﬁipe&m T A . Front Burnper to Back of Gab D7
Cab 1o Axie N CebtoEnd of Frame A
‘ Grﬁund to Top chaatf Flogr - | NIA | Ground t;c) 'fo.p of Frame o ) NA o _ -
Frama Width, Rear . . . _ - - NA ” o Groand Cléarance Front TN -
lGround uaarance. Rear o NIA - o PMm Ground Claarance . - 78in
Bodywll;angth : ' (;Elgft ------- . Rear Doar Openihg Hetght T NIA R
o Openlng Wtdth e ‘ — ?9;1 e B
CabloBody 7 S

Cargo Area Dimensions 7
Cargo Area Length @ Floor to Seat1 TNA | _ "Cargn Araa Length @ Floor to Seat 2 462 in
_Cargo Arga Length @ Plcor fo Seéf 5 T A - Camn Box Width @ TE;;:ﬁéé} TN
Cargo Area. Width@ﬁeﬁilne T e T o Box Width @Fioor 7
" Cargo Box Width @wﬁégth&ésings T N * Gargo Box (Araa} Helght Cwa T
Taligats Width CONA cagovelume T NIA _

This document containg information considered Gom“denli:as between M and its Clants un?que(y The information pravided is nct intande for public discloaure. Prices,
specifleations, and availabllity are subject to change without notics, and <o not Ineluda earain fhos, taxes and charges that may be required by daw or vary by manufasturar o7 region.
Perormance flgures arg guldelines anly, and actual performiance may-vary, Pholos tnay not reprasent acwa! vetifcles or exact configurations. Contam based on Teport preparar’s
input s subject to the-acauracy of the input provided,

Data Versforr 21943, Data Updated: Mar 13,2024 6:32:00 PM POT.

Mar 14, 2024 . o ) Page.4



| QUIRK AUTO GROUP
LEO CHICOINE | 207-430-1621

Vehicle: [Flsef] 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Uity (K8A) AWD (< Gompioo)

............................................. b e e ke A e 1 AR Y 2

“Cargo Afea Bimiensions ‘ ’
iCa:go‘Vm!ume to Seat 1 } 9031 7 Gé'rg’o '\_fcjlum.at fo S8af2 ) _ 52
Cargo Volume to Séat 38 5O Extd Cab Cargo Volume NIA

This doctment contains Infordiation considered Confidentiat betwadn GM and s Cllents uniudly, The Information provided is not Intended for public disclisyre: Prioes,
spacifications, and avaiabiity are subléct to ohange withait rolice, and'do riot Include.cartan faes, 4axes and chargs tat iay b rdcuiesd by aw or vary by manifaciurer or raglon.
Perfarmancs figures are guidslines only, and actuat performancs mayvary, Photos may ot représent actual vahldies or exact sanfigiralions. Contant based on repart preparels
input'ts subjiecl to the deouracy of e Input provided. '

Data Vierslon: 21948, Datz Updated: Mat 15; 2024 8:3%:00-PM PDT,
Biar 14, 2024 o o

Paga &




Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

March 18, 2024 DRAFT

Planning Board recommends (H#-#)
Select Board recommends (#-#)
Short title

Floodplain Management Ordinance

Long title
Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — Gen
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an U
Management Ordinance

isions and Chapter 25 —

Ballot question — Amnual Town Meeting & I

ARTICLE #__: “Shall an ordinance entitled ‘Flo
(4 copy of this ordinance is availablé:

Background and rationale

rivers, stri fT he Federal Emergency Management Agency
mtams maps ing:in the U.S, FEMA has deﬁned different zones to classify

NFIP. FEMA has recently” uced new DFIRMs with an effective date of July 17, 2024, The
new Floodplain Management Ordinance must reference these new maps.

Flood risk is not covered by most home insurance policies. The NFIP, administered by FEMA,
offers flood insurance to property owners, renters, and businesses in SFHAs in communities that
participate in the NFIP. Therefore, if Eliot is suspended from the NFIP, property owners, renters,
and businesses with existing NFIP flood insurance cannot renew their policies, and nobody would
be able to sign up for a new NFIP po]lcy If someone wants to take out a government-backed
mortgage for a home or business in a high-risk flood area, they are required to have flood



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

insurance, suggesting that they might not be able to get that type of mortgage if Eliot is suspended
from the NFIP, Enactment of the new Floodplain Management Ordinance would keep Eliot in the
NFIP without any lapses. The updated ordinance fulfills an obligation of NFIP communities to
maintain sound floodplain management practices and regulations, which, in summary, restrict how
buildings, infrastructure, and other development can be located, designed, and built within SFHAs.

These amendments update the definitions in Section 1-2 to reflect the model ordinance. Some
definitions do not need to be changed, and some need only editorial or modest updates. Definitions
in the model ordinance but not currently in Section 1-2 would be

its legal authority. It adopts by
reference the updated DFIRMs. Section 25-2 requires a ard development permit from the
Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) for any deve]opm :

what needs to be included i in the flood hazard dev

Board, or Board of Appeals authority to hi
ordinance, Section 25-5 establishes the stanaa
applications.

Section 25-6 lists the developm
development in SFHAs shall be loca
different types of development, includin
and wastewater system i
improvements. A com
height above the ba
equaled or exceeded .

?ulldingS, infrastructure, and other
. There are different standards for

d tﬁat has a 1% chance of being
monly called the 100-year flood). Other types
rtain height above the base flood elevation,

: 5-8 provides standards of review for the Planning Board,
including a required-e proval for developments on land with SFHAs. Section 25-9
provides for appeals ol ; nd variances from the standards, to be reviewed by the Board
of Appeals. Section 25-1 delegates to the CEO enforcement authority for the chapter and
authorizes penalties to be levied for any violation. The remaining sections pertain to severability,
conflict with other laws, and abrogation.

=

Copies of the model ordinance and other materials provided to the Town of Eliot by the State NFIP

Coordinator can be provided by the Planning office on request, and these materials may be posted
in Town Hall, on the Town website, or both,



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

New text underlined in bold

Deleted s steiketd 1

[Text in brackets, bold, and italics introduces a large block of new text:]
[Text in brackets and italics is a temporary explanatory note ]

[Revision annotations at the end of sections may be omitted — to be updated accordingly by
Municode during codification]

Sec. 1-2, - Definitions and rules of construction.

[abridged to only show changes/

P
[Current text in code: “100

flood.”” Matches, or substantially
matches, Mode! Ordinance, no chan :

jacent grade means the natural elevation of the ground surface
prior to construction ne e proposed walls of a structure. " Matches, or substantially matches,

]

Agricultural structure means a structure that is used exclusively for agricultural
purposes or uses in connection with the production, harvesting, storage, raising, or drying of

agricultural commodities and livestock. Structures that house tools or equipment used in




Floodplain Management Ordinance _

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

connection with these purposes or uses are also censidered to have agricultural purposes or
uses.

[reditorial change to use singular instead of plural]

[..]

Area of special flood hazard means the land in th

greater chance of flooding in any given year, as specificall;
cited in-artiele-F Section 25-1. of chapter-25-

[Tonly editorial changes for capztahzatto ;
Ordinance. ]

plain having a one percent or
ified in the flood insurance study

bstantially matches Model

{]

Base flood means-the a flood h
any given year, commonly called the

[Current text invc ertificate of compliance means a document signed by the code
enforcement officer stating that a structure is in compliance with all of the provisions of this
chapter.” Matches, or substantially matches, Model Ordinance, no change proposed.]

]



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 ~
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

[Current text in code: “Code enforcement officer means a person certified under 30-4
MRS.A., Section 4451 (including exceptions in subsection 4451, paragraph 1) and employed by
a municipality to enforce all applicable comprehensive planning and land use laws and
ordinances.” Matches, or substantially matches, Model Ordinance, no change proposed.]

[w]

Containment wall means a wall surrounding
contain any spills or leaks.

s of an above ground tank to

[]

Development means any
including, but not limited to, building

) roved real estate,
rcluding the construction of additions

means a change in land:
alteration of structu%

[editorial changey:for c
Seeking: ;

of a building inzenes-AH-and-A Zones A or AL, to have the
ted floor clevated above the ground level by means of pilings,

(2) Adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity of the building
during a flood of up to-twe-feet one foot above the magnitude of the base flood.

In the case of-zenes-AkE-and-A Zones A or AE, “clevated building” also includes a
building elevated by means of fill or solid foundation perimeter walls with hydraulic

openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded movement of floodwaters, as required
in section 25-17,



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Elevation certificate means an official form (FEMAFerm81-31:-02/06FEMA Form FF-
206-FY-22-152, as amended) that is used to verify compliance with the floodplain management

regulatlons of the National Flood Insurance Programg—and—is—required—for—purchasing—flood

nsurance:

[

[o]

Manufactured home park or subdivi existing (for floodplain purposes) means a
nty Registry of Deeds

determination of flood h s and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations,”
Matches, or substantially matches, Model Ordinance, no change proposed. ]

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM} means an official map of a community, on which the
administrator—efthe Federal Insurance-Administration_Administrator has delineated both the
special hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

[Current text in code: "Flood insurance study. See ‘flood elevation study,
substantially matches, Model Ordinance, no change proposed. ]

BB

Matches, or

Floodplain or flood-prone area means_any land area susceptible to being inundated by
water from any source (see_*flood or flooding™).

[Current fext in code: "Floodplain management means the operation of an overall
program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not
limited to emergency preparvedness plans, flood control works and floodplain management
regulations.” Maiches, ov substantially matches, Model Ordinarce, no change proposed, ]

[Current text in code: "Floodplain managem
subdivision regulations, building codes, health re
floodplain, gmding, or erosion control ordina

n any combination
tion and reduction.”’

reof, which provz‘de
hes, or substantially

ny combination of structural and
ves which reduce or eliminate flood
mtary Jacilities, structures and
change proposed. ]

[Current text in code:
nonstructural additions, changes, o,
damage to real estate or improved rea;

” Matches, or s

ay'. ' Matches, or substantially

nt llnes means the lines marking the limits
naps.” Matches, or substantzally matches,

eboard means a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above
odplain management. Freeboard tends to compensate for the many
unknown factors, such as wave action, bridge openings, and the hydrological effect of urbanization
of the watershed, that could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a
selecied size flood and floodway conditions.” Malches, or substantially maiches, Model
Ordinance, no change proposed.]

[..]



Floodplain Management Ordinance ’

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Functionally dependent use (for floodplain purposes) means a use which cannot
perform its intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water.
The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading
and unloading of cargo or passengers. and ship building and ship repair facilities, but does

not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.

[..]

(2} Certified or preliminarily determined b
the historical significance
determined by the secre

(3} Individually listed on a sf
preservation programs that

(for_floodplain purpgoses) means—forthe—purpeses—of—this

or a specific site to which all other clevations at the site are
erally not referenced to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum
ical Datum (NAVD), or any other established datum and is used
ata is too far from a specific site to be practically used.

CNGVD),North American:}
in areas where mean sea le

[]

Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An
unfinished or flood-resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest floor, provided
that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-

elevation design requirements set out in-chapter-25;-artiele-IV: Section 25-6(n).

[]

ructure, transportable in one
nd is designed for use with or
uired utilities. For_floodplain
sincludes park trailers, travel

Manufactured home (for floodplain purposes) means
or_more sections, which_is built on a permanent chassi
without a permanent foundation when connected t

Manufactured home park or subdivisioy
contiguous parcels) of land divided into two or mo

L]

Mean sea lev
Geodetic Vertical

urposes) means all development that is not new
ment, such as repairs, maintenance, renovations, or additions,
t of the market value of the structure, It also includes, but is not
s provided for in-article-VEJ: Section 25-6(1), mining, dredging,
filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage of equipment or materials,
deposition or extraction of materials, public or private sewage disposal systems or water supply
facilities that do not involve structures; and non-structural projects such as bridges, dams, towers,
fencing, pipelines, wharves, and piers.

]



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter | — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

[Current text in code: “National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) means the National
Vertical Datum, whose standard was established in 1929, which is used by the National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP). NGVD was based upon mean sea level in 1929 and also has been
called ‘1929 Mean Sea Level (MSL).”” Matches, or substantially matches, Model Ordinance, no
change proposed.]

[.]

New construction_{for floodvlain purposes) .
construction commenced on or after the effective
regulations adopted by a community and includ

sstructures for which the start of

used by the National Flood
aps. NAVD is based upon the

including sli g

¢. designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a motor vehicle: and,

d. designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living
quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use,

[]

10



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Regulatory floodway means:

(1) The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must
be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing
the water surface elevation more than-ene-foet a designated height; and

(2) When not designated on the community’s flood insurance rate map, it is considered
to be the channel of a river or other watercourse:-and the adjacent land areas to a
distance of one-half the width of the floodplai measured from the normal high
water mark to the upland limit of the floo

[

[Current text in code: “Riverine means rel
(including tributaries), stream, broq
no change proposed. ]

[]

[Currer
provided the ac

t was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means
either the first placeme nent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring
of slab or footings, the insi on of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the
stage of excavation, or the"placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent
construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it
include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for basement,
Jootings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the
installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occypied as
dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of
construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a
building, or modification of any construction element, whether or not that alteration affects the

11



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

external dimensions of the building.” Matches, or substantially maiches, Model Ordinance, no
change proposed. |

[

[Current text in code: “Structure (floodplain) means, for floodplain management purposes,
a walled and roofed building. A gas or liquid storage tank that
a structure.” Maiches, or substantially matches, Model Ordj

te, no change proposed.]

ent means‘any reconstruction, rehabilitation,
which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the
‘yction of the improvement This term includes
gardless of actual vepair work performed.
e y project for improvement of a structure to
or Jocal health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which

forcement official and which are the minimum necessary
Yy alteration of a historic structure, provided that the
ructure’s continued designation as a historic structure, and a
munily's board of appeals.” Matches, or substantially matches,

to assure safe:
alteration will v

{]

Variance (floodplain management ordinance) means a grant of relief by a community from
the terms of-the a floodplain management regulations.

12



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Violation_(Chapter 25) means the failure of a structure or other development to fully
comply with-a-eommunity's the Town’s floodplain management regulations or ordinances.

13



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

[Chapter 25 — Floodplain Managem
with the new Chapter -

14



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

[Enact a new Chapter 25 as follows:]
Sec. 25-1. — Purpose and establishment

Certain areas of the Town of Eliot, Mdine are subject to periodic flooding, causing serious
damages to properties within these areas. Relief is available in the form of flood insurance as
authorized by the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968,

Therefore, the Town of Eliot, Maine has chosen to:
the National Flood Insurance Program and agrees to cof

me a participating community in
the requirements of the National

flood hazards in all official actions relating t
hazards.

future flood losses pursuant to Title ;
38 MRSA, Section 440;

The National Flood Insurance Pr:
of the Town of Eliot havi i
Management Agency an
areas. This Ording

:applied in such flood hazard
opiment Permit system and review
ated flood hazard areas of the Town of Eliot,

, Maine,dated July 17, 2024, as may be amended, with
” dated July 17, 2024, are hereby adopted by reference

The Code Enforcen fficer shall be designated as the local Floodplain Administrator.
The Floodplain Administrator shall have the authority to implement the commitment made to
administer and enforce the requirements for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program.

Before any construction or other development (as defined in Section 1-2), including the
placement of manufactured homes, begins within any 8EHAs established in Section 25-1, a Flood
Hazard Development Permit shall be obtained from the Code Enforcement Officer. This permit
shall be in addition to any other permits which may be required pursuant to the codes and

ordinances of the Town of Eliot, Maine.

15



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 - General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Sec. 25-3. — Application for permit

The application for a Flood Hazard Development Permit shall be submitted to the Code
Enforcement Officer and shall include:

(1)
)
€)

(4)
()
(6)

The name, address, and phone number of the applicant, owner, and contractor;
An address and a map indicating the location of the construction site;

A site plan showing locations of existing and/ot proposed development, including but
not limited to structures, sewage disposal facilitigs; water supply facilities, areas to
be cut and filled, and lot dimensions;

A statement of the intended use of the str iid/or development;

.
>

chnical sources (such as FEMA’s Quick-2 model, FEMA 265),
cluding information obtained pursuant to Subsection 25-6(m)
d Subsection 25-8(d); or,

in the absence of all data described in subparagraph (a),
information to demonstrate that the structure shall meet the
elevation requirement in Subsection 25-6(h)(2)b., Subsection
25-6(i)(2)a. or b., or Subsection 25-6(j)(2)b.

b. highest and lowest grades at the site adjacent to the walls of the proposed
building;

c¢. lowest floor, including basement; and whether or not such structures contain a
basement;

16



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

d. lowest machinery and equipment servicing the building; and,

e. level, in the case of non-residential structures only, to which the structure will
be floodproofed.

(9) A description of an elevation reference point established on the site of all
developments for which elevation standards apply as required in Section 25-6;

(10) A written certification by:

a. aProfessional Land Surveyor that the grade gl
are accurate; and,

ations shown on the application

b. aProfessional Land Surveyor, regist ofessional engineer or architect that

(11) The following certifications as reqy
engineer or architect: -

a. aFloodproofing Certiﬁcate(F: VIA
verify that the floodproofing method
criteria of

¢ standards of Section 25-6(0);

mént walls will meet the standards of Section

describing in detail how each applicable
ion 25-6 will be met.

Sec. 25-4, — Applical

A non-refundal ation fee in the amount established by the Select Board as

be paid to the Town Clerk and a copy of a receipt for the same
shall accompany the application.

An additional fee may be charged if the Code Enforcement Officer, Planning Board, and/or
Board of Appeals needs the assistance of a professional engineer or other expert. The expert’s fee
shall be paid in full by the applicant within 10 days after the town submits a bill to the applicant.
Failure to pay the bill shall constitute a violation of the ordinance and be grounds for the issuance
ofa stop work order. An expert shall not be hired by the municipality at the expense of an applicant
until the applicant has either consented to such hiring in writing or been given an opportunity to

17



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

be heard on the subject. An applicant who is dissatisfied with a decision to hire expert assistance
may appeal that decision to the Board of Appeals.

Sec. 25-5, — Review standards for flood hazard development permit applications

The Code Enforcement Officer shall:

lopment Permit to assure that
ooding and to determine that
opment Standards) have been, or

(a) Review all applications for the Flood Hazard D
proposed developments are reasonably safe fi
all pertinent requirements of Section 25-6-
will be met;

(b)

base flood elevation in a Zone A by methods
ii.(b), the Town shall submit that data to

s shown on the maps

d Development Permit applications, determine that
have been obtained from those federal, state, and local

_ from which prior approval is required by federal or state
nt:not limited to Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
dments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344,

(¢)  Notify adjacent municipalities, the Department of Environmental Protection, and
the Maine Floodplain Management Program prior to any alteration or relocation
of a water course and submit copies of such notifications to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency;

18



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

63} If the application satisfies the requirements of this chapter, approve the issuance
of one of the following Flood Hazard Development Permits based on the type of
development:

(1) A two part Flood Hazard Development Permit for elevated structures.
Part I shall authorize the applicant to build a structure to and including the
first horizontal floor only above the base flood level. At that time the
applicant shall provide the Code Enforcement Officer with an “under
construction” Elevation Certificate completed by a Professional Land
Surveyor based on the Part I permit uction for verifying compliance
with the elevation requirements o 25-6, subsections (h), (i), or (§).

Following review of the Elevation ate data, which shall take place

Development for all

a substantial improvement,
‘renovations; or additions, whose value is less
of the structure, Minor development also

equlpment or materials, depos1t10n or
terials, public or private sewage disposal systems or water
that do not involve structures; and non-structural projects

ianent record, copies of all Flood Hazard Development Permit
ponding Permlts issued, and data relevant thereto, including
ifd of Appeals on variances granted under the provisions of
copies of Elevation Certificates, Floodproofing Certificates,
Certificates of Compliance, and certifications of design standards required under
the provisions of Sections 25-3, 25-6, and 25-7.

Sec. 25-6. - Development standards

o

All developments in SEFAS shall meet the following applicable standards:

(a) Al development. All development shall:

19



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

(1)  be designed or modified and adequately anchored to prevent flotation
(excluding piers and docks), collapse, or lateral movement of the
development resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including
the effects of buoyancy;

(2)  use construction materials that are resistant to flood damage;

(3)  use construction methods and practices that will minimize flood damage;
and,

(4) use electrical, heating, ventilation
equipment, and other service facili
as to prevent water from entering
during flooding conditions.

pmbing, and air conditioning
at are designed and/or located so
mulating within the components

(b)y  Water Supply. All new and rep}

(0) . oW
ate infiltration

flood waters.

(d) On Site Waste Dispos
and constructed to avoi

() 1
tructed and maintained in such a
he flood cartying capacity of the watercourse.

improvement of any structure (including
es A and AE shall have the bottom of all
yehtilation and air conditioning equipment,
ponents HVAC ductwork and duct systems, and any
ent, facilities, machinery, or connectlons servicing a

(1) All development projects in Zone AE that cause physical changes to the
natural landscape shall be reviewed by a Professional Engineer to determine
whether or not the project changes the base flood elevation, zone, and/or the
flood hazard boundary line.

(2)  [see a. and b. below]

a. If the Professional Engineer determines, through the use of
engineering judgement, that the project would not necessitate a

20



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

3)

Letter of Map Revision (LOMR), a certified statement shall be
provided.

b. If the Professional Engineer determines that the project may cause a
change, a hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that meets current
FEMA standards shall be performed.

If the hydrologic and hydraulic analysis performed indicates a change to the
base flood elevation, zone, and/or the flood hazard boundary line, the
applicant may submit a Conditional L of Map Revision (C-LOMR)
request to the Federal Emergency Managément Agency for assurance that
the as-built project will result in a.¢ to the Flood Insurance Rate Map.
Once the development is comp st for a Letter of Map Revision
(LOMR} shall be initiated.

i, shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to at
eet above the base flood elevation, or together with attendant
utility*and sanitary facilities shall:

a. be floodproofed to at least two feet above the base flood elevation
so that below that elevation the structure is watertight with walls
substantially impermeable to the passage of water;

b. have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy; and,

21



Floodplain Management Ordinance
Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain

Management Ordinance

be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the
floodproofing design and methods of construction are in accordance
with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions of this
section. Such certification shall be provided with the application for
a Flood Hazard Development Permit, as required by Section 25-
3(11) and shall include a record of the elevation above mean sca
level to which the structure is floodproofed.

(2)  Zone A shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated:

§); Manufactured Homes

within;

)

“base flood elevation utilizing
to Paragraph 25-3(8)a.ii.(a);

in the absence of
feet above the }%g

graph a., to at least two
sstructure; or,

n ht is supported by its wheels and axles; and,

-anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system
lotation, collapse, or lateral movement. Methods of
oring may include, but are not limited to:

over-the-top ties anchored to the ground at the four corners
of the manufactured home, plus two additional ties per side
at intermediate points (manufactured homes less than 50 feet
long require one additional tie per side); or by,

2. frame ties at each corner of the home, plus five additional
ties along each side at intermediate points (manufactured

homes less than 50 feet long require four additional ties per
side).

22



Floodplain Management Ordinance
Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 -- General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain

Management Ordinance

(k)

3. All components of the anchoring system described in
Paragraphs | and 2 shall be capable of carrying a force of
4800 pounds.

(2)  Zone A shall:

a.

ey

be elevated on a permanent foundation, as described in Paragraph
25-6(j)(1)b., such that the lowest floor (including basement) of the
manufactured home is at least two feet above the base flood
elevation utilizing information obtained pursuant to Paragraph 25-
3(8)a.ii.(a); Subsection 25- section 25-8(d); or,

d in Paragraph a., to at least two

: graph 25-6(j)(1)e.
mVehicles located with

;i th the elevation and anchoring
nufactured homes™ in Subsection 25-6(j)(1).

the requirements of Subsections 25-6(a)(1) through (4), as
able;

ited in size to a one-story two car garage;
ave unfinished interiors and not be used for human habitation;

have only ground fault interrupt electrical outlets, The electric
service disconnect shall be located above the base flood elevation
and, when possible, outside the Special Flood Hazard Area.

be located outside the floodway;

when possible, be constructed and placed on the building site so as
to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters and be

23



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

(m)

placed further from the source of flooding than is the primary
structure; and,

g. have hydraulic openings, as specified in Subsection 25-6(n)(2), in at
least two different walls of the accessory structure.

Floodways.

)

(2

In Zone AE riverine areas, encroachments, including fill, new construction,
substantial improvement, and other development shall not be permitted
within a regulatory floodway which is designated on the community’s Flood
Insurance Rate Map, unless a techn aluation certified by a registered
professional engineer is providec "Stratmg that such encroachments

In Zones A and AF,
designated, encroachme
improvement, and other deve
as determmeg

by a reglste

e areas for which 1o
including fill, new

r is provided demonétrating that the
lopment, when combined with all

loodway is determined to be the channel of the
d the adjacent land areas to a distance of one-
the floodplain as measured from the normal high water

s A and AE that meets the development standards of Section
evation requirements of Subsections 25-6(h), 25-6(i), or 25-
ated on posts, columns, piers, piles, or crawlspaces may be enclosed
flood elevation requirements provided all the following criteria are

met or exceeded:

(D
(2)

Enclosed areas are not “basements” as defined in Section 1-2;

Enclosed areas shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood
forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of flood water.
Designs for meeting this requirement must either:

24



Floodplain Management Ordinance :
Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —

Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

a. be engineered and certified by a registered professional engineer or
architect; or, :

b. meet or exceed the following minimum criteria;
1. a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not

less than one square inch for every square foot of the
enclosed area;

shall be below the base flood
fian one foot above the lowest

2. the botiom of all openir
clevation and no high
grade; and,

“as human intervention,
ther non-automatic

()
(4)

The enclosed 'a
vehicles, or stora

(0)

ember (excluding the pilings or
two feet above the base flood elevation; and,

undation and superstructure attached thereto are designed to
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement due to the effects of
and water loads acting simultancously on all structural

ponents. Water loading values used shall be those associated
vith the base flood.

(p)  Containment walls. New construction or substantial improvement of any
containment wall located within;

(1)  Zones A and AE shall:

a. have the containment wall elevated to at least two feet above the
base flood elevation;

25



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

b. have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy; and,

c. be cettified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the
design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice for meeting the provisions ofthis section. Such
certification shall be provided with the application for a Flood
Hazard Development Permit, as required by Section 25-3(11).

(@ Wharves, Piers, and Docks. New constructioh
wharves, piers, and docks are permitted in Zg
shall comply with all applicable local,

r substantial improvement of
and AE, in and over water, and
ederal regulations.

Sec. 25-7. — Certificate of Compliancé

(@)

that require review under other federal law, state law, or local ordinances or regulations, and all
projects on 5 or more disturbed acres, or in the case of manufactured home parks divided into two
or more lots, assure that:

{a)  All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

Mmﬁ

{b)  All public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gﬁ@ oW , gas,

electrical, and water systems are located and constrli(cf:ted"to minimize or eliminate
flood damages.

26



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

(c) Adequate drainage is provided so as to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

(d)  All proposals include base flood elevétions, flood boundaries, and, in a riverine
floodplain, floodway data. These determinations shall be based on engineering
practices recognized by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

(e}  Any proposed development plan must include a condition of plan approval
requiring that structures on any lot in the development having any portion of its
land within a Special Flood Hazard Area are to be constructed in accordance with
Section 25-6. Such requirement will be inclu any deed, lease, purchase and
sale agreement, or document transferring ressing an intent to transfer any

interest in real estate or structure, includir t limited to a time-share interest.

shall also be clearly stated on ¢
Board or local reviewing autho

Sec. 25-9. — Appeals and variances

The Board of Appeals of the T
party, hear and decide ap

on that should a flood comparable to the base flood occur, the
variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional
blic safety, public expense, or create nuisances, cause fraud or

on of the public, or conﬂlct with existing local laws or
ordinances; and,

(3)  ashowing that the issuance of the variance will not conflict with other state,
federal, or local laws or ordinances; and,

(4)  a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in “undue
hardship,” which in this subsection means:

a, that the land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless a
variance is granted; and,

27



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance :

b. that the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the
property and not to the general conditions in the neighborhood; and,

C. that the granting of a variance will not alter the essential character
of the locality; and,

d. that the hardship is not the result of action taken by the applicant or
a prior owner.

(c) Variances shall only be issued upon a determi
minimum necessary, considering the flood d;to afford relief, and the Board
of Appeals may impose such conditions t nce as it deems necessary.

(d)  Variances may be issued for new const
development for the conduct of a fure

antial improvements, or other

(1)  the criteria of subsectio
6(m) are met; and,

(2)  the structure or other dev
flood damag%
public safety

for new construction and substantial improvement of
ing used for the conduct of agricultural uses provided

(g}  Any applicant who meets the criteria of subsections (a) through (¢) and subsection
(d), (&), or (f) of this section shall be notified by the Board of Appeals in writing
over the signature of the Chairman of the Board of Appeals that:

(I)  theissuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level
will result in greatly increased premium rates for flood insurance up to
amounts as high as $25 per $100 of insurance coverage; and,

28



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

(2)  such construction below the base flood level increases risks to life and
property; and, :

(3)  the applicant agrees in writing that the applicant is fully aware of all the
risks inherent in the use of land subject to flooding, assumes those risks, and
agrees to indemnify and defend the municipality against any claims filed
against it that are related to the applicant’s decision to use land located in a
floodplain and that the applicant individually releases the municipality from
any claims the applicant may have against:the municipality that are related
to the use of land located in a floodpl; '

(h)  Appeal Procedure for Administrative an

(1)  Anadministrative or varianc
by an aggrieved party wit
of the Code Enforcem

o6de Enforcement Officer or
ismit to the Board of Appeals all

Appeals shall submit to the Code Enforcement Officer a report
ce actions, including justification for the granting of the

attac] ed to said permit.

(7)  Any aggricved party who participated as a party during the proceedlngs
before the Board of Appeals may take an appeal to Superior Court in

accordance with State laws within forty-five days from the date of any
decision of the Board of Appeals.

Sec. 25-10. — Enforcement and penalties

29



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — Genetal Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

(a)
(b)

(©)

Sec. 25-13. — Definitions

It shall be the duty of the Code Enforcement Officer to enforce the provisions of
this chapter pursuant to Title 30-A MRSA § 4452,

The penalties contained in Title 30-A MRSA § 4452 shall apply to any violation of
this chapter.

In addition to any other actions, the Code Enforcement Officer, upon determination
that a violation exists, may submit a declaration to the Administrator of the Federal
Insurance Administration requesting a denial flood insurance. The valid
declaration shall consist of:

(1)  the name of the property owner a
property sufficient to confirm it

dress or legal description of the

r location;

{2)  aclear and unequivocal decla
State or local law, regulg ic

(3)  aclear statement that the
to do so and a citation to th

(4)

. evidence that|

(5

See Section 1-2.

Sec. 25-14. - Abrogation

This ordinance repeals and replaces any municipal ordinance previously enacted to comply
with the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 (P.L. 90-488, as amended).

30



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Sec. 25-15. — Disclaimer of liability

'The degree of flood protection required by the ordinance is considered reasonable but does
not imply total flood protection.

31



Floodplain Management Ordinance

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 -- General Provisions and Chapter 25 —
Floodplain Management Ordinance, Related to an Update of the Town’s Floodplain
Management Ordinance

Municipal Offiicers’ Certification of Official Text of a Proposed Ordinance

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a true
copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Floodplain Management Ordinance”, which is
to be presented to the voters for their consideration on June 4, 2024.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain

ordinance as a public record and make other copies avaj

opy of the complete text of the
stribution to the voters, and you

will ensure that copies are available at the town on the day of the vote.

Dated: ,

Richard Donhauser, Chairman

William Widi, Vice C
é&

Lauren Dow

B. Cabot Trott

Select Board
Town of Eliot, Maine

32



TOWN OF ELIOT MAINE

PLANNING OFFICE
1333 Stale Road

Efiot ME, 03903

Proposed Warrant Article for June 2024 Town Ballot

Establishing the Maximum Number of Growth Management Permits for 2025 {Chapter 29 of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances of Eliot, Maine)

Shall the Town of Eliot allocate a maximum of 26 growth permits for new residential dwelling units for
calendar year 2025, as recommended by the Eliot Planning Board, in accordance with §29-5 of the
Growth Management chapter of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of Eliot, Maine?*

*Note: In the event this article does not pass, the number of growth permits allocated in 2025
will be 105% of the mean number of permits issued for new residential dwelling units during the
previots ten years, as required by M.R.S.A. 30-A §4360. That number is estimated to be 16.




Town of Eliot, Maine

Subaccount Schedule of Investments - Reserve Funds

For the Month of February 2024

Account Ending - x FY2025 Proposed
Name Balance . Proposed Balance
Administration Reserve S 122,739.67 ‘ 5 122,739.67
Wage & Training Reserve S 57,208.45 $ 120,000.00 S 177,208.45
Senior Tax S 13,659.46 S 10,000.00 5 23,659.46
Police Department Reserve $ 162,013.74 S 50,000.00 $ 212,013.74
Eliot Commons TIF $ (46,408.80) \ $ (46,408.80)
Town Hall Reserve S 711,827.43 § 50,000.00 $ 761,827.43
Fire Department Reserve S 213,15495 S 50,000.00 § 263,154.95
Land Bank Reserve S 48,049.23 § 19,000.00 S 67,049.23
Grant Match $ 206,757.84 ' ¢ 206,757.84
Sewer Reserve S 269,050.05 ) 269,050.05
Public Works Reserve S 1,175,153.63 \ S 1,175,153.63
Transfer Station Reserve 5 46,150.14 § 50,000.00 § . 96,150.14
Parks & Facilities Reserve ) 52,615.44 § 80,000.00 S 132,615.44
Community Service Department 5 £8,357.24 S 88,357.24
PS Impact Fees $ 111,601.64 S 111,601.64
Eliot Stormwater Reserve S 34,119.58 S 34,119.58
Rt. 236 TIF S 4,665,519,98 S ' 4,665,519.98
Lena Grover Memorial Trust S 938.17 S 938.17
Mary Lizzie Spinney Trust S 26,539.58 S 26,539.58
Susan Blume/Frost Tufts S 12,252.52 S 12,252.52
Cemetary S 2,836.07 S 2,836.07
ARPA S 322,851.21 S 322,851.21
PEG Access S 53,673.78 S 53,673.78
Grants S 50,794.04 S 50,794.04
Fuel Assistance S 38,861.24 S 38,861.24
Total Request: $ 429,000,00



Memorandum
March 21, 2024
To; Eliot Select Board

From; M Sullivan, Town Manager

The following pages are intended to cover all the proposed changes to the Eliot Charter which
includes Article, 2,3,4,6 for your review. | applaud you for the attention you have given to the
changes over the last six plus months.

The sub-committee of Vice Chair Widi and Member Trott, met with me on three separate occasions,
as instructed by the full Select Board, | thank them for their guidance and engagement. A invitation
was extended to the Budget Committee Chair Jeff Leathe to participate, as he did in one of the
meetings.

The Planning Board made some suggestions and Planning Board Member Suzanne O’Connor
attended a Select Board meeting to inguire and clarify some of their suggestions, citizen James
Tessier also made comment. | believe additional comments were recently sent to the Chair and
Vice Chair of the Select Board from the Budget Committee Chair in regard to the proposed
changes.

Language to be removed are “strikethrotigh™, replacement language is in red , there are a few
explanatory notes which are in blue.

| believe the material is in its final form and would encourage the Select Board to endorse any
necessary amendments at the March 28, 2024 meeting.

Respectfully,

Michael J. Sullivan

Town of Elict, Manager.



ARTICLE 2
SELECT BOARD

Section 2.1 Composition

The Select Board shall consist of five (5) members. The members of the Select Board shall be the
Municipat Officers of the Town.

2.2 Eligibility and Qualifications

Only qualified voters of the Town shall be eligible to hold the office of member of the Select Board.

No Select Board member shall hold any other elected Town office, any Town position for which
compensation is provided, with the exception of the Fire Depariment, or any other full or permanent part
time Town employment during the term for which he/she is elected to the Board. No former Select Board
member shall hold any compensated Town Office or be employed in any Town Department unti! one (1)
year after his/her resignation or expiration of the term for which he/she is elected. No Select Board
Member shall serve as a member of any other Town Board, Committee or Commission.

2.3 Election and Terms

Select Board members shall be elected to serve staggered three-year terms. New members shall be
elected to fill vacated positions at the Annual Town Meeting. In the event a Select Board member cannot
serve out his or her term and more than 180 days remain in that term, a special election shall be held to
fill the vacancy. If less than 180 days remain, the Select Board, at its discretion, may call a special
election to fill the vacancy.

2.4 Organizational Meeting

The newly constituted Select Beard shall be sworn in by the Town Clerk immediately following the
adjournment of the Annual Town Meeting. The newly constituted Select Board shall organize by
electing by ballot, a Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary. A time and place for regular Board Meetings shall
be established with appropriate notice to the public. The positions of Chair and Vice Chair are offices of
merit rather than seniority.

2.5 Compensation

Members of the Select Board shall each receive annual compensation for their services as approved at the
arnual Town meeting. Members serving unexpired terms shall be paid on a prorated basis for time
served. Members shall receive reimbursement for actual and authorized expenses incurred in the
performance of the duties of office as approved by the Select Board.

2.6 Chairperson

The Chair, or Vice-Chair in his or her absence, shall with the assistance of the Town Manager, set the
agenda, preside at meetings of the Select Board, and be responsible for the legal and orderly
transaction of Board business at all regular and special meetings. The sitting chair shall exercise his or
her vote as a regular member of the Board on all issues before the Board which require a vote.

The Chair, or Vice Chair in his or her absence, shall be recognized as head of Town Government for all
ceremonial purposes and by the Governor for purposes of military law, but shall, in this capacity, have no
regular administrative duties.

The Chair or Vice Chair may call special meetings of the Board when such meetings are warranted. In the
absence of the Chair and Vice Chair the remaining three members of the board may call meetings chaired
by the Secretary.



2.7 Powers and Duties of Select Board

The duty of the Select Board is to execute the legal will of the people, to manage Town affairs, and to
provide leadership and oversight on issues of importance to the Town.

The Select Board shall act as a unit by formal vote in authorized meetings. Members must not act
individually as a representative of the Board unless specific authority related to a particular duty has
been delegated to that member by the Select Board. A formal minority report may be issued by a Board
member(s) voting in the minority.

The spacific powers and duties of the Select Board shall include, but are not limited to:
A.  Appoint Town Officials as described in Article 4, Section 4.1

B. Remove for cause the Town Manager, as well as members of all other boards, commissions
and committees appointed by the Select Board, after notice and hearing, in accordance with
State law, Town Ordinance and this Charter. At either party's request, sworn testimony and
the opportunity for cross-examination of witnesses will be allowed. The hearing will be held in
executive session unless the party charged requests in writing that it be held in public.

C. Create, change and abolish offices. departments and committees, other than the offices,
and departments established by this Charter. The Select Board may assign additional
functions or duties to offices, departments or committees established by this Charter, but
rmay not discontinue or assign to any office, department or committee any function or duty
assigned by this Charter to a particular office, department or committee.

D. Inquire into the conduct of any office, department, board. commission or committee and
conduct investigations into municipal affairs, following policies established for such an inquiry.

E. Call the Annual Town Meeting and any additional town meetings required and prepare the
warrants for the meetings.

F. Adopt an annual budaget and recommend it at the Annual Town Meeting for approval.
G. Provide for ap agnual audit.

H. Eill vacancies for elected positions by calling a special election as described in
Section 2.3 above, with the exception of the Budget Committee and School Board
members.

I. Provide oversight. liaison. and leadership to the volunteer committees, boards and advisory
groups which serve to accomplish the town's needs and purposes.

J. Bathe sole neqotiating and contract authority for the Town of Eliot in labor negotiations.

K. Counsider consent agreements for [and use violation, only when such a violation has been
brought to the Select Board by the Code Enforcement Officer.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2635

2.8 Prohibitions

The Select Board shall direct to the Town Manager all inquines, concerns, or complaints regarding the
administration, delivery, and/or procurement of any Town or municipal services, any Town employee,
Board or Committee, or individual members thereof. Neither the Select Board nor individual members of
the Board shall, either publicly or privately, instruct, order, direct, or make any demands of any Town
official or employee, who is subordinate of the Town Manager regarding the delivery or procurement of
Town services or with respect to their duties as a Town official or employes.

A. Appointments and Removals. Neither the Select Board nor any of its members shall dictate

4



the appointment or removal of any administrative officials, department heads or employees
whom the Town Manager or other persons in authority are empowered to appoint or employ.

B. Interference with Administration. The Select Board and its individual members shall deal
with Department Heads or employees through the Town Manager or such other person as
directed by the Town Manager. Neither the Select Board, nor its members, shall give
orders to any such official or employee either publicly or privately.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2635

2.9 Vacancies; Forfeiture of Office; Filling of Vacancies

A Vacancies. The office of a Select Board member shall become vacant by one or more of the
following means:

. Non-acceptance;

. Resignation;

. Death;

. Failure to qualify for the office within 10 days after written demand by the Municipal
Officers;

. Failure of the municipality to elect a person to this office;

. Forfeiture of the office;

. Recall and removal; or

8. Any other manner authorized by this Charter;

Bwpo o

~l O

B. Forfeiture of Office. Refer to Article 7 sec. 11

C. Filling of Vacancies. A vacancy on the board must be filled in accordance with section 2.3.

D. Tie d election result, The Select Board shall schedule a special run - off election to be held
within 60 days.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2602

2.10 Procedure

A. Meetings. The Select Board shall, at its organizational meeting or as soon thereafter as
possible, establish a time and place for holding its regular meetings and shall meet regulary-at
leasttwice-a-menth as needed to perform the business of the Town. Special meetings shall
be determined by the Select Board and shall be held at such time and place as is legal and
proper to conduct the necessary business at hand. All meetings of the Select Board shall be
open to the public; however, the Select Board may, by a three-fifths vote, discuss matters in
an executive session to the extent that the matter is a permitted deliberation pursuant to Title
1, Section 405(6) Maine Revised Statutes, and in accordance with the procedures specified in
that statute or any other applicable existing statute. Final action on any matter taken up in
such closed sessions, except those matters which are permitted or required by law to be
acted upon in closed session, shall not be taken by the Select Board until such matter is
placed on the agenda of a regular or special meeting and voted upon thereafter, unless an
emergency exists and three Board members vote to suspend the rules to add the item to the
agenda.

B. Rules. Record Keeping and Minutes. The Select Board shall keep an accurate permanent
recording of all its meetings and maintain a record of its proceedings; such recordings and

minutes to be public records.

The Select Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings which shall include the meeting time,
place, and the name of each member in attendance and member{s) absent, a list of all
correspondence, the subject matter under discussion and all motions made and seconded and
by whom, along with a roll call vote on all motions listing the name, his or her vote, and reason

5



for abstention, If applicable. The minutes shall be written in such a way as to provide sufficient
background to understand the reasons for the motions, proposals, resolution, votes and all
other actions of the Board, being careful to convey exactly what the majority decision is,
however the entire discussion (verbatim) does not need to be recorded. The minutes shall be
written or typed legibly and become the permanent record of the actions of the Select Board.

C. Voting and Quorum. Voting, except on procedural motions, shall be by roll call and the ayes
and nays and abstentions shall be identified and recorded in the minutes. Three members of the
Select Board shall constitute a quorum. Any action of the Board receiving less than 3 affirmative
votes may be brought up for reconsideration by any member at the next regulariy scheduled
meeting. Each Board member in attendance shall vote on allissues and questions presented
for vote except when a valid reason to abstain clearly exists. If any member does abstain from a
vote, other than because of a valid reason to abstain, including the appearance of a conflict, he
or she shall be considered to have cast a vote in the affirmative and the record shall so show.

D. Training. Select Board members shall receive mandatory or statutory training on
beardsmanship board best practices and municipal goverance as provided by the Maine
Municipal Association and Town Attorney, and may participate in other training opportunities,
atthe Town's expense and the Select Board's discretion.

2.11 General and Administrative Ordinances

The authority for the enactment of all ordinances authorized to t>e enacted by u,e municipality shall be
held in the legislative body, Town meeting forum, except for emergency ordinances as provided in
Section 2.15 of this Article. Except for emergency ordinances, or those with dates specified by statute,
ordinances shall become effective seven days after adoption unless otherwise specified therein.

No Town ordinances, with the exception of emergency ordinances, shall be enacted unless the total vote
is atleast 10% of the number of votes cast in the Town at the last gubemnatorial election. When brought to
atown meeting, an emergency ordinance may be adopted or rejected with or without amendment.

state Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 3001

2.12 Articles for the Warrant

The Select Board, on its own initiative, may, by majority vote, place on the Town Warrant any article
relating to the health, safety and welfare of the municipality.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2523

2.13 Initiative Petitions for Articles In the Warrant

Any qualified voter may make arequest to the Select Board to place an article onthe Town Warrant and
shall present in written form the substance of the article. Should the Select Board decide against placing
the article onthe Warrant, citizen petitioners may submit a written petition with voter signatures equal to
atleast ten (10) percent of the number of votes cast in the Town at the last gubernatorial election. After
certification of said petition by the Town Clerk, the Select Board shall include that particular article inthe
next Warrantissued as presented by the petitioner or-shall may call a special Town Meeting for its

consideration within-80-days— Recommendation from Town boards or committees is not required.

If an issue has been submitted to the voters by referendum, either as a citizen's initiative or by the
Select Board, then the substantially same issue may not be resubmitted to the voters for ene-{Hyear
seventeen (17) months from the referendum vote, regardless of the outcome of that vote, as long as
it met the voting requirement of Article 2.11.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2522



2.14 Emergency Ordinances

To meet a public emergency affecting life, health, safety, property or the public peace, the Select Board
may adopt one or more emergency ordinances in the form and manner prescribed for the ordinances
generally, but such emergency ordinances may not levy taxes or authorize the borrowing of money.
When brought to a Town meeting, an emergency ordinance may be adopted or rejected with or without
amendment. It shall become effective upon adoption or at such later time as it may specify. An
Emergency ordinance so enacted shall be automatically repealed after the time specified in the ordinance,
but not later than the sixty-first (61st) day following the date on which it was adopted. This shall not
prevent reenactment of the ordinance in the manner specified in this section or at a Town meeting if the
emergency still exists. An emergency ordinance may also be repealed by adoption of a repealing
ordinance in the same manner specified in this section for adoption of emergency ordinances.

2.15 Authenticationand Recording of Ordinances

All ordinances and resolutions adopted by the Select Board shall be authenticated by the signatures of
the Select Board members and recorded in full by the Town Clerk ina properly indexed book kept for

this purpose.

All ordinances and resolutions adopted at the Annual Town Meeting, or any special Town Meeting
shall be authenticated by the Town Clerk and recorded in full by the Town Clerk in a properly
indexed book kept for this purpose, and retained permanently, in accordance with State Statute.

All authenticated ordinances will appear in their final form on the Town of Eliot website initially as
a notification on Clerk's page and incorporated into the codification platform as soon as possible.

2.16 Codification of Ordinances

Within-three-years after adoption of this Charter, the Select Board shall provide for the preparation of a
general codification of all ordinances and resolutions having the force and effect of law. The general
codification shall be adopted by a majority vote of the Select Board and shall be inloese-leafform-

i ' kept as an official hardcopy and as a file on the Town website under the direction
and control of the Town Clerk and any amendments thereto, and with such codes of technical
regulations, Town policies, agreements or contracts and other rules and regulations as the Select Board
may specify. This compilation shall be known as the Eliot Code.

The Eliot Code shall include all new ordinances and other pertinent material, including an indexed
record of rescinded ordinances and other changes and at least every ten years shall be reviewed and
updated. Copies of the Code and of new ordinances as enacted shall be made available on request to
officials, libraries and public offices for public reference, and made available on the Town website or for
purchase at a reasonable price fixed by the Select Board for a printed copy.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 3001.



ARTICLE 3
TOWN MANAGER

Section 3.1 Appointment; Qualifications; Compensation
The Select Board shall choose the Town Manager solely on the basis of executive and

administrative qualifications, with special reference to actual experience in, or knowledge of, the
duties of office under State law.

He/she should possess the following knewledge-skills-and-abilities:

TFhereugh knowledge of public administration, including personnel management, financial
management lnvolvmg dlrect experlence W|th Munlmpal Fund Accountmg er—theeqewalen%

RegeFeLanel—EedeFaLe#ﬁener—The Town Manager must be knowledgeable and praotlced in’

up-to-date information technology, methods, and skills. The Select Board shall determine
appropriate requirements for seeking candidates for Eliot Town Manager, it should include
but not limited education, experience, and training. The Select Board, when developing
criteria should consider market conditions, organizational needs and seek input from staff,
as well as the public.

The Select Board may create and implement a succession plan for a present employee
who has the appropriate experience and training. All employees must be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to participate in a succession plan and the plan must be discussed
publicly before a final conditional offer is made to the employee for promotion to Town
Manager.




The Town Manager shall not serve as a member of the Select Board, as Assessor, a member of the
School Board, or any other Town Board, Committee or Commission, but may attend all such meetings
ex officio.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2632

Former members of the Select Board may be appointed Town Manager when it is in the best interest
of the Town and compliant with all applicable ethic laws, guidelines and best practices. even-if

A ata e P I a¥all & OT N aYa AN a &
= i



State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2606
3.2, Appointment Process
The procedure leading to the appointment of a Town Manager shall be as follows:

A. The Select Board may consult with the Maine Municipal Association regarding
recruiting procedures and make such Information available to the Search Committee.

B. A Search Committee of not less than five (5) and not more than seven (7) town residents
shall be appointed by the Select Board within thirty (30} calendar days of the office of Town
Manager becoming vacant or within thirty (30) calendar days' of notice to the Select Board
that the office of Town Manager will become vacant. In addition, one member of the Select
Board shall serve as an ex-officio member of the search committee with a voice but no

vote,

1. All meetings of the Search Committee that deal with personal and privileged
information shall be conducted in Executive Session and all information and
discussions are confidential to the extent allowed by law. (1 MRS 405 (6) (A))

2. The Search Committee shall choose from its members a Chair, who is
respensible for preparing the agendas, conducting the meetings and conveying to
the Select Board the progress of the search.

3. The Search Committee shall also choose from its members a vice-Chair who shall act
inthe event the Chair is absent or unable to carry out the duties of the Chair.

4. The Search Committee shall choose a Secretary from its members to record
the minutes of the meetings.

5. The Select Board shall present the Search Committee with a proposed job description
and job advertisement for the position of Town Manager for review. The Search Committee will
raview, edit and return the job description and job advertisement, and make
recommendations of how to post the advertisement to the Select Board for approval.

6. After the close of the application period, the Search Committee shall review all
applications received for the Town Manager position, assuring that the standards set out
in this Charter and staie taw are met and that the applications mest the requirements of

the job description.

7. The Search Commitiee shall present to the Select Board a final list of candidates
for the position of Town Manager.

8. The Select Board shallinterview in person, in executive session, each of the
finalists for the position of Town Manager.

9. Appointment of a Town Manager requires amajority vote of the full Select Board.

10. In the event the Select Board is unable to reach a majority for appointing a
Town Manager, the position shall be advertised again and the search re-started.

11. Ifthe office of Town Manager becomes vacant within 90 calendar days of
appointment, the Select Board may choose a new Town Manager from the list of finalists

in the previous search. 1



3.3. Powers and Duties
Except where specifically exempted, the Town Manager shall:
A Be the chief executive and administrative official of the municipality;

8. Be responsible to the Select Board for the administration of all Town Departments and
employees;

C. Ensure proper execution and adherence to all ordinances, Town procedures and policies
of the municipality;

D. Serve inany legal office or as the head of any de
this Charler or State Statute when so directed by

nt not prohibited by
t Board,

employees and otheroffigi
e Town and State law;

H. Attend all meetings of the
the Select Board may designa
discussions;

rticle 6, FmanCIaI Procedures, of this Charter, and be
ration after adoption;

, Fesidents and taxpayers with matters involving inquiries or

M. Have exclusive authority to remove, in accordance with the Town Personnel Policy and
applicable union and empfoyment contracts, all persons whom he or she is authorized to
appoint, and report an the removals to the Select Board;,

N. Not interfere with the operation of the various departments of the Town except through the
Department Head and shall not independently direct employees except in the absence of a
perseon in authority;

0. Shall perform such duties as may be prescribed by this Charter or required by the Select
Board, not inconsistent with this Charter; and

11



P. Prepare an annual Town Report pursuant to Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2801.
State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2636
3.4. Removal from Office

The Town Manager may be removed, placed on administrative leave, or suspended for cause by the Select
Board in accordance with the following procedure:

A The Select Board shall filte—with notify in writing the Town Clerk within twenty-four hours a
writtep-preliminary-resolution-setting-forth-the spesificreasensfor of the propesedremeval Select
Board-actien, a copy of the action shall be delivered to the Town Manager within forty-eight hours

five{5})-business—days— by electronic mail or hand delivered or through any other reasonable
manner. If the Town Manager evades or refuses to accept the notification the Town may deliver
the notice to the home address on record via USPS registered mail

B. The Town Manager may within twenty-{20})-business ten (10) calendar days of receiving
delivery of the resolution, reply in writing and may request a hearing. The Town Manager shall
specify whether that hearing is to be held in public or executive session.

C. Upon request for a hearing, the Select Board shall hold one not earlier than ten(10)
business-calendar days after the request is filed received by the Town Clerk and not
later than twenty(20} business calendar days.

D. After the hearing, or at the expiration of the time permitted the Town Manager to request the
hearing, the Select Board may adopt or reject the resolution of removal.

E. Removal of a Town Manager requires a majority vote of the full seated Select Board
that good cause to remove the Manager exists.

F. The Select Board may suspend place the Town Manager on administrative leave from all
duties inthe-preliminarnyresolution- by a majority vote of the seated members of the Select
Board. butinno-eventshallthe The Town Manager's salary compensation and benefits will
not be affected until the final resolution of removal has been adopted, or unless the
municipality has been informed or made aware the Town Manager has been tried and
convicted of a felony in this or other jurisdictions.

3.5. Absence or Disability

In the temporary absence or disability of the Town Manager, the Town Manager shall designate,
subject to approval of the Select Board, a properly qualified person to perform the duties of the
Town Manager and the Select Board shall fix his/her replacement's compensation. While so
acting. he/she shall exercise the powers and perform the same duties of the Town Manager.
During such absence or disability, the Select Board may revoke such designation at any time and
appoint another qualified person to serve until the Town Manager shall return or his/her
absence/disability shall cease. No member of the Select Board shall be appointed to serve as
Town Manager during such absence or disability. For absences 10 business days or less the
Town Manager may designate an Acting Town Manager without Board approval. Refer to Town
Manager contract for compliance.

Temporary, for the purposes of this Section, is defined as not more than thirty (30) calendar days.
After thirty (30} calendar days the Select Board by majority vote, must decide to continue the
temporary situation or take steps to ensure a more permanent situation.

After (6) months of the Town Manager's uninterrupted j‘riability to perform the duties of Town



Manager, the position wili be deemed vacant, unless otherwise required by law and the Select
Board shall evaluate the performance and character qualifications of the Acting Town Manager for
permanent position or begin the search for a new Town Manager. Refer to Article 3 sec 2, Town

Manager Appointment Process.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 2634.

13



ARTICLE 4
ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION

PART A. - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 4.1 Appointments

The Select Board shall, by majority vote, at no later than their third regular meeting following the annual
Town Meeting, review, appoint, renew, or reappoint all necessary Town officials as provided by general
statute, this Charter, and Town ordinances.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A. MRS, Sections 2601

The Select Board will appoint members to standing and ad hoc committees whenever an opening
occurs, shall appoint members of the Planning Board and Board of Appeals, which shall have such
powers and perfom, such duties as are provided for by the laws of the State of Maine, this Charter and
other town ordinances, and shall appoint members to committees created by the Select Board. All board
and committee appointments shall be made by rules adopted by the Select Board.

The Town Manager shall appoint department heads subject to confirmation by the Select Board, and shall
have the power to remove such appointees when necessary and in accordance with the laws of the State
of Maine, this Charter and town ordinances. All other employees shall be appointed or may be removed
by the Town Manager or his or her authorized designee. The Town Manager shall provide a list annually
of all employees or board/committee members who appear or have appeared on the Town payroll during
the previous calendar year each February including their annual compensation.

4.2 Creation of Departments

The Select Board may establish departments, offices, or agencies in addition to those created by this
Charter and may prescribe the functions of all departments, offices or agencies; except that no function
assigned by this Charter to a particular department, office or agency may be discontinued or assigned to
any other, unless this Charter specifically so provides.

4.3 Duties and Obligations of Office

In addition to those duties and responsibilities established by statute, it is provided that the Town Clerk,
Tax Collector and Treasurer shall maintain their offices at the Town Office. All current documents, books
and public records pertaining to their office shall be maintained at the Town Office, and all business
transacted on behalf of the Town by the Town Clerk, Tax Collector and Treasurer shall be carried on at
the Town Office. except for those duties required to be carried on elsewhere.

4.4 Bonds

The Select Board shall require a Surety Bond from all persons trusted with the collection, custody, or
disbursements of any moneys of the Town. The Town shall pay the cost of providing the Surety Bond.

4.5 Department Heads

Alldepartments and offices shall be administered by—a-Bepardment-Head appeinted by the Town

Manager or by an appointed “Department Head";-and or Department Managers are subject to the to
the direction and supervision of the Town Manager except as set forth in 4.5{A) below regarding the Fire
Chief. The Town Manager may appoint himself or herself as a Department Head.

14



4.5(A) Fire Chief

The Fire Chief is elected by the Fire Department membership. As an elected department head, the Fire
Chief shall be responsible to the Town Manager in an administrative matters, including but not limited to
all federal and state workplace laws, budget administration and public safety policies.

PART B. - PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

4.6 Employment Policy

f the Town of Eliot to employ,
religious creed, national origin,
y, military status or political or

| qualifications.

The Town of Eliot is an equal opportunity employer. It snat1 De the polic
appoint, assign and promote personnel, without regard to race, ¢
gender, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, physical or mental d
religious opinions or affiliations unless related to bona fide

4,7 Personnel Director

The Town Manager shall serve as Personnel Dirg
Board appoint someane to serve as Personnel DIt

4.8 Adoption of Personnel Policy

The Town shall adopt a Personnel Polig

The Select Board may appoint an ad hoc o
Policy.

4.9 Specially Classifi

the Personnel Palicy, except where the Policy
all be no exemption pertaining to equat
rsennel Policy for any person or position.

empted in this section shall be subject to the Personnel Policy and the
ereto except to the extent that the specially classified employee has a
nd conditions.

rules and regulations pettaining:
written agreement with of

Inaddition, the Select Board is authorized, upon recommendation from the Town Manager, to offer
special employment benefits or conditions which vary from the provisions of the Personnel Policy. Any
such variations or differences from the Personnel Policy shall be in writing and retained in the personnel
file of that employee and shall be reviewed annually.

15



PART C. -ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION

410 Assessor
The Assessor of Taxes shall be an appointed position. The Select Board shall not act as Assessors.

The Assessor appointed by the Town Manager shall have all the legal qualifications for this position. The
Town Manager shall take into consideration, prior to appointment, the skills necessary to be successful.

The Assessor shall perform all Assessment duties and responsibilities provided for Assessors under the
Jaws of the State of Maine.

State Law Reference: Title 36, MRS, Section 701etseq.
4.11 Assessment Review

Property owners have the right to appeal indiviaual assessments and are entitled to (1) meet with the
Assessor; (2) review assessment (3) with unsatisfactory results at the municipal level may appeal the
decision and request a hearing before the County Commissioners.

PARTD. - LEGAL

The Select Board will retain a lawyer or law firm licensed in the State of Maine from time to time to
provide legal advice to the town. The Town Attorney shall serve as chief legal adviser to the Select
Board, the Town Manager, as well as all Town Departments, Boards, Agencies, Committees and
Commissions subject to the approval of the Town Manager. The Town Attorney shall represent the Town
in all legal proceedings when directed by the Select Board or their agent and shall perform any other
duties prescribed by ordinance and law, unless-otherwise as determined by the Select Board.

PART E. - APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Town Officials, in addition to those positions provided for elsewhere in this Charter or State Statute,
shall be appointed by the Town Manager subject to confirmation by the Select Board. Said
appointments shall be acted upon expediently and no later than three months from the scheduled end
of term ne-later than-the-third {3 Select Board meeting-after the-Annaual Fown-Meeting. Terms of
office for appointed positions shall be defined by the appointing authority. However, an appointee will
remain on a board or commission for an additional three months beyond the original appointment with
full power and authority unless a resignation has been accepted, a replacement has been appointed or
the board or committee (ad-hoc only) has been dissolved by a formal vote of the Select Board. The
appointed officials shall be duly sworn in prior to sitting or acting in their position.

4.12 Job Descriptions and Qualifications

The Town Manager shall maintain job descriptions for all Town of Eliot employees as well as
qualifications required by Maine State Law.

4,13 Compensation
The Town shall provide for compensation to be paid to the appointed officials, including boards and

committees, for the performance of their duties as determined when recommended by the Town
Manager with approval by majority vote of the Select Board.

1€



ARTICLE 5

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

17



ARTICLE 6
FINANCIAL PROCEDURES

Section 6.1 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Town shall begin on the first day of July and end on the last day of June ofthe
following year inclusive.
State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 5651

6.2 Budget

The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all Town funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal
year, and except as required by this Charter, shall be in such form as the Town Manager deems desirable
orthe Select Board or any adopted budget referendum ordinance may require. In organizing the budget
the Town Manager shall utilize the most feasible combination of expenditure classification by fund,
organization unit, program purpose or activity, and object. It shall begin with a clear general summary of its
contents: shall show in detail all estimated revenue, and all proposed expenditures, including debt service,
for the ensuing fiscal year; and be so arranged as to show comparative figures for actual and estimated
revenue and expenditures of the current fiscal year, and actual revenue and expenditures of the preceding
fiscal year.

6.3 Budget Committee

There shall be a Budget Committee consisting of (7) seven members elected for staggered tnree {3) year
terms. The Budget Committee shall have the responsibility of reviewing and evaluating the Town Budget.
This Committee shall function as a sub-committee of, and report back to, the legislative body. The Budget
Committee shall actindependently from the Select Board and the Town Manager. The Budget Committee
shall, by majority vote of the committee members present and voting, make recommendations regarding
and included in each warrant article having a financial impact whether at the Annual Meeting or ata
Special Town Meeting.

iot—Direct conflict with Article 2.7 J and is
not common practice for a municipality to other than the SB or TM at the direction of the SB negotiate
labor contracts.

Vacancies for the Budget Committee will be filled at the next scheduled Annual Town Election for the
remainder of the term assigned to the vacated position. A quorum will be considered a majority plus
one of all seated members, not to be less that two. If the number of members falls below three for any
reason or circumstance, the remaining member(s) can request the Select Board appoint up to two
members to serve until the Annual Election is held.

6.4 Submission of Budget, Budget Message, and Budget Schedule

Not later than the firstweek in January, the Town Manager shall submit to the Select Board and Budget
Committee a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year with an explanatory message and calendar
schedule for the entire Budget preparation.

The Manager's budget report shall explain the budget both in fiscal terms and in terms of the work
programs. |t shall outline his or her proposed financial plan for the Town for the ensuing fiscal year,
describe the important features of the budget, indicate any major changes from the current year the

1€



financial plan, expenditures and revenues together with the reasons for such changes, summarize the
Town's debt position and include such other material as the Manager deems desirable or the Select Board
ar Budget Committee shall request.

19



6.5Budget Review Process and Schedule

The Select Board shall review the Town Manager's proposed budget when presented and shall
reconsider the budget for final approval after the Budget Committee has reported its recommendations to
the Select Board; such final approval shall be in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 6.6

below.

The Budget Committee shall meet during the development of the proposed budget. The Budget
Committee shall meet to review the proposed budget prepared by the Town Manager and to make
recommendations concerning such budget. Prior to the adoption of a final budget by the Select Board, the
Budget Committee shall meet and adopt recommendations concerning sueh the proposed final budget to be
included in aTFewn the proposed budget or financial warrant(s) to be considered at the Town Meeting by
referendum vote.

The Town Manager shall provide copies of supporting plan documents for the proposed budget as
requested by the Budget Committee. The documents shall be submitted to the Budget Committee within-

five {5} business-days-efthereguest timely. If a document is not available, a written explanation as to

why it is not available shall be provided within said five (5) business days.

The Budget Committee will deliver their recommendations, suggestions, or concerns by the

first Wednesday in March. The Select Board will consider those, and any citizen generated

concerns received in writing at their first meeting in March and do so in time to fac1lllate the
referendum ballot process by the Town Clerk.

B. Publication of the Budget, The Select Board shall publish a general summary along with the
detailed budget and the recommendations of the Budget Committee in the Town Report.
Copies of the budget and the Budget Committee's recommendations shall be available at the
Town Office upon request and on Town website following the final approval of the budget
warrant by the Select Board as per the Town Manager's schedule. The Select board shall hold
a public hearing on the proposed budget at least 30-days 15 days in advance of the
Referendum Vote.

C. Vote on Budget. The budget shall be voted upon by Referendum Vote at the Annual Town
Meeting through separate appropriation articles consistent with the proposed budget format
and any adopted budget referendum ordinance.

The Select Board and Budget Committee recommended vote count numbers and dollar
amounts only shall be published on the warrant with the article.




D. Budget funding provision in the event an appropriation article is not approved,

In the event an appropriation article is not approved, the apprepriation for the iImmediately
preceding year shall constitute the appropriation for the following fiscal year. In the event an

21



appropriation article is not approved, and the appropriation did not appear on the ballot for the
immediately preceding year or it was submitted by voter petition, no appropriation shall be
deemed to have been made. The Select Board may call one additional referendum election in
the same fiscal year to vote on appropriation arlicles that were not approved or that are for a
similar purpose.

E. Adoption.

1. Adoption of the annual Municipal Budget shall constitute appropriations of the amounts
specified therein as expenditures from the funds indicated, and shall constitute a levy of the
property tax thereby required. A copy of the budget as finally adopted by Town Meeting or
Referendum Vote shall be prepared by the Town Manager and submitted to the Select
Board for certification. The certified property tax levy shall be distributed by the Town
Manager to the Town Clerk for record retention and to the Assessor for the proper
calculation of the tax rate and tax levy.

2. Ifthe Budget has not been finally approved before the Fiscal Year begins, the Town
is authorized to continuing spending from an Unassigned Fund balance an amount up
to 1/12 of the budgeted amount of the preceding fiscal year per month until a new
budget is approved ata Town Meeting.

6.7 Administration of Budget

Before the beginning of the fiscal year, the head of each office, department or agency shall submit to
the Town Manager, when required by the Town Manager, a work program for the year. This program
shall show the requested allotments of appropriations for such office, department or agency, by defined
period, for the entire fiscal year. The Town Manager shall review the requested allotments in the light of
the work program of the office, department or agency concerned, and may revise, alter or change such
allotments before approving them. The aggregate of such allotments shall not exceed the total of voted
approved appropriations available to said office, department or agency for the budget year.

6.8 Tax Anticipation Borrowing Guidelines

Inthe event that the Select Board determines it necessary to borrow money in anticipation of taxes,
the Select Board shall adhere to the guidelines for Tax Anticipation Note Borrowing as detailed in MRS 30-
A, Section 5771. The following guidefines shall be followed:

A Invitations to bid shall be extended to lending institutions at the same time.

B. Invitations shall be dated and delivered to the invited lending institutions at least ten (10)
business days prior to the bid opening.

C. Invitation to bid shall specify the maximum amount to be borrowed;
D. The method of borrowing shall be clearly defined; i.e.," as needed or lump sum”;

E. Invitation shall specify planned maturity dates of said notes, and shall require the option
to prepay without penalty;

F. Invitation shall show estimated planned borrowing and repayment schedule. (Does not
apply if borrowing is on a lump-sum basis.);

G. Invitation shall state date, time and place bids are due, and shall indicate date bids will
be opened and awarded;



H. Invitation shall inform of the Town's right to accept or reject any or all bids, provided that it is in
the Town's best interest to do so:

. Bidder shall be asked to submit interest rates in multiples of one- hundredth (1/100) of
one percent (0.01%);and

J. The Town must specify the method by which interest shall be calculated:;

. (redundant and

State Law Reference: Title I, MRS, Section 401

6.10 Lapse of Appropriations

General fund appropriations, except an appropriation for a capital expenditure, shall lapse at the close of
the fiscal year to the extent that they have not been expended or encumbered, or except as prohibited by
law, as set forth in this section. Such funds shall be transferred to the Unassigned Funds account. An
appropriation for a capital expenditure shall continue in force until the purpose for which it was made has
been accomplished or abandoned. The Select Board may, on advice of the Town Manager, carry forward
unexpended general fund appropriations, as deemed appropriate, to the same department for the next

fiscal year.

State Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 5801
6.11 Annual Audit
The Town Manager shall each year, by November 1%, engage a certified public accounting firm, with
the approval of the Select Board, for the purpose of conducting the annual audit of the prior fiscal year's

municipal finances, as authorized by law.

étate Law Reference: Title 30-A, MRS, Section 5823

N
W



Audited Financial Statements
and Other Financial Information

Town of Eliot, Maine

June 30, 2023

& COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants.

Proven Expertise & Integrity



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
CONTENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1-4
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 5-12
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GOVERNMENT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT A - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 13- 14
STATEMENT B - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 15-16
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT C - BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 17

STATEMENT D - RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 18

STATEMENT E - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS 19

STATEMENT F - RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES 20

STATEMENT G - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 21

STATEMENT H - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 22
STATEMENT [ - STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 23
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 24 -63

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DESCRIPTION 64



SCHEDULE 1 - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY

BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 65

SCHEDULE 2 - SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
PENSION LIABILITY 66
SCHEDULE 3 - SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION 67
SCHEDULE 4 - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY 68

| SCHEDULE 5 - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND
RELATED RATIOS 69
SCHEDULE 6 - SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB 70
NOTES TO REQUIRE.D SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 71

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DESCRIPTION 72

SCHEDULE A - SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS - GENERAL
FUND 73-74

SCHEDULE B - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 75

SCHEDULE C - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 76
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DESCRIPTION 77

SCHEDULE D - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS 78 - 80

SCHEDULE E - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 81-83
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS DESCRIPTION 84

SCHEDULE F - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL
PROJECTS FUNDS | 85 - 87



SCHEDULE G - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 88 - 90

PERMANENT FUNDS DESCRIPTION 91

SCHEDULE H - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR PERMANENT
S FUNDS 92

SCHEDULE | - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR

PERMANENT FUNDS 93
GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS DESCRIPTION 94
SCHEDULE J - SCHEDULE OF GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION 95

SCHEDULE K - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION , 96

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 97 - 98



Prum Mym‘tve & !ntegﬂ;y

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Selectboard
Town of Eliot
Eliot, Maine

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Town of Eliot, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Eliot, Maine’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Town of Eliot, Maine as of June 30, 2023 and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Eliot, Maine
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and for_the design, implementation and maintenance of

3 Old Oschard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
‘Tel: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 929-4609
: www.thrsmith.com

1



internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Town of Eliot, Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial -
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a materiad, misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting
from error, as . fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mlsrepresentatlons or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is.a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements. : '

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

o exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

«  obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Eliot, Maine’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financia!
statements.



e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise doubt about the Town of Eliot,
Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information,
pension and OPEB information on pages 5 through 12 and 65 through 71 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing . the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was c¢onducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Eliot, Maine’s basic financial
statements. The Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund, combining and
individual nonmaijor fund financial statements and capital asset schedules are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund and combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

.

D



Other Reporting Required by GcS'vemmen‘f'-.A_ uditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated March 6, 2024, on our consideration of the Town of Eliot, Maine’s internatl
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Eliot, Maine’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Eliot,
Maine’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Buxton, Maine
March 6, 2024



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2023

(UNAUDITED)

The foillowing management's discussion and analysis of the Town of Eliot,
Maine's financial performance provides an overview of the Town's financial activities for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read it in conjunction with the Town of
Eliot, Maine's financial statements.

Financial Startement Overview

The Town of Eliot's basic financial statements include the following components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also includes required supplementary information
which consists of the general fund budgetary comparison schedule, pension and OPEB
information and other supplementary information which includes combining and other
schedules. '

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include financial information in two differing views:
the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. These
basic financial statements also include the notes to financial statements that explain in
more detail certain information in the financial statements and also provide the user with
the accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financia! statements provide a broad view of the Town's
operations in a manner that is similar to private businesses. These statements provide
both short-term as well as long-term information in regard to the Town’s financial
position. These financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. This measurement focus takes into account all revenues and expenses
associated with the fiscal year regardiess of when cash is received or paid. The
government-wide financial statements include the following two statements:

The Statement of Net Position - this statement presents alfl of the government's
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources with the difference being reported as net position.

The Statement of Activities - this statement presents information that shows how
the government’s net position changed during the period. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.



Both of the above-mentioned financial statements have separate columns for the
two different types of Town activities. The types of activities presented for the Town of
Eliot are:

o Governmental activities - The activities in this section are mostly
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (federal and state
grants). Most of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental
activities, which include general government, public safety, public works,
recreation and culture, health and sanitation, education and unclassified.

. Business-type activities - These activities are normally intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and/or charges
to external users for goods and/or services. These activities for the Town
of Eliot include the sewer fund.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of
Eliot, like other local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with financial related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of
Eliot can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds: Most of the basic services provided by the Town are
financed through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for
essentially the same functions reported in governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources. They also focus on the balance of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information will be useful in evaluating the
government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this approach, revenues are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible
to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilittes are incurred and due. These
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town’s finances to assist in
determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the
current needs of the Town.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's nearterm financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. These



reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each governmental
fund’s financial statement.

The Town of Eliot presents three columns in the governmental funds balance
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances. The Town’s major governmental funds are the general fund and the
Route 236 TIF District. All other funds are shown as nonmajor and are combined in the
“Other Governmental Funds” column on these statements,

The general fund is the only fund for which the Town legally adopted a budget.
The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General
Fund provides a comparison of the originai and final budget and the actual expenditures
for the current year.,

Proprietary Funds: The Town of Eliot maintains one proprietary fund, the sewer
fund. This fund is used to show activities that operate more like those of commercial
enterprises. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide financial
statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting.
No reconciliation is needed between the government-wide financial statements for
business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information, that is essential o a full understanding
of the data provided in the Government-Wide and the Fund Financial Statements. The
Notes to Financial Statements can be found following the Statement of Cash Flows -
Proprietary Funds.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information, which includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General Fund, Schedule of Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions - Pension, Schedule of Changes
in Net OPEB Liability, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios,
Schedule of Contributions - OPEB and Notes to Required Supplementary Information.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information follows the required supplementary information.
These combining and other schedules provide information in regard to nonmajor funds,
other detailed budgetary information.for the general fund and capital asset activity.

‘. b



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the
Town's governmental activities. The Town's total governmental net position increased
by $2,198,966 from $17,667,015 to $19,865,981. The Town’s total business-type net
position increased by $438,369 from $3,121,687 to $3,560,036.

Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation or other legal requirements - increased for governmental activities to a
balance of $8,089,616 at the end of this year. Unrestricted net position for business-
type activities decreased to a balance of $891,488.

Assets

Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets - Capital
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resocurces
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Prepaid Taxes

Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Table 1
Town of Eliot, Maine
Net Position
June 30,

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

2022
2023 {Restated) 2023 2022

$16,716,160 $14,328132 § 891488 § 1,067,588
5,209,660 5,366,566 4,767,003 3,440,592

21,925,729 19,694,697 5,658,491 4,508,180

506,840 576,037 - -
51,129 80,019 - -
557,069 636,066 - -
755,643 488,501 120,759 80,341
1,427,231 772,458 1,977,696 1,306,172

2,182 874 1,260,959 2,008,455 1,386,513

18,569 25,006 - -
361,387 1,322,021 - -
63,987 53,953 - -

433,943 1,402,779 - -

4,711,791 4,716,666 2,668,548 2,054,079
7,064,674 6,470,287 - -
8,089,616 ° 6,480,082 891,488 1,087,588

$19865981 $17667015 $ 3,660,036 $ 3,121,667




Revenues and Expenses

Revenues for the Town's governmental activities increased by 2.00%, while total
expenses decreased by 0.41%. The biggest increase in revenues was in operating
grants and contributions, offset by a decrease in miscellaneous. The largest decrease
in expenses was in unclassified. Revenues for the Town’s business-type activities
increased by 14.46% and expenses increased by 31.71%.

Table 2
Town of Eliot, Maine
Change in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30,

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for senvices $ 787179 $ 830472 $ 408,138 $ 676,735
Operating grants and contributions 32,136 735,507 i - -
General revenues:
Property taxes 15,618,311 15,160,105 - -
Excise taxes 1,599,804 1,686,109 - -
Grants and contributions not '
restricted to specific programs 1,613,589 1,457,749 - -
Miscellaneous 508,766 (127,673) 3,561 9,802
Total revenues 20,137,785 19,742 369 501,699 586,537
Expenses
General government 1,778,141 1,453,732 - -
Public safety 1,939,414 . 1,787 536 - -
Public works 1,688,557 1,343,622 - -
Recreation and culture 396,908 378,254 - -
Health and sanitation 331,623 269,856 - -
Education 10,660,451 10,518,719 - -
County tax 500,415 504,239 - -
Unclassified 202,667 933,379 -
Capital outlay - 392,184 - -
Interest on long-term debt 13,972 2,740 18,154 18,953
Sewer - - 471,847 353,089
Total expenses 17,512,148 17,584,161 490,001 372,042
Excess (deficiency) before transfers 2,625,637 2,158,208 11,698 214,495
Transfers (428,671) (341,855) 426,671 341,855
Change in net position 2,198,966 1,816,353 438,369 556,350
Net position - July 1, Restated " 17,667,015 15,850,862 3,121,667 2,665,317
-« Net position - June 30 $19,865981 $17.667,015 $3,560,036  $3,121,667




Financial Analysis of the Town’s Fund Statements

Governmental funds: The financial reporting focus of the Town’s governmental
funds is to provide information on nearterm inflows, outflows and balances of
spendable resources. Such information may be useful in assessing the Town'’s financial
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s financial position at the end of the year and the net resources available
for spending.

Table 3
Town of Eliot, Maine
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

June 30,
2022 increase/
2023 (Restated) (Decrease)
Major Funds:
General Fund:
Committed $ 256,024 $ 348091 $ (92,087)
Unassigned e N 6,394,611 5,287,648 1,106,963
Total General Fund $ 6650635 $ 5635739 $ 1,014,896

Route 236 TIF District; :
Restricted $ 6402551 $ 5654123 $ 748,428
Total Route 236 TIF Disfrict $ 6402551 $ 5654123 $ 748428

Nonmajor Funds:
© Special Revenue Funds:

Restricted $ 465981 $ 667,026 $ (201,045
Committed 746,639 660,354 86,285
Assigned 3,721 - 3,721
Unassigned {5,003) {5,003) -
Capital Projects Funds:
Restricted : 156,997 108,282 47,715
Committed - 1,521,218 1,100,154 421,764
Unassigned (13,618) (13,101) (517)
Permanent Funds:
Restricted 39,045 39,856 811)
Assigned 2,571 2,571 -
Total Nonmajor Funds $ 2918251 $ 2561139 $ 357,112

The changes to total fund balances for the general fund, route 236 TIF district

and aggregate remaining nonmajor funds occurred due to the regular activity of
operations.

10



Proprietary funds: The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The sewer fund had an increase in net position for the year of $438,369.
Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the original and final budget for the general fund was due
to the use of committed fund balance.

The general fund actual revenues were under budgeted amounts by $152,766.
This was the result of all revenues being receipted under budgeted amounts with the
exception of taxes - property taxes, intergovernmental revenues - state revenue
sharing, intergovernmental revenues - BETE reimbursement, intergovernmental
revenues - tree growth, intergovernmental revenues - veteran's reimbursement,
intergovernmental revenues - general assistance, charges for services - code
enforcement, charges for services - public safety and miscellaneous revenues.

- The general fund actuall expenditures were under budgeted amounts by
$1,409,181. All expenditure categories were within or under budgeted amounts with the
exception of health and sanitation and debt service - interest.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2023, the net book value of capital assets recorded by the Town
increased by $1,169,408. This increase was the result of capital asset additions of
$1,751,889, less current year net disposals of $5,396 and depreciation expense of
$577,087.

Table 4
Town of Eliot, Maine
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

June 30,
2023 2022

Land and other assets not being

depreciated $ 3944326 §$ 2,556,315
Buildings, building improvements -

and land improvements 986,792 1,140,823
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and vehicles 1,681,434 1,736,527
Infrastructure 3,364,011 3,373,492
Total $ 90976563 $ 8,807,157

11



Debt

At June 30, 2023, the Town had $2,596,224 in bonds and notes from direct
borrowings payable versus $2,036,412 last year. Refer to Note 5 of Notes to Financial
Statements for more detailed information on debt.

Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The 2023 - 2024 budget could be severely impacted by the reduction of funding
from the State. There is no indication of reduced funding from the State for 2023 - 2024
as of the date this report was issued.

The Town has steadily maintained a sufficient unassigned fund balance to
sustain government operations for a period of approximately five months, while also
maintaining significant reserve accounts for future capital and program needs.

Contacting the Town's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the
Town's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report
or need additional financial information, contact the Town Manager or Finance Director
at 1333 State Road, Eliot, Maine 03903.

12 .



STATEMENT A
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

Gowernmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,323,973 § - § 11,323,973
Investments 5,805,793 - 5,605,793
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Taxes 334,411 - 334,411
Liens ' 55,748 - 55,748
Other 27,873 178,803 206,676
Due from other governments 81,056 - 81,058
Internal balances (712,685) 712,685 -
Total current assets 16,716,169 891,488 17,607,657
Noncurrent assets;
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated 184,422 3,759,904 3,944 326
Depreciable assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 5,025,138 1,007,099 6,032,237
Total noncurrent assets 5,209,560 4,767,003 9,976,563
TOTAL ASSETS 21,925,729 5,658,491 27,684,220
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 505,940 - 505,940
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 51,129 - 51,129
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 557,069 - 557,069
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES $ 22482798 $ 5658491 $ 28,141,289

13



STATEMENT A (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 616,321 § - % 516,321
Accrued expenses 26,804 - 26,804
Due to other governments 22,459 - 22 459
Curmrent portion of long-term obligations 190,069 120,759 310,818
Total current liabilities 755,643 120,759 876,402
Nancurrent lighilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations:
Bond payable 94,037 1,977,696 2,071,733
Motes from direct borrowings payable 267,836 - 267,836
Net pension liability/(asset) 717,082 - 717,062
Net OPEB liability 185,809 - 185,809
Accrued compensated absences 162,487 - 162,487
Total noncurent liabilities 1,427,231 1,977,696 3,404,927
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,182,874 2,098,455 4,281,329
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes 18,569 - 18,569
Deferred inflows related to pensions 351,387 - 351,387
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 63,987 - 63,987
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES 433,943 - 433,043
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4711791 2,668,548 7,380,339
Restricted 7,064,574 - 7,064,574
Unrestricted 8,089,616 891,488 8,981,104
TOTAL NET POSITION 19,865,981 3,560,036 23,426,017
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESCOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 22,482,798 $ 5658491 $ 28141,289

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
T 14



STATEMENT B
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT CF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net (Expense} Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grantsand  Governmental type

Functions/Programs Expenses Senvices Confributions _Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:

General government $ 1778141 § 213,867 $ 2269 $ - §(1,541578) § - $(1,541,578)

Public safety 1,939,414 70415 - - (1,868,999} - (1,868,999)

Public works 1,688,657 - - - (1,688,557} - {1,688,557)

Recreation and cutture 396,908 335,888 - - (81,020} - (61,020)

Health and sanitation 331823 147,009 - - (184,614} - {184,614)

Education 10,660,451 - - - (10,660,451) - {10,660,451)

County tax 500,415 - - - (500,415) - (500,415)

Unclassified 202,867 - 9,440 - {193,227) . (193,227)

Interest on long-term debt 13,872 - - - {13,972) - (13,872)
Total governmental activities 17,512,148 767,179 32,136 - (16,712,833 - {16,712.833)
Business-type activities:

Sewer 490,001 498,138 - - - 8,137 8,137
Totai business-type activities 490,001 498,138 - - - 8,137 8,137
Total government $18,002149 $1265317 § 32136 § - {16,712,833) 8,137  (16,704,696)

15



STATEMENT B (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental Business-type

Aclivities Activities Total
Changes in net position: -
Net (expense) revenue (16,712,833) 8,137 (16,704,696)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 15,618,311 - 15,618,311
Excise taxes 1,599,804 - 1,599,804
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs 1,613,589 - 1,613,589
Miscellaneous 506,766 3,561 510,327
Total general revenues 19,338,470 3,561 19,342 031
Transfers (426 ,671) 426,671 -
~ Change in net position 2,198,966 438,369 2,637,335
NET POSITION - JULY 1, RESTATED 17,667,015 3,121,667 20,788,682
NET POSITION - JUNE 30 $19865981 $ 3,560,036 $23426017

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
16



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
* Taxes
Liens
Cther
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes
Deferred tax revenue

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassighed

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

STATEMENT C

Other Total
General Route 236 Governmental  Governmental

Fund TIF District Funds Funds
$ 04608641 $ 153,843 §$ 1,700489 $11,323,973
- 3,250,140 2,355,653 5,605,793
334,411 - - 334 411
55,748 - - 55,748
27,873 - - 27 873
81,056 - - 81,066
1,348,895 3,169,465 31,107 4,549 467
$11308624 $ 6573448 § 4006249 $21,978,321
$ 518321 § - $ - $ 518,321
26,804 - - 26,804
22,459 - - 22,459
3,913,257 170,897 1,177,098 5,262,152
4,478 841 170,897 1,177,998 5,827,736
18,569 - - 18,569
160,579 - - 160,579
179,148 - - 179,148
- 6,402,551 662,023 7,064,574
256,024 - 2,268,557 2,524 581
- - 6,202 6,292
6,394,611 - (18,621) 6,375,980
6,650,635 6,402 551 2,918,251 15971437
$11,308624 §$ 6573448 $ 4,006,249 $21978321

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

17



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT D

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

Total Fund Balances
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and -

therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds shown above:
Taxes and liens receivable

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Long-term obligations are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:
Bond payable
Notes from direct borrowings payable
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension {liability)/asset
Net OPEB liability :

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Net position of governmental activities

Total
Governmental
Funds

$15,071,437

5,209,560

160,579

505,940

51,129
(108,597)
(389,172)
(216,850)
(717,062)
(185,809)
(351,387)

(63,987)

$ 19,865,981

See accompanying independeht auditor’'s report and notes to financial statements.

18



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT E

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxes
Excise taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Investment income (net of unrealized
gainsflosses)
Miscellaneous revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture
Health and sanitation
Education
County tax
Unclassified
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, RESTATED

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Other Total
Genaral Route 236 Governmental  Governmental
Fund TIF District Funds Funds

$ 15,628,843 - - $15,828,843
1,599,804 - - 1,599,804
1,636,285 - 9,440 1,645,725
767,179 - - 767,179

- 85,945 50,176 136,121

140,808 - 229,837 370,645
19,772,918 85,845 289,453 20,148,317
1,853,875 - - 1,853,875
1,829,714 - - 1,829,714
1,364,930 - - 1,364,930
375,603 - - 375,603
331,823 - - 331,623
10,660,451 - - 10,660,451
500,415 - - 500,415

- 60,291 204,701 264,992

70,790 - - 70,790
13,972 - - 13,972

- - 334,845 334,845

17,001,373 60,291 539,546 17,601,210
2,771,546 25,654 (250,093) 2,547 107
135,600 1,186,550 807,205 1,929,355
{1,892,250) (463,776) - (2,356,026)
{1,756,650) 722,774 607,205 {426 671)
1,014,896 748,428 357,112 2,120,436

5,635,739 56564,123 2,561,139 13,851,001

$ 6650635 $ 6402551 $ 2918251 $15971,437

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

19



STATEMENT F
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Statement E) $ 2,120,436

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
(Statement B) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depraciation expense allocated to those
expenditures over the life of the assets:

Capital asset acquisitions . 348,009
Capital assets disposed (5,396)
Depreciation expense {499,618)

(157,005)

Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position by the
government that are applicable to a future reporting peried and therefore
are not reported in the funds:

Pension (70,097)
OPEB (8,880)
) (78,987)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Taxes and liens receivable {10,532)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term obligations in the Statement of
Net Position. 152,130

Deferred inflows of resources are an acquisition of net position by the
government that are applicable to a future reporting period and therefore
are not reported in the funds:

Pension 971,534
OPEB {(10,034)
961,500

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds;

Accrued compensated absences 8,377

~ Net pension liability/{asset) (812,362)
Net OPEB liability 15,409

: . (788,576)
Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B} $ 2,198,066

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
20 '



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT G

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Due from other funds
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Construction in progress
Infrastructure
Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities: -
Current portion of long-term obligations
Total current liabilities - ‘

Noncurrent liabilities:

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations:

Bond payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

21

Enterprise Fund

Sewer

178,803
712,685

891,488

3,759,904
3,873,456

7,633,360
(2,866,357)

4,767,003

4,767,003

5,658,491

120,759

120,759

1,977,696

1,977,696

2,098,455

2,668,548
891,488

3,560,036

5,668,491




STATEMENT H
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Enterprise Fund

Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 498,138

Other 1,596
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 499,734
OPERATING EXPENSES

. Supplies 2,199

Utilities 6,943

Contracted services . 357,941

Repairs and maintenance ‘ 27,295

Depreciation ' o 77,469
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 471,847
OPERATING INCOME (L.OSS) 27,887
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 1,865

Interest expense (18,154)

Transfers in 562,271

Transfers (out) {135,600)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

(EXPENSES) 410,482
CHANGE IN NET POSITION . | 438,369
NET POSITION - JULY 1 ' 3,121,667
NET POSITION - JUNE 30 3 3,560,036

v
-
5

I
£

See accompanying independent auditor's report and;—ﬁbtés té-fiﬁaﬁcial statements.
22



STATEMENT |
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Enterprise
Fund
Sewer
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES:

Receipts from customers $ 497,961

Internal activity - receipts (payments) from/to other funds 177,873

Payments to suppliers (394,378)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTNITIES 281,456
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest income , 1,965
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,965
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTNVITIES:

Purchases of capital assets (1,403,880)

Bond proceeds ' 792,283

Principal paid on capital debt (80,341)

Interest paid on capital debt B (18,154)

Transfers (to)/from other funds 582,271
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CARPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (147,821)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30 3 -

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES : .
Operating income ) $ 27,887
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net ~
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 77,469
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable " (1,773)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds - 177,873
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTNVITIES $ 281456

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
23



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Town of Eliot was incorporated under the laws of the State of Maine. The
Town operates under the selectboard-manager form of government and provides the
following services: general government, public safety, public works, recreation and
culture, health and sanitation, education and unclassified.

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

The Town’s combined financial statements include all accounts and all
operations of the Town. We have determined that the Town has no component units as
described in GASB Statement No. 14 and amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and
No. 61.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the féj_lowing statements of ﬁnancial
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
became effective:

Statement No. 94 “Public-Private and Public-Publi¢ Partnerships and Availability
Payment Arrangements”. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a
government (the fransferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or
nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to
operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the
underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the
Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is
compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability
to modify or approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the
operator is required fo provide the services and the prices or rates that can be charged
for the services and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the
service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. Management
has determined the impact of this Statemen:c is not material to the financial statements.

24



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Statement No. 98 “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements®.
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end
users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA
results in a right-to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA and (4) requires note
disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.
Management has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial
statements.

Statement No. 99 “Omnibus 2022". The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been
identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2)
accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The practice issues
addressed by this Statement are to provide clarification of provisions in Statement No.
87, L.eases, as amended, related fo the determination of the lease term, classification of
a lease as a short-term lease, recognition and measurement of a lease liability and a
lease asset and identification of lease incentives, clarification of provisions in Statement
No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the public-private and public-public
partnership (PPP) term and (b) recognition and measurement of installment payments
and the transfer of the underlying PPP assét, clarification of provisions in Statement No.
96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, related to the
subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA) term, classification of a
SBITA as a short-term SBITA and recognition and measurement of a subscription
liability, extension of the period during which the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) is considered an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative
evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap that hedges the interest rate risk
of taxable debt, accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions,
pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the pledging
government, clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, as
amended, related to the focus of the government-wide financial statements, terminology
updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position and
terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements. Management
has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements.

25



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
s R Yide ana rund rinancial Statements

The Town's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting
the Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).

Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary
activities as either governmental or business-type. The Town's sewer fund is
categorized as business-type activities. All other activities of the Town are categorized
as governmental.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column
and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which recognizes all
long-term assets and receivables as well as fong-term debt and obligations. The
Town's net position is reported in three parts - net investment in capital assets,
restricted net position and unrestricted net position. The Town first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost
of each of the Town's functions and business-type activities (general government, public
safety, etc.) excluding fiduciary activities. The functions are aiso supported by general
govermment revenues (property taxes, certain intergovernmental  revenues,
miscellaneous revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type
activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating
or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. For the
most part, the interfund activity has been eliminated from these government-wide
financial statements.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered. by general revenue (taxes,
certain intergovernmental revenues and charges for services, etc.).

The Town does not allocate indirect costs. Al costs are charged directly to the
. corresponding department.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity
and the change in the Town'’s net position resulting from the current year's activities.

26



", TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus - Basic Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in the individual funds in the
fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues and
expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within
the financial statements. The following fund types are used by the Town:

1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is
upon determination of financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial
resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the
governmental funds of the Town:

Major Funds:

a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

b. The Route 236 TIF Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Nonmajor Funds:

C. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

d. Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital faciliies or
equipment.

e. Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town that

are legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State
Statutes, as amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and

27



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

not principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the Town or its
citizenry. The Town's policy for authorizing and spending investment
income follows State statutes.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating
income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows. The generalily
accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar fo businesses in the private
sector.  Operating revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental
reimbursements and other miscellaneous fees which are a direct result of the
proprietary activity. Nonoperating revenues are any revenues which are generated
outside of the general proprietary activity, i.e. interest income. The following is a
description of the proprietary funds of the Town:

a. Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the
activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net
revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c)
established fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to
recover similar costs.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are
summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria
(percentage of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, revenues or expenses of either the fund category or the governmental and
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are
combined in a column in the fund financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

28



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY.OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1. Accrual '

Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when susceptible to accrual; ie., both measurable and available.
"Available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are generally recognized
under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-
term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

Budget

The Town'’s policy is 16 adopt an annual budget for operations. The budget is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in
the financial statements:

1. Early in the second half of the year the Town prepares a budget for the fiscal
year beginning July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2. A meeting of the inhabitants of the Town was called for the purpose of adopting
the proposed budget after public notice of the meeting was given.

3. The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the inhabitants of the Town.

Deposits and Investments
The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,

demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

29



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

it is the Town’'s policy to value investments at fair value. None of the Town's
investments are reported at amortized cost. For purposes of the statement of cash
flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. The Town Treasurer is authorized by
State Statutes to invest all excess funds in the following:

- Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities

- Certificates of deposit and other evidence of deposits at banks, savings and
loan associations and credit unions

- Repurchase agreements

- Money market mutual funds

Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from governmental agencies. All receivables
are current and therefore due within one year. Receivables are reported net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectibles. Allowances are
reported when accounts are proven to be uncollectible. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts is estimated to be $0 as of June 30, 2023. Allowances for uncollectible
accounts netted with accounts receivable were $287,732 for the year ended June 30,
2023.

Tax Acquired Property

Real property becomes tax acquired when tax liens placed on property and
associated costs remain unpaid eighteen months after the filing of the tax lien in
accordance with 36 M.R.S.A. § 943. The amount of the taxes and associated costs
become assets classified as tax acquired property receivables that are secured by the
real property that foreclosed.

After real property becomes tax acquired the Selectboard is responsible for the
property and any disposition procedures allowed under the direction of the inhabitants
of the Town as authorized by voter approval annually at Town Meeting.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are .representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from
other funds”. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type

activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as ‘“internal
balances”.

30



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Transactions Between Funds

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in
the results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds,

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Additions, improvements and
other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.
Infrastructure such as streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on ali
assetls is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.

The assets are valued at historical cost when available and estimated historical
cost where actual invoices or budgetary data was unavailable. Donated capital assets
are reported at their estimated fair market value on the date received. All retirements
have been recorded by eliminating the net carrying values.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related
to independently owned utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assetfs are
likely to be the largest asset class of the Town. The Town has not retroactively
recorded infrastructure.

Estimated useful lives are as follows: -

Buildings and improvements 10 - 70 years
Infrastructure 20 - 50 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture

and fixtures 5- 30 years
Vehicles 5 - 30 years

Long-term Obligations

The accounting treatment of long-term obligations depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type
resources is reported as liabilities in government-wide statements. The long-term
abligations consist of bonds payable, notes from direct borrowings payable, accrued
compensated absences, net pension liability and net OPEB liability,

31



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for
proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Participating Local District (PLD) Plan
and additions to/deductions from the PLD Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the PLD Plan. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

OPEB

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, management received and relied on
an actuarial report provided to them by the Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust
(MMEHT), which determined the Town's fiduciary net position as a single employer
defined benefit plan based on information provided solely by MMEHT to complete the’
actuarial report. Additions to/deductions from the MMEHT OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MMEHT. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognhized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in a statement
of financial position. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used
for those assets and adding back unspent proceeds. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling
legislations adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net position is the
net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital
assets or restricted net position.

32



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported
in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the
Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the
funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five components - nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable - This includes amounts that cannot be spent either because they
are not in spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted - This includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or the laws or regulations
of other governments.

Committed - This includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
detérmined by a.formal action of the inhabitants of the Town. The inhabitants of the
Town through Town meetings are the highest level of decision-making authority of the
Town: Commitments may be established, modified or rescinded only through a Town
mesting vote. . :

Assigned - This includes amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as
restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The
authority for assigning fund balance is given annually by vote of the residents and is
expressed by the Selectboard.

Unassigned - This includes all other spendable amounts. The general fund is the
only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount, Other governmental
funds besides the general fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance
amount.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balances are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have
been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or
unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as
needed, unless the Town meeting vote has provided otherwise in its commitment or
assignment actions,

=
L3

33




TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will
at times report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town has two types of this
item, deferred outflows related to pensions and deferred outflows related to OPEB.
These items are reported in the statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet
will at times report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred tax revenues, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting, qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, this ifem is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Prepaid
taxes also qualify for reporting in this category. This item is reported in both the
statements of net position and governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred inflows
related to pensions and deferred outflows related to OPEB qualify for reporting in this
category as well. These items are reported only in the statement of net position. All
items in this category are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available.

Reveniue Recognition - Property Taxes - Modified Accrual Basis

The Town's property tax for the current year was levied October 19, 2022 on the
assessed value listed as of April 1, 2022, for all real and personal property located in
the Town. Taxes were due in two installments on November 15, 2022 and May 15,
2023. Interest on unpaid taxes commenced on November 16, 2022 and May 16, 2023
at 4.0% per annum.

Property fax revenues are recognized when they become available. Available
includes those property tax receivables expected to be collected within sixty days after
year end. The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues.

The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105%
of its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal period. The amount raised in

excess of 100% is referred to as overlay and amounted to $525,147 for the year ended
June 30, 2023.

34



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax
commitment date if taxes are delinquent. The Town has the authority to foreclose on
property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs
remain unpaid.

Program Revenues
Program revenues include all directly related income items applicable to a
particular program (charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or privileges
provided, operating or capital grants and contributions, including special assessments).

Operating/Nonoperating Proprietary Fund Revenues

Operating revenues consist mainly of direct revenue sources and/or charges for
services applicable to that fund’s ongoing operations. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Encumbrance Accounting

Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures
until receipt of material or service. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at
fiscal year-end. The Town does not utilize encumbrance accounting for its general
fund.

Use of Estimates

During the preparation of the Town's financial statements, management . is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent items as of the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes require that all investments made by the Town consider the safe
and sound investment of principal and preservation of capital in the overall portfolio,
maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet day-to-day operations and other cash
requirements and maximization of income, within established investment risk guidelines,
with consistent cash flows throughout the budgetary cycle. These investment policies
apply to all Town funds.

35



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Deposits:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a
depository financial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits. The
Town does not have a policy covering custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the
Town maintains deposits in qualifying financial institutions that are a member of the
FDIC or NCUSIF as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes.

At June 30, 2023, the Town’s cash and cash equivalent balances amounting to
$11,323,973 were comprised of deposits of $11,405,555. Bank deposits and cash
equivalents are adjusted primarily by outstanding checks and deposits in transit to
reconcile to the. Town’s cash and cash equivalents balance. Of these bank deposits,
$10,537,669 was fully insured by federal depository insurance, $61,451 was full insured
by Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and consequently were not
exposed to custodial credit risk. The remaining deposits of $806,435 were uninsured
and uncollateralized.

Bank
Account Type Balance
Checking accounts $ 1,001,156
IntraFi accounts 10,049,039
Cash equivalents 265,360

N $ 11,405,555

o
Investments: :

Custodial credit risk for investments ‘is that, in the event of failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. Currently, the Town
dees not have a policy for custodial credit risk for investments.

Interest rate risk - is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from fluctuations in interest rates.

36



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2023, the Town’s investments of $3,397,108 were comprised of
investments that are registered in the client’s name with the issuer through the Direct
Registration System and therefore are not exposed to custodial credit risk. Investments
of $500,000 were collateralized with securities held by the financial institution in the

Town’s name and the remaining balance of $1,708,685 was insured by a separate
policy provided by the investment company.

At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Fair Maturity
Investment Type Value <1 Year 1 -5 Years N/A
Government agency bonds $1,602,761 $1,109,159 $ 493602 $ -
Corporate bonds 605,924 605,924 -

Mutual funds and exchange-traded funds 3,397,108 - - 3,397,108
: $5,605,793 $1,715,083 § 493602 $ 3,397,108

Fair Value Hierarchy:

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The Town has the following
recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2023:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in  Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
for KHentical Chservable  Unobservable
Total Assels Inputs Inputs
June 30, 2023 (Level ) {Level I} (Level Y

Investments by fair value level '
Debt securities: A :

Government agency bonds $ 1,602,781 $ - $1,802,761 $

Corporate bonds 605,924 - 605,924

Mutual funds and exchange-raded funds 3,397,108 - 3,397,108
Total investments by fair value level .5B605783 § - $5605793 %
Cash equivalents measured at the net asset valus (NAV)
Money market funds 61,451

Total cash equivalents measured at the NAYV 61,451

Total investments and cash equivalents measured

at fair value $ 5667244

37



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Debt securities classified in Level Il of the fair value hierarchy are valued from
publicly reliable sources or using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to
value securities based on the securities' relationship to benchmark quoted prices. The
Town has no Level | or Level Ill investments. The fair value of money market mutual
funds that are measured at NAV per share (or its equivalent) is calculated as of June
30, 2023 in a manner consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board's
measurement principles for investment companies.

Credit risk - Statutes for the State of Maine authorize the Town to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, other states and
Canada, provided such securities are rated within the three highest grades by an
approved rating service of the State of Maine, corporate stocks and bonds within
statutory limits, financial institutions, mutual funds and repurchase agreements. The
Town does not have an investment policy on credit risk. Generally, the Town invests
excess funds in depository accounts or certificates of deposit.

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following individual fund
receivables and payables:

Receivables Payables

(Due from) (Due to)
General fund $ 1348895 § 3,013,257
Route 236 TIF District 3,169,465 170,897
Enterprise fund 712,685 -
Nonmajor special revenue funds 31,107 1,164,380
Nonmajor capital projects funds - 13,618
Totals «$ 5262152 § 5262,152

The result of amounts owed between funds are considered to be in the course of
normal operations by the Town. Reconciliation of the amounts owed between funds
may or may not be expected to be repaid within one year in their entirety due to the
recurring nature of these transactions during operations.

38



NOTE 4 -

TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General fund $ 135600 $ 1,892,250
Route 236 TIF District 1,186,550 463,776
Enterprise fund 562,271 135,600
Nonmajor special revenue funds 81,876 -
Nonmajor capital projects funds 525,329 -
Totals $ 2491626 $ 2491626

Interfund transfers are the results of legally authorized activity and are
considered to be in the course of normal operations.

NOTE 5 -

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Balance

Disposals/ Balance
7MR22 Additions Transfers 6/30/23
Governmental acfivities:
Non-depreciated assefs:
Land $ 184422 § - 3 - $ 184422
Construction in progress 15,869 - {15,869) -
200,291 - {15,869) 184,422
Depreciated assets:
Land, buildings and improvements 4,279,386 - - 4,279,386
Machinery and equipment 1,359,943 85,043 (460,409) 084,577
Furniture and fixtures 27,899 - (12,544) 15,365
Vehicles 2,683,284 60,327 (468,605) 2,275,006
Infrastructure 3,420,160 218,508 - 3,638,668
11,770,672 363,878 (941,558) 11,192,992
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,604,398) (499,618) 938,182 (6,167.,854)
5,166,274 (135,740) (5,396) 5,025,138
Net capital assets 5,366,565 (135,740) (21,265) 5,209,560

39



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Business-type activities:
Non-depreciated assets:
Construction in progress

Depreciated assets:
Infrastructure

Less: accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets
Total government

Current year depreciation:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture

Subtotal governmental

Sewer
Subtotal business-type
Total depreciation expense

JUNE 30, 2023
Balance Disposals/ Balance
7122 Additions Transfers 6/30/23
2,356,024 1,403,880 - 3,759,004
2,356,024 1,403,880 - 3,758,904
3,873,456 - - 3,873,456
3,873,456 - - 3,873,456
{2,788,888) {77.469) - (2,866,357)
1,084 568 (77,469) - 1,007,099
3,440,592 1,326,411 - 4,767,003
$ 8807157 $1190671 $ (21,265) _$ 9976563
$ 18203
109,700
350,410
21,305
499618
77,469
77,469
$ 577,087

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt for the year ended

June 30, 2023:

Balancs, Balance, Current
71122 Additions Deletions 6/30/23 Portion
Govemmental Activities:
Bond payable $ 122880 $ - 8 (14,283) $ 108,587 § 14,560
Notes from direct
borrowings payable 527,019 - (137,847) 389,172 121,336
$ 649899 $ - 5 (152130) $ 497,769 $ 135,896
Business-type Activities: :
Bond payable $ 1386513 § 792283 $ (80,341) § 2098455 $ 120,759

40



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of the outstanding bonds and notes from direct
borrowings payable:

Governmental activities:

Bond payable:

2019-$150,661 General ObligationBond. Semi-annual principal and interest
installments in the amount of $18,758 at a fixed interest rate ranging from
1.82% to 2.39% per annum. The bond matures in November of 2029. $ 108,507

Notes from direct borrowings payable;

2021-Capital lease for a backhoe. Annual principal and interest payments of
$22,702. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 3,85% per annum. The capitai
lease matures in February of 2024, 21,860

2022-Capital lease for an loader. Annual principal and interest payments of
$27,957. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 2.99% per annum. The capital
lease matures in December of 2025. 81,362

2022-Capital lease for an fire truck. Annual principai and interest payments
of $65,504. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 2.99% per annum. The
capital lease matures in February of 2027, 243,492

2022-Capital lease for an excavator. Annual principal and interest payments
of $15,083. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 2.99% per annum. The
capital lease matures in August of 2025. 42,458

Total notes from direct borrowings payable 389,172
Total governmental activities bond and notes from direct borrowings payable $ 487,769
Business-type activities:

2017-$1,700,000 Generat Obligation Bond due in annual principal and

interest instaliments of $77,206. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 4.5%

per anhum and maturing in February 2037. $1,306,172
2023 - $4,500,000 General Obligation Bond due in semi-annual principal and

interest instaflments ranging from $259,988 to $284,247 annually. Interest is

charged semi-annually at a fixed rate of 1.83% per annum. Maturing in
October of 2043. As of the date of this report, only $792,283 has been drawn

down on this bond. 792,283
Total bonds payable - business-ype activities ' $ 2,098,455

41



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of outstanding bonds and notes from direct

borrowings payable principal and interest requirements for the following fiscal years
ending June 30:

Governmental Activities ' Business-type Activities
Notes from Direct
Bond Payable Borrowings Payable Bond Payable TOTAL
Principal Interest Principal Inferest Principal Inferest Principal interest

2024 % 14860 § 2198 $ 121338 $ 9910 § 120768 $§ 24873 $ 256655 $ 36981

2025 14,852 1,908 101,221 7,323 121,569 23,661 237,642 32,890
2026 15,157 1,601 103,017 5,527 122,390 22441 240,564 29,569
2027 15477 1,281 63,508 1,907 123,217 21,213 202,292 24,401
2028 15,815 943 . - 124,053 19,976 139,868 20,919
2029-2033 32,736 779 - - 633,102 81,035 665,838 81,814
2034-2038 - - - - 655,294 48,824 655,294 48,824
2039-2043 198,071 2,377 198,071 2377

$ 1085697 & 8708 $ 2389172 § 24667 $ 2008455 § 244400 $ 2508224 $ 277775

No interest costs were capitalized during the period. The amount of interest
costs incurred and charged to business-type activities expense for the year ended June
30, 2023 was $18,154.

All bonds payable are direct obligations of the Town, for which its full faith and
credit are pledged. The Town is not obligated for any special assessment debt. All
debt is payable from taxes or water user fees levied on all taxable property within the
Town.

NOTE 7 - OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A summary of other long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as
follows: )

Balance, Balance, Current
M/22 Additions Deletions 6/30/23 Portion
Govemnmental Activities:
Accrued compensated .
absences $ 225027 $ - 5 (8,377) $ 2168650 % 54,163
Net pension liability/(asset) (95,300) 1,127,537 (315,175) 717,062 -
Net OPEB liability 201,218 12,533 (27.,942) 185,809

$ 330945 $ 1140070 $ (351494 $ 1,119,521 $ 54,163

Please see Notes 8, 17 and 18 for detailed information on each of the other long-
term obligations . . '

42



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Town's policies regarding vacation and sick time do permit employees to
accumulate earned but unused vacation leave. Generally, the liability for these
compensated absences is recorded as long-term obligations in the government-wide
financial statements. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only
the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial
resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred. As of June 30,
2023, the Town's liability for compensated absences is $216,650.

NOTE 9 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is the calculation of the net investment in capital assets for the
Town at June 30, 2023:;

5

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
Invested in capital assets $11,377.414 7,633,360
Accumulated depreciation ' (6,167,854) (2,866,357)
Outstanding capital related debt (497,769) (2,098,455)

$ 4711791 § 2,668,548

NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following restricted net position and fund
balances: .

[

&'

o '
Route 236 TIF District : $ 6,402,551
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule D) 465,981
Nonmajor capital projects funds {Schedule F) 156,997
Nonmaijor permanent funds (Schedule H) 39,045
. $ 7,064,574

43



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 11 - COMMITTED FUND BALANCES
At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following committed fund balances:

General Fund:

Senior taxpayer assistance $ 3,819
Comprehensive plan 27,837
Public works-paving . 224,368
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule D) 746,639
Nonmajor capital projects funds (Schedule F) 1,621,918
$ 2524581

NOTE 12 - ASSIGNED FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following assigned fund balances:

Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule D)  $ 3,721
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule H) 2,571
$ 6,292

NOTE 13 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following deficit fund balances:

Street light reserve $ 4,333
Boat basin reserve 670
Road paving 7,865
Energy efficiency capital 5,753

$ 18,621

44



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 14 - OVERSPENT APPROPRIATIONS

At June 30, 2023, the Town had the following overspent appropriations:

Public safety (Article 7) $ 38,386
Fire department (Article 8) 48,480
Solid waste/iransfer station (Article 12) 23,740
General assistance (Article 15) 9,215
Debt service (Article 22) 2,482

$ 122303

NOTE 15 - OVERLAPPING DEBT

The Town is responsible for its proportionate share of the County of York and
MSAD No. 35's debt. As of June 30, 2023, the County of York had no outstanding debt
and the Town’s share of MSAD No. 35’s debt was as follows:

Qutstanding .Town's Total
Debt Percentage Share
RSU 35 1,588,641 4163% $ 661,351

NOTE 16 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the
Town participates in a public entity risk pool sponsored by the Maine Municipal
Association. The Maine Municipal Association Group Risk Pool is a state-chartered
pool established exclusively for Maine municipalities. The pool provides certain
property, liability, fidelity and vehicle coverage. If the assets of the pool are at any time
actuarially determined to be insufficient to enable the pool to discharge its legal
obligations, other obligations and actuarially sound reserves, the pool has the power to
make up the deficiency by the levy of a prorated assessment. There have been no
deficiencies during the past three years and management believes that no deficiency
exists at June 30, 2023. . '

The Town is a member of the Maine Municipal Association - Property and
Casualty Pool and pays an annual premium for its coverage. Under the property portion
of the policy, coverage is provided after a per occurrence deductible is met. The limit of
coverage for liability claims brought under the Maine Tort Claims Act is $400,000 per
occurrence. A $2,000,000 limit of liability is provided for liability claims outside the
Maine Tort Claims Act. There is no aggregate liability limit. Coverage for Public Officials
Liability, including Employment Practices, is a part of the program. Coverage is on an

45



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 16 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

occurrence basis, rather than a “claims made” form. A $2,000,000 limit of liability is
provided for all claims for Wrongful Acts seeking monetary damages pursuant to federal
or state law for which the Maine Tort Claims Act does not provide immunity or
limitations. Each member has a $4,000,000 annual aggregate limit. An annual sublimit
of $100,000 per member applies for ail back wages and/or future salary awards for
employment related claims, subject to a $5,000 retention and a 10% contribution by the
member.

The Town is also a member of the Maine Municipal Association - Worker
Compensation Trust Fund (“Fund”). The Fund was created to formulate, develop and
administer a program of modified self-funding for the Fund's membership, obtain lower
costs for worker's compensation coverage and develop a comprehensive loss control
program. The Town pays an annual premium to the fund for its worker’s compensation
coverage. The Town’s agreement with the Fund provides that the fund will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will provide, through commercial companies’
reinsurance contracts, coverage for claims in excess of $1,000,000.

The Town is also a member of the Maine Municipal Association - Unemployment
Compensation Group Fund (“MMA UC Fund®). The MMA UC Fund was created to
assist in meeting members’ obligations under the Employment Security Act in an
efficient and cost-effective manner. The Fund is composed of individual municipalities
and other public and related non-profit entities that are individually self-insured but
administered as a group. Within the Fund, each member has a separate account. As
such, the Town makes quarterly payments into their account, based on rates developed
by MMA’s consulting actuary. Claims, if any, are paid out of the Town's own account.
The Maine Department of Labor classifies MMA’s UC Fund members as Direct
Reimbursement Employers. [n other words, the Fund reimburses the Maine DOL on
the Town’s behalf only when the Town has unemployment claims from present or
former employees.

Occasionally, the Town may have layoffs or resignations or even a part-time
employee losing a primary job, that lead to larger claims payments than anticipated.
When claims exceed the balance of the Town's account, the UC Fund continues to pay
the Town'’s claims with no regard for the negative balance. Repayment of a negative
balance is spread out over a period of years to avoid a financial hardship to the Town.

Based on the coverage provided by the insurance purchased, the Town is not
aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities which should be recorded as of
June 30, 2023. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of
the prior year and amounts of settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the
past three years.

46



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED .BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description

Town employees confribute to the Maine Public Employees Retirement System
(MainePERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
established by the Maine State legislature. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
Participating Local District (PLLD) Consolidated Plan‘s advisory group, which reviews the
terms of the plan and periodically makes recommendations to the Legislature to amend
the terms. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Consolidated Plan. That report may be obtained online at
www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

Benefits Provided

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The System's retirement programs provide defined retirement
benefits based on members' average final compensation and service credit earned as of
retirement. Vesting (i.e., eligibility for benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon
the earning of five years of service credit (effective October 1, 1999, the prior ten-year
requirement was reduced by legislative action to five years for employees of PLDs). In
some cases, vesting occurs on the earning of one year of service credit immediately
preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. For PLD members, normal
retirement age is 60, 62 or 65. The monthly benefit of members who retire before
normal retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is reduced
by a statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below her/his
normal retirement age at retirement. The System also provides disability and death
benefits which are established by contract with PLD employers under applicable
statutory provisions. As of June 30, 2022, there were 311 employers in the plan.

Upon termination of membership, members' accumulated employee contributions
are refundable with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of
accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights.
The annual rate of interest credited to members' accounts is set by the System's Board
of Trustees and is currently 1.52%.

47



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Contributions |

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers
and by earnings on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer
normal cost contributions and by investment earnings, The Town’s employees are
members of the PLD’s plans “AC” and “1C” and are required to contribute 7.6%/6.85%
and 9.7% of their annual covered salary and the Town is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 10.2% for the AC plan and 14.7% for the
1C plan of covered payroll. The contribution rates of plan members and the Town are
established and may be amended by the Maine Public Employee Retirement Systems
advisory group. The Town's contribution to the MainePERS PLD Consolidated Plan for
the year ended June 30, 2023 was $227,140.

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the Town reported a liability/(asset) of $717,062 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liabilities for the plan. The net pension
liabilities/(assets) were measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total pension
liabilities/(assets) used to calculate the net pension liabilities/(assets) was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of that date.~ The Town’s proportion of the net pension
liabilities/(assets) were based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of
contributions to each pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all PLDs,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the Town's proportion was 0.269739%, which
was a decrease of 0.0268% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized total pension revenue of

$89,075. At June 30, 2023, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

48



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

PL.D Plan
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 133,261  § -
Changes of assumptions 145,539 -
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 300,955
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions - 50,432
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 227,140 -
Total $ 505,940 $ 351,387

$227,140 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

PLD

Plan
Plan year ended June 30:
2023 $ 64,950
2024 (91,920)
2025 (186,970)
2026 141,355
2027 -
Thereafter -

Actuarial Methods and Assumﬁfiqns
The respective collective total pension liability/(asset) for the Plan was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, using the following methods
and assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

49



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30; 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN {CONTINUED)
Actuarial Cost Method

The Entry Age Normal actuarial funding method is used to determine costs.
Under this funding method, the total employer contribution rate consists of two
elements: the normal cost rate and the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) rate.

The individual entry age normal method is used to determine liabilities. Under the
individual entry age normal method, a normal cost rate is calculated for each employee.
This rate is determined by taking the value, as of age at entry into the plan, of the
member's projected future benefits and dividing it by the value, also as of the member's
entry age, of his or her expected future salary. The normal cost for each member is the
product of the member’s pay and normal cost rate. The normal cost for the group is the
sum of the normal costs for all members.

Experience gains and losses, i.e., decreases or increases in liabilittes and/or in
assets when actual experience dlfrers from the actuarial assumptions, affect the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Asset Valuation Method

The actuarial valuation employs a technigue for determining the actuarial value of
assets which reduces the impact of short-term volatility in the market value. The specific
technique adopted in this valuation recognizes in a given year one-third of the
investment return that is different from the actuarial assumption for investment return.

Amortizalion

The net pension liability/(asset) of the PLD Consolidated Plan is amortized on a
level percentage of payroll using a method where a separate twenty-year closed period
is established annually for the gain or loss for that year.

Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the actuary for funding purposes
as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Investment Rate of Refurn - 6.50% per annum for the year ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, compounded annually.

Salary Increases, Merit and Inflation - 2.75% to 11.48% per year
Mortality Rates - For the plan, the rates are based on the 2010 Public Plan

General Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, for males and
females, projected generationally using the RPEC_2020 model.

50

-



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Cost of Living Benefit Increases - 1.91% ‘

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major class of assets. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table.

PLD Plan
Long-term
Expected
Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Public equities 30.0% 6.0%
US Government ) 7.5% 2.3%
Private equity 15.0% 7.6%
Real assets: .
Real estate 10.0% 52%
Infrastructure 10.0% 5.3%
Natural resources 5.0% 5.0%
Traditional Credit 7.5% 3.2%
Alternative Credit ' ) 5.0% 7.4%
Diversifiers ' ' 10.0% 5.9%
Discount Rate -,_::;

The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability/(asset)
was 6.50% for 2022 for the Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that pian member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer and non-employer entity contributions will be made
at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions,
the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments to.current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability/(asset).

51



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The following table shows how the collective net pension liability/(asset) as of
June 30, 2022 would change if the discount rate used was one percentage point lower
or one percentage point higher than the current rate. The current rate is 6.50% for each
of the Plans.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
PLD Plan;
Discount rate 5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Town's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,118,404 3 717082 § {(441,198)

Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Each employer’s share of the collective net pension liability/(asset) is equal to the
collective net pension liability/(asset) multiplied by the employer's proportionate share
as of June 30, 2022 as shown in the schedules of employer and non-employer
contributing entity allocations. Changes in net pension liability are recognized in
pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 with the following exceptions.

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience with regard to economic
or demographic factors were recognized in pension expense using a straight-line
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized
as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resource. For 2022 and 2020, this was three years for
the PLD Consolidated Plan. For 2019, this was four years for the PLD Consolidated
Plan. For 2018 and 2017, this was three years; prior to 2017, this was four years for the
PLD Consolidated Plan.

Differences between Expected and Actual Investment Earnings
Differences between projected and actual investment eamings are recognized in
pension expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year

period. The first year is recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are
shown as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

52



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 17 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Changes in Assumptions

Differences due to changes in assumptions about future economic or
demographic factors or other inputs are recognized in pension expense using a straight-
line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members. in each plan. The actuarial assumptions
used for the year ended June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. The
first year is recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Please refer to
the Actuarial Methods and Assumptions section for information relating to the use of
assumptions.

Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions

Differences resulting from a change in proportionate share of contributions and
differences between total employer contributions and the employer's proportionate
share of contributions are recognized in pension expense using a straight-line
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized
as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources. Differences between total employer
contributions and the employer's proportionate share of contributions may arise when
an employer has a contribution requiremént for an employer specific liability.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Additiohal financial and actuarial information with respect to the Plan can be

found in the MainePERS' 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report available
online at www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN

MAINE MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' HEALTH TRUST
Plan Description = - |
The Town and Town retirees contribute to the Town’s OPEB Plan with the Maine
Municipal Employees Health Trust (MMEHT), a single employer defined benefit plan.

Contributions and membership .in this Plan are voluntary and may be terminated at any
time by the Town and/or the Town retirees. MMEHT is a fully funded, self-insured trust

53



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

which provides benefits to municipal and quasi-municipal organizations and county
governments and acts as the agent to the Town concerning administration of this Plan.
Title 24-A Chapter 81 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated authorizes the
regulation of MMEHT as a Multiple Employer Welfare Arrangement by the State of
Maine Bureau of Insurance. Benefits and plans are designed and governed by MMEHT
participants and are administered by a number of third-party administrators contracted
by MMEHT. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criterial of paragraph 4
of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. MMEHT issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained by MMEHT at (800) 852-8300.

Benefits Provided

This Plan provides medical/prescription drug benefits during retirement to
Medicare and non-Medicare retirees and their surviving spouses with varying levels of
benefits determined by voluntary plan selection by the retiree as well as applicable
Medicare statutes and regulations. The Plan also provides an automatic life insurance
benefit of $2,000 to participants which includes a surviving spouse benefit for the same.
The employee must meet the minimum requirement of age 55 with at least 5 years of
service at retirement to be eligible for the Plan. The retiree must enroll when first
eligible and continue coverage without interruption.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At January 1, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Active members 14
Retirees and spouses 3

Total 17

Contributions

Retiree and‘s spouse premium amounts are funded by the retiree at the rate for
the coverage eleéted by the retiree. Premium rates are those determined by the
MMEHT's Board of Trustees to be actuarially sufficient to pay anticipated claims.
Premiums for retiree hfe insurance coverage are factored into the premiums paid for
basic coverage. Retirees. and spouses must contribute 100% of the premium amounts.
The sponsoring employer pays the remainder of the premium. Medical benefits are
provided for the life of the retiree and surviving spouses.

54



-

TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
Retiree Premium Amounts: M

The following monthly premium amounts were reported on the individual data file.
Actual plan election was reflected in expected retiree premium amounts.

Pre-Medicare Single Coverage Family Coverage
POSC $1,141 . $2559
Medicare '
Medicare-cligible Retirees $601 $1,201

Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the Town reported a liability of $185,809 for its total OPER
liability for this Plan. The total OPEB liability was measured as of January 1, 2023 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's total OPEB
liability was based on the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which does not
reflect future changes in benefits, subsidies, penalties, taxes or administrative costs that
may be required as a result of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010
(ACA) related legislation and regulations.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Town recognized OPEB expense of
$3,515. At June 30, 2023, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

MMEHT
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual.
experience $ 867 $ 39,642
Changes of assumptions 41,952 24345
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments - -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date ' 8,310 -
Total $ 51129 % 63,987

$8,310 were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
resulting from Town céntributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net OPER liability in the year ended June 30, 2024.

55



. TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB witl be recognized in OPEB expense as fpllows:

MMEHT

Plan year ended December 31:

2024 $ (708)
2025 _ (708)
2026 (715)
2027 (1,792)
2028 (3,990)
Thereafter (13,255)

Discount Rate

The discount rate is the assumed interest rate used for converting projected
dollar related values to a present value as of the valuation date of January 1, 2023. The
discount rate determination is based on the high-quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in
effect for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer
20-Bond GO Index. The rate of 3.72% per annum for June 30, 2023 was based upon a
measurement date of December 29, 2022. The sensitivity of net OPEB liability to
changes in discount rate are as follows;

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
272% 3.72% 4.72%
Total OPEB lability : $ 211,713 § 185809 § 164,515
Plan fiduciary net position _ - - -
Net OPEB liability $ 211,713 § 185809  $ 164,515
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Healthcare Trend

The healthcare trend is the assumed dollar increase in dollar-related values in
the future due to the increase in the cost of health care. The healthcare cost trend rate
is the rate of change in per capita health claim costs over time as a result of factors
such as medical inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design and
technological developments. The sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in
healthcare cost trend rates are as follows:

56



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

1% Healthcare 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 161,287 % 185809 § 216,811
Plan fiduciary net position - - -
Net OPEB liability $ 161,287 § 185809  § 216,811
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The fotal OPEB liability for the Plan was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 2023, using the following methods and assumptions applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method

The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method is used to determine costs. Under
this funding method, a normal cost rate is determined as a level percent of pay for each
active Plan member and then summed to produce the total normal cost for this Plan.
The unfunded actuarial liability is the difference between the actuarial liability and the
actuarial value of assets.

For medical and pharmacy, historical claims and census records were
assembled and provided through June 30, 2021. Medicare and non-Medicare eligible
medical and prescription experience were analyzed. It was assumed that current
enrollment distribution of benefit options would remain constant in the future for retirees.
The cost was distributed based on the current covered population and the actuary’s
standard age curves which vary by age, gender and Medicare status. Children costs
are converted to a load on the non-Medicare retirees which implicitly assumes that
future retirees will have the same child distribution as current retirees.

Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation were
adopted by the Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating Local
Districts as of June 30, 2022 and based on the experience study covering the period
from June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2021. As of January 1, 2023, they are as follows:

57



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

Discount Rate - 3.72% per annum for year end 2023 reporting. 2.06% per
annum for 2022 year end reporting.

Trend Assumptions:

Medical Trend assumptions were developed using the Society of
Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model. The SOA model was
released in December 2007 and version 2023 _fl was used for this valuation. The
following assumptions were input into this model:

Variable Rate

Rate of Inflation 3.00%
Rate of Growth in Real Income/GDP per capital 2032+ 1.50%
Extra Trend due to Taste/Technology 2032+ 0.80%
Expected Health Share of GDP 2032 19.80%
Health Share of GDP Resistance Point 19.00%
Year for Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth 2043

The SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model and its baseline projection are
based on an econometric analysis of historical U.S. medical expenditures and the
judgements of experts in the field. The long-run baseline projection and input variables
have been developed under the guidance of the SOA Project Oversight Group.

The trends selected from 2023 to 2026 were based on plan design, population
weighting, renewal projections and market analysis. For years 2027 to 2031, these are
interpolated from 2026 to 2032 (which is the product of the inflation, GDP and extra
trend rate assumptions). _

Deductibles, Co-payments and Out of Pocket Maximums are assumed to
increase at the above trend rates. The ultimate trend rate reflects an assumed nominal
per capital GDP growth.

Administrative and claims expense - 3% per annum.

Future plan changes - Assumes that the current Plan and cost-sharing structure
remain in place for all future years. -

Retirement Rates - Rates vary for plans with no explicit employer subsidy (or
payment) versus those plans defining an explicit employer subsidy (or payment).
The rates are based on assumptions from the Maine State Refirement
Consolidated Plan for Participating Local District at June 30, 2021,

58



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

Retirement Contribution Increases - Assumed fto increase at the same rate as
incurred claims. A constant cost sharing in plan design between employer and

employees is assumed.

Family Enrollment Composition - For males, 50% of future retirees under the age
of 65 and 50% of current retirees are married and elect spousal coverage while
females are at 30% for both. 25% of male and female future retirees over the

age of 65 are married and elect spousal coverage.

Age Difference of Spouses - Husbands are assumed to be 3 years older than

wives.

Administrative expenses - Included in the per capita claims cost.

Disability Incidence - Disabled lives will be considered active employees and will

not be valued separately.

Salary Increase Rate - 2.75% per year assumed using the level percentage of

pay entry age method.

Dates of Hire - Needed to be assumed for some employees and will be based on

the average age at hire for similar employees.

Rate of Mortaiity:

Healthy Annuitant - Based on 112.1% and 118.5% of the 2010 Public Plan
General Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, respectively, for
males and females. The proposed rates are projected generationally using the
RPEC_2020 model, with an ultimate rate of 1.00% for ages 80 and under,
grading down to 0.05% at age 95 and further grading down to 0.00% at age 115,
along .with convergence to the ultimate rates in the year 2027. All other
parameters used in the RPEC_2020 model are those included in the published
MP-2028 scale. As prescribed by the Trust, mortality rates were taken from the
assumptions for the Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating

Local Districts at June 30, 2021.

Active Employees - Rates of mortality are based on 83.5% and 88.6% of the
2010 Public Plan General Benefits- Weighted Employee Mortality Table,
respectively, for males and females. These rates are generationally projected
using the same version of the RPEC_2020 model as described in the healthy
annuitant mortality. As prescribed by the Trust, mortality rates were taken from

59



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)

the assumptions for the Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for
Participating Local Districts at June 30, 2021.

Retiree Continuation Percentage:
"Medicare participant retirees - 100% assumed to continue in the plan
elected ‘

Pre-Medicare plan retirees' and active participants - 75% assumed to
continue coverage once Medicare-eligible

Pre-Medicare plan spouses and spouses of active participants - 50%
assumed to continue coverage once Medicare-eligible

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Changes in net OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense for the year
ended June 30, 2023 with the following exceptions: '

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience are recognized in OPEB
expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the
average expected remaining service lives of active and inactive members in each plan.
The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. The difference
between expected and actual experience as of January 1, 2023 was ($38,775).

Changes in Assumptions

Differences due to changes in assumptions about future economic, demographic
or claim and expense factors or other inputs are recoghized in OPEB expense using a
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected
remaining service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The actuarial
assumptions used in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation were adopted by the Maine
State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating Local Districts as of June 30, 2021
and based or-q,t'h'e experience study covering the period from June 30, 2016 through
June 30, 2020., The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years

are shown as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.
%

o

B0



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (CONTINUED)
Differences between Projected and Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are recognized in
OPEB expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period.
The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to this Plan can be
found at the Town Office at 1333 State Road, Eliot, Maine 03903. .

NOTE 19 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT AND ABATEMENTS

The Town has established two tax increment financing (TIF) districts in
accordance with Maine statutes to finance development programs located in the Town
of Elict. The expenditures from these development programs will be recovered in future
years through an incremental tax -levied upon the districts’ so called “captured asset
value”. A portion of the incremental tax revenues will be returned to the district to repay
principal and interest on any indebtedness to fund the expenditures of the development
program (including administrative costs)-and for water/sewer treatment.

Route 236 Municipal Development TIF District

The Town has created a development program approved for activities such as an
engineering study, debt service on water/sewer improvements and extensions and
administrative/professional costs. The TIF District will remain in place for a period of 30
years from adoption. The Town reserves the right to incur indebtedness to finance, in
part or in whole, the projects within the Development Program. Any projects financed
through municipal bonded indebtedness must be approved in advance by the Eliot
voters. .

‘Eliot Commons Business Development Tax Inctement Financing District

The Town has created a development program which will return 95% of all TIF
District revenues to Sea Dog Realty, LLC as part of a Credit Enhancement Agreement,
for the primary purposes of supporting businesses at Eliot Commons and to promote its
further development. In conjunction with the TIF District and the Credit Enhancement
Agreement, Eliot Commons granted the Town an casement to provide safer access to
some areas and help alleviate traffic congestion on Route 236.

61



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 19 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Abatements

The Town has not made any commitments as part of the Credit Enhancement
Agreements other than to reduce taxes. The Town is not subject to any tax abatement
agreements entered into by ather governmental entities. The Town currently has
one tax abatement agreement, the Sea Dog Realty, LLC Credit Enhancement
Agreement which is summarized below.

Sea Dog Realty, LLC Credit Enhancement Agreement

On January 28, 2010, the Town of Eliot entered into a credit enhancement
agreement with Sea Dog Realty, LLC for future development at Eliot Commons. The
original valuation of the property was $1,953,700. No more than 95% of the property
taxes to be generated on the improvements within the District will be returned to Sea
Dog Realty, LLC for 30 years. Applicable funds will be deposited into the Sea Dog
Realty, LLC TIF account to reimburse Sea Dog Realty, LLC for project costs incurred.
The remaining amount will be retained by the Town and used to fund the development
plan of the District.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Town abated property taxes for the
following program:

Percentage of
Taxes Abated Amount of Taxes
During the Fiscal Abated During

Tax Abatement Program Year the Fiscal Year
Sea Dog Realty, LLC Credit
Enhancement Agreement 0.04% $ 02,747

NOTE 20 - CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in humerous State and Federal grant programs, which are
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to
the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Town has not complied with the rules and
regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and
the collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2023 may be impaired. In the
opinion of the Town, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance
with the rules and regulations; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies.

62



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 21 - RESTATEMENT

in 2023, the Town determined that certain transactions were incorrect or omitted
in the previous year, therefore a restatement was required. A restatement was made to
the governmental activities and the general fund total fund balance for $100,577 to
correct cash balances. The beginning net position for the governmental activities
decreased from $17,767,592 to $17,667,015 and the general fund total fund balance
increased from $5,736,316 to $5,635,739.

63



Reduired Supplementary |nformation

Required supplementary information includes financial information and
disclosures that are required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board but are
not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual -
General Fund

Schedule of Proportionate Sr\lare of the Net Pension Liability
Schedule of Contributions - Pension

Scheduie of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Schedule of Contributions - OPEB

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

64



SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1, Restated  $ 5636,739 $5835739 $ 5635739 -
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes:
Property Taxes 15,571,861 15,571,861 15,628,843 56,982
Excise Taxes 1,867,800 1,867,800 1,699,804 (267,996)
Intergovernmental Revenues:
State Revenue Sharing 926,280 926,280 1,013,850 87,870
Homestead Reimbursement 422,438 422,438 418,535 {2,903)
BETE Reimbursement 128,092 129,092 129,176 84
Tree Growth - - 3,741 3,741
Veteran's Reimbursement - - 6,890 6,890
General Assistance 7,300 7,300 22,696 15,396
Other 131,714 131,714 40,297 (91.417)
Charges for Services
Administration/Town Committees 61,900 61,900 57,015 {(4,885)
Code Enforcement 154,000 154,000 156,852 2,852
Public Safety 63,100 63,100 70,415 7,315
Health and Sanitation 157,700 157,700 147,009 (10,691)
Recreation and Culture 391,500 391,500 335,888 (65,612)
Interest on Taxes/Lien Costs 36,000 36,000 25,506 (10,494)
Miscellaneous Revenues 5,000 5,000 115,302 110,302
Transfers from Other Funds 1,539,600 135,600 135,600 -
Amounts Available for Appropriation 27,101,024  25697,024 25,644,258 {152 766)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
General Government 1,915,311 1,966,830 1,853,875 112,955
Public Safety 1,898,208 1,832,703 1,829,714 2,989
Public Works 1,903,618 2,093,618 1,364,930 728,688
Recreation and Culture 447 942 447 942 375,603 72,339
Health and Sanitation 301,168 301,168 331,623 (30,455)
Education 10,660,451, 10,660,451 10,660,451 -
County Tax 500,415 500,415 500415 -
Unclassified 525,147 . 525,147 - 525,147
Debt senvice:
Principal 103,780 70,790 70,790 -
Interest 11,490 11,490 13,972 (2,482)
Transfers to Other Funds 3,197,755 1,892,250 1,892 250 -
Total Charges to Appropriations 21485285 20,302,804 18,893,623 1,409,181
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 $_ 5635739 $5394220 § 6,660,635 $ 17256415
Utilization of Committed Fund Balance $ - $ 241519 $ - $ (241,519

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
' 65 .



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

SCHEDULE 2

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

PLD Plan:
Praportion of tha net pension liabilily/{asset) 0,27% 0.30% 0.48% 0.30% 0.32% 0.231% 0.34% 0.31% 0.34%
Proportionata share of tha net pension

liablltyi{assel) $ 717,062 - § (95300) $ 1479912 § 821533 § 867,344 § 1283530 1794437 $ 9836 $ 519,281
Covared payrol $ 1,629,038 § 1,699,281  § 1,648,873 § 1488500 & 1488760 § 1,420882 § 1,346080 $ 1,190669 § 1,166,380
Proportionate share of the net penslon

lighilityi{asset) as a percentage of its

covered payroll 43.72% 5.81% 76.18% 61.91% 58.26% 90,36% 133.41% B1.09% 44.52%
Plan fiduciary nst posifion as a percenlage

of Ihe tolal pension liability/{asset) 23.26% 100.88% 398.36% 90.62% 91,14% 86.43% 85.40% 81.61% 88.20%

* The amounls presented for each fiscal yaar were determined as of June 30 and ars for those years forwhich informallon s avallable.

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements,
68’ ,



BLD Plan:

Conlractuglly required contribution

Confributions In retation to the conlractually

requirad contribution

Contributlon deficiency (excass)

Covered payroll

Contribulicns as a percentage of covared

payroll

TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION
"~ LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

2020 2017

2023 2022 2021 2019 2018

SCHEDULE 3

2018 2018

$ 227140 % 194,381 $ 206280 $ 1916668 $ 1B4337 $ 174477 $ 168473

{208,250} {191 566) (184,387) (174177) (162473}

§ 149611 § 123872

{149,811} . (123,872)

(227 140) {194,381}

$ -8 S -8 L | -8 L -

$ L -

$ 181,092 § 1830930 § 1699261 § 1548873 § 14B8,509 $ 14883750 $ 1420082

11.86% 14 85% 12.14% 12.37% 12.38% 1.70% 11.23%

* The amounts presanted for each fiscal yaar are for thosa yaars for which information is availabie,

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial staternents.
67

$ 1,346,080 § 1,190,668

11.12% 10.23%



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE 4

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES [N NET OPEB LIABILITY
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Balances at 1/1/22 (Reporting December 31, 2022)

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefits
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Confributions - member
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Net changes
Balances at 1/1/23 (Reporting December 31, 2023)

Increase (Decrease)

Plan
Net OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) @ -
$ 201218 $ - % 201,218
8,299 - 8,299
4,234 - 4,234
(19,917) - {19,917)
- 8,025 (8,025)
(8,025) (8,025) -
(15,409) - (15,409)
$ 185808 3 - $ 185,809

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

68



Total OPEB |lability
Service cost (BOY)
Interest (includes interest on service cost)
Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expectad and aciual experience

GChanges of assumptions ..

Benefit payments, includiftg réfunds of member
contributions

Nat change in total OPEB llability

Total OPEB iiability - beginning
Total CPEB liabllity - ending

Plan fiduciary het position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - membar Y
Net Investment income
Beneflt payments, including refunds of member
contributions
Administrative axpense
Net change [n fiduciary net position

Planfiduciary net posltion - beginning
Planfiduciary net position - ending

Net OPEB liability - ending

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total GPEB liability

Cavered payroll

SCHEDULE b
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
8200 § 12776 § 1117 $ 6694 $ 7555 0§ 6,061
4,234 4,865 5,628 8,662 8,045 5,058

- - . {4,005) - -

- (46,821 . {6.453) - 2,607
{19,917) 17,056 12,254 37,202 (14,948) 7,160
(8,025) {6,708 (6:451) (6,525} (6.274) {4,104)
(15400) § (18,833) § 22548 ®& 93855 §  (7,620) § 17,682

201218 § 220081 $ 197603 § 163648 $ 171268 § 183,588

185809 $ 201218 $ 220081 $ 197503 § 163848 $ 171,288
BO25 § 8708 %  B451 § 6525 § 6274 4,104
{8,025) (6,708) {6,451) (8,526) (6,274) {4,104)

- % -8 - % - - 8 -
-8 -8 - 8 - 8 -8 -

189808 § - 201218 & 220051 $ 197,508 § 163648 & 171,268

BEB,534 § 886,534 § 1154213 § 1,154,213  $1,.243,918  §$1.243.818
20.5% 22,6% 18.1% 17.1% 13.2% 13.8%

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year are for those years for which information Is available.

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
69



SCHEDULE 6
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* .

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
MMEHT;
Employer contributions § 8028 $ 6708 § 6,451 § 6525 § 6,274 $ 4,104
Benefit payments (8,025) (6,709) (6,451) {6,525) (6,274) (4,104
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 -3 - % - 3 - % - 8 -
Govered payroll $ 888534 $ 888534 $ 1,154,213 $ 1154212 $1,243918 $1,243,918
Contributions as a percantage of covered payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year are for those years for which information is avaitable.

.

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
70



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Changes of Assumptions

MMEHT OPEB Plan:

There was a change in the discount rate from 2.06% to 3.72% per GASB 75
discount rate selection. Ultimate medical trends were aligned to the higher inflation
environment for the roll forward as of this measurement date.

»

See accompany‘ing independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
: 71



QOther Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules
not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic
financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

Schédule of Departmental Operations - General Fund
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues,- Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Schedule of General Capital Assets by Function

Schedule of Changes in General Capital Assets by Function

.

72



SCHEDULE A
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

-~ Variance
Original Budget Final Positive
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual (Negative)
General Government -
Administration $ 1608714 $ - § 1608714 §$ 1548437 % 60,277
Town committees 278,352 - 278,352 265,394 12,958
Comprehensive plan - 35,000 35,000 7,163 27 837
Hearings and elections 28,245 - 28,245 20,181 8,084
Senior taxpayer assistance - 16,519 16,519 12,700 3,819
1,915,311 51,519 1,966,830 1,853,876 112,955
Public Safety -
Police department 1,363,146 - 1,363,148 1,273,291 89,855
Fire department 243,957 (65,505) 178,452 226,932 (48.480)
Animal control 12,497 - 12 497 1,785 10,712
Harbormaster 10,683 - 10,683 10,573 110
Hydrant rental 87,000 - 87,000 87,253 (253)
24 hour answering service 140,000 - 140,000 192,883 (52,983)
PSAP 23,925 - 23,925 23,925 -
Street lights 17.000 - 17,000 12,972 4,028
1,898,208 (B5,505) 1,832,703 1,820,714 2,989
Public Works -
Highway department 1,488,774 180,000 1,679,774 1,060,112 619,662
Snowhwinter maintenance 219,548 - 219,648 239,809 {20,261)
Summer maintenance 57,296 . - 67,206 27,648 29,648
Roads and bridges 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000
Stormwater 135,000 - 135,000 37,361 97,639
1,903,618 180,000 2,003,618 1,364,930 728,688
Recreation and Culture -
Community services department 182,694 - 182,694 173,705 8,889
CS8D programs 265,248 - 265,248 201,898 63,350
447 942 - 447 942 375,603 72,338

73



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Health and Sanitation~
Transfer station
Social services- -
General assistance

Education
County Tax
Debt Service -

Principal
Interest

Unclassified -
Overlay

Transfers to Other Funds -

Special revenue funds

Total Departmental ©perations

SCHEDULE A (CONTINUED)

Variance

Qriginal Budget Final Positive

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual (Negative)
269,568 K - 269,568 293,308 (23,740)
11,600 - 11,600 9,100 2,500
20,000 - 20,000 29,215 9,215
301,168 - 301,168 331,623 (30,455)
10,660,451 - 10,660,451 10,660,451 -
500,415 - 500415 500,415 -
103,780 (32,990) 70,790 70,790 -
11,480 - 11,490 13,972 (2,482)
115,270 (32,990) 82,280 84,782 (2,482)

183,257
525,147 - 525147 - 525147
525,147 - 525147 - 525,147
3,197,755,  (1,305,505) 1,892,250 1,892,250 -
3,197,755 (1,305,505) 1,892,250 1,892,250 -
$21465285 § (1,162481) $20,302,804 $18,893623 §$ 1,409,181
w

[N

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

74



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE B

JUNE 30, 2023
Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Permanent Govemmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS _

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,631,722 § 75887 % 1,880 1,709,489

Investments 712,889 1,603,028 39,736 2,355,653

Due from other funds 31,107 - - 31,107
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2375718 $ 1678915 § 41,616 4,096,249
LIABILITES

Due to other funds $ 1,164,380 § 13618 §$ - 1,177,998
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,164,380 13,618 - 1,177,998
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable - - - -

Restricted 465981 - 156,997 39,045 662,023

Committed 746,639 1,521,918 - 2,268,557

Assigned 3,721 - 2,571 8,292

Unassigned {5,003) {13,618) - (18,821)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,211,338 1,665,297 41,616 2,918,251
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND

BALANCES $ 2375718 $ 1678915 % 41,816 4,006,249

"l

PN

See accompanying independent auditor's repori énd notes to financial statements.

75 N



SCHEDULE C
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 9440 § - $ - $ 9,440
Investment income {net of unrealized
gainsflosses) 25,730 23,563 883 50,176
Other _ 82,105 147,732 - 229,837
TOTAL REVENUES 117,275 171,285 883 289,453
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 286,980 47 865 - 334,845
Other 23210 179,797 1,684 204,701
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 310,190 227,662 1,684 539,546
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER :
(UNDER)} EXPENDITURES (192,815) (56,367) (811) (250,093)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Transfers in 81,876 525,329 - 607,205
Transfers {out) - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 81,876 525,329 - 607,205
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {111,039) 488,662 (811) 357112
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 1,322,377 1,196,335 | 42 427 2,561,139
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 $ 1211338 $ 1665297 $ 41616 $ 2,918,251

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
76



Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources. (other than fiduciary trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

77



SCHEDULE D
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023
Sick Sewer Legal Community Energy Petroleum PD
Leave Betlsrment Fees Contingency Sendce Center  Efficiency Producis Fuel Asset
Reserve Resene Reserve Reserve Resene Reserva Resene Assistance Forfeliure

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 5877 3 6162 $ 3780 % 1,821 % 222 % 1,514 % 877 % 34721 $ 30,961

Investments 118,916 130,188 79,433 38,457 47,013 31,976 20,633 - -

Due frem other funds - 1 - - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 125503 $ 136340 $ B3193 § 40278 $ 40236 § 33400 $ 21810 § 34 721§ 30961
LIABLITIES

Due to other funds 3 - % - % - § - % - % - % -8 31o00  § 2
TOTAL LIABLITES - - - - - - = 31,000 2
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Nenspendable - - - - . - - - -

Restricted B - - - - - - - 30,959

Committed 125,503 136,349 83,183 40,278 49,23 33,490 21,810 - -

Assigned - - - - - - - 3,721 -

Unassigred - - - “ - - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANGES (DEFICTS) 125,583 136,349 83,183 - 40,278 49,239 33,480 21,810 3721 30,959
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) § 1266503 § 136340 B 83,193 § 40278 $ 48239 § 33490 § 21610 § 34721 §& 30,061

78



T L

SCHEDULE D (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE .,

- COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Health Transfer Station  Town Compensation PEG
nsurance Revaluation Vehicle Insurance Study Consultant Access
Reserve Resene Reserve Reserve Resernve Reserve ARPA Charnnel
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,235 § 525 § 975 $ 1547 % 260 & 122 ¢ 739,907 § -

Investments v 68,346 14,090 20,597 32,884 5480 - 2572 - -

Due from other funds - - - - - - - 31,105
TOTAL ASSETS st . B 71681 § 1615 8§ 21572 $ 34231 § 5750 % 2694 § 730907 $ 31,105
LIABILITIES ‘. - .

Dus to other funds . $ - 5 -5 - & - § -5 - $ 355802 $ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - - - 365,802 -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Nonspendable - - - - - - - -

Restricted - - - - - - 384,105 31,105

Gommitted 71,581 11,615 21,572 34,231 5,750 2,694 " -

Assigned - - - - - - - -

Unassigned - - - - - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANGCES (DEFICITS) 71,581 11,615 21,672 " 34,231 5,760 2,694 384,105 31,105
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $ 71581 § M85 $ 21572 § 34231 % 5750 § 2694 § 739907 $ 31,105

79



SCHEDULE D (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
. JUNE 30, 2023

General 200th Street Boat Contract Sewer
Assistance Ash Celebration Light Basin Settliement Bond
Resarve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Wage Reserve  Projact Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 56 § 5 8 1 % - 8 - B 4887 § 792383 $1,631,722

Invastments 1,174 72 24 - - 103,226 - 712,889

Due from cther funds 1 - - - - - - 31,107
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,231 % 78 25 8 - 5 - § 108113 & 762,383 $2375718
LIABILITES )

Pug to other furks 3 - % 2§ - § 4333 § 670 § - § 772571 $1,164,380
TOTAL LIABILITES - 2 - 4,333 670 - 772,571 1,164,380
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS}

Nonspendable - - - - - - - -

Restricted - - - - - - 19,812 465,981

Committed 1,231 75 25 - - 108,113 - 746,639

Assigned - - - - - - - 3,721

Unassignad - - - {4,333} {870) - - {5,003)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 1,231 75 26 {4,333) (670) 108,113 19,812 1,211,338
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $ 1,281 % 77 8 25 & - 3§ - $ 108113 § 792383 $2375718

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
80



SCHEDULE E
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE :

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Slck Sewer Legal Community Energy Petfroleum PD
Leave Betterment Fees Contingency Senvice Genter  Efiiciency Products Fuel Asset
Reserve Resenve Reserve Reserve Reserva Reserve Reseve Assistance Farfelture

REVENUES

Infergovemmental $ - § - % - 8 -~ 8 - 8 - 8 - § - 8 -

Investment Income (net of unrealized

gainsiosses) 1,918 2075 1,260 409 748 508 328 - -

Other - - - - “ - - 10,000 44,000
TCTAL REVENUES 1,915 2076 1,260 408 746 508 328 10,000 44,000
EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay - - - - - - - - -

Other 1,158 1,264 785 372 453 308 199 6,279 10,041
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,158 1,264 765 372 483 308 199 6,279 10,041
EXCESS CF REVENUES DVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 757 821 495 127 283 200 120 3,721 26,959
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 10,000 - - 5,944 - - - - B

Transfers (out) - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) 10,000 - - 5,944 - - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFIGITS) 10,757 821 405 6,071 293 200 129 3,721 30,059
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JULY 1 114,836 135,528 82,698 34,207 48,946 33,280 21481 - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JUNE 30 $ 125503 § 136340 § 83193 $ 40278 § 49239 % 33490 § 21 610 § 3721  § 30959

r . . » . "



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE E (CONTINUED)

COMBJNING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Investment income (net of unrealized
gainsflossas)
Other
TOTAL REVENLUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Other
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER S,
{UNDER) EXPENDTURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Transfers in
Transfars {ouf)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUNIX BALANCES {DEFICITS)
FUND BALANCES (DEF!CITS} JULY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) JUNE 30

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Health Transfer Station ~ Town Compensation PEG
Insurance  Revaluation Vehicle Insurance Study Consuliant Access
Resenve Reserva Reserve Reserve Reserva Reserve ARPA Channet
$ - 3 - % - % - 8 - 8 - 5 8440 3
1,087 177 320 519 87 41 14,431 "
- - - - - - - 31,105
1,087 177 320 519 87 41 23,871 31,106
- - - - - - 286,080
661 107 198 315 53 25 -
661 107 198 315 53 25 286,080
436 76 122 204 34 16 {263,108) 31,105
10,000 - - - - . -
10,000 - - - - - -
10,436 70 122 204 34 15 {283,109) 31,105
61,145 11,545 21,45C 34,027 5716 2,678 647,214
L]
$_71581 8 11615 § .21572 § 54281 § 5750 3 2694 § 384105 $ 31105

82

3



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE E (CONTINUED)

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Investment income (net of unrealizad
gainsflosses)
Other
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES -

Capital outlay .

Other
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDTURES

CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE iN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JULY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JUNE 30

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

General 200th Street Boat Contract Sewer
Assistance Asgh Calabration Light Basin Seitlement Bond
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Raeserve Wage Reserve_ Project ‘Total
$ - 3 5 - % - % $ - % - 8 2,440
18 - - - 1,708 - 25,730
- - - - - - 82,108
18 - - 1,708 - 117,275
- - - - - 236,980
il 1 - 1,010 - 23,210
k| 1 n 1,010 - 310,190
8 (1} - 508 (192,915)
- - - 55,932 - 81,878
- - - 55,932 - 81,876
8 1) - 56,830 - (111,039)
1,223 78 25 (4,333) (670) 51,483 19,812 1,322,377
§ 1231 § 76§ 26§ (4,333) % (670) § 108113 § 19812 $1,211,338

See acdompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

83



Capital Projects Funds

N

Capital proj:eacts' funds are established to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those
financed by proprietary or trust funds_.

84



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITES
Dug to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABLITIES AND FUND
BALANCES {DEFICITS)

JUNE 30, 2023

SCHEDULEF

Eliot Town Fire Police Land Road PublicWorks Sewer
Commons  Facilities Truck Cruiser Bank Equipment  Garage Capital
TIE Reserve Reserve Reserve Resernve ~  Reserve Capital  Improvement
$ 2164 $ 1000 $ 18637 § 936 § 1624 § 15536 § i7 % 4,596
45,722 21,315 393,678 19,842 34,207 328,171 365 97,082
$ 47886 § 22324 $412315 § 20781 $ 35921 §$343,707 §$ 382  $101,678
3 - % - 8 - § - % -3 - & - 8 -
47,886 - . - . - - -
22,2324 412315 20,781 35,921 343,707 382 101,678
47,686 22,324 412 315 20,781 35,921 343,707 382 101,678
$§ 47886 $ 22,324 $412315 $ 20,781 § 35921 $343.707 % 382 %101678

85



4
A

TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE F (CONTINUED)

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

PW TS Police Parks/ C/S/D PS Fire
Roadway  Vehicles Vehicle Station Facilittes Capital Impact Station
Paving Reserve Resarve Capital Capital _ Improvement  Fees Capital
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 11774 & 2§ 168 $§ 2287 $ 1565 $ 4932 § 457

Investments - 248,718 - 49 3,337 48,302 33,057 104,179 9,660
TOTAL ASSETS 3 - $260492 § 51 3 3495 § 50589 $ 34622 $109111 § 10,117

A
LIABILITIES ‘ ‘

Due to other funds’ ‘§ 7865 § - 8 - 8 - $ -3 - % -8 -
TOTAL LIABLITIES 7,865 N - - - - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - i

Nonspendable - - - - - - - -

Restricted - - - - - - 109,111 -

Committad - 260,492 51 3,495 50,580 34,622 - 10,117

Assigned " - - - - - - -

Unassigned (7,885) - - - - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) (7,868) 260,492 51 3495 50,689 34,622 109,111 10,117

.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUNR., - ‘ '
BALANCES (DEFICITS} - " $ - $260492 3§ 61 $ 3495 §$ 50589 $ 34622 §109111 $ 10417

)
s

-

86



SCHEDULE F (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Elict Police Eliot Fire Dept. Town Office Transfar Energy VIPS
Fire Dept Capital Stormwater Capital Capita! Station Facllity  Efficiency Capital
Equipment  Improvements Reserva Improvements  Improvements Capital Capital Reserva Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 464 & 1835 § 1464 % 582 $ 4,760 $ 994 § - 8 91 § 75887
Investments 9,808 38,762 30,920 12,304 100,638 21,007 - 1,913 1,603,028
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10273 & 40,587 3 32384 $ 12886 § 105299 $ 22001 $ - § 2,004 51678815
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds $ - % -8 -3 - 8 . - % 5758 & - % 13618
TOTAL LIABILITES - “ - - - - 5,753 - 13,618
FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS)
Nenspendable - - - . - - - - “
Restricted - - - - - - - - 166,097
Committed 10,273 40,597 32,384 12,886 105,299 22,001 - 2,004 1,521,918
Assigned - - - - - - - - -
Unassigred - - “ - - - {5.753) - (13,618)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICTS) 10,273 40,597 32,384 12,888 105,269 22,001 {5,7563) 2,004 1,865,287
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS) $§ 10273 § 40507 $ 323B4 $ 12886 $ 105299 & 22001 § - 3 2,004 $ 1678915

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

87



TOWN OF ELICT, MAINE

SCHEDULE G

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Investment income (net of unrealized
gains/losses)
Other
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outiay
Other

TOTAL. EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENEITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfars in
Transfers (out)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES
(USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JULY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JUNE 30

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Ellot Town Fire Polica Land Road Public Works  Sewer
Commons  Facilifies Truck Crulser Bank Equipment Garage Capiltal
TIF Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserva Capital _ Improvement
625 § 338 § 6457 % 752 & 550 $ 5575 § - % 2
- - - - - - [+] 101,563
825 338 6,457 752 550 5,575 8 101,565
- - - 38,715 - - - .
97,110 205 3,848 469 332 69,672 3 1
97,110 205 3,848 30,184 332 69,6572 3 1
{06,485} 133 2,609 {38,432} 218 (63,997) 3 101,564
07629 - 195,000 56,000 5,000 - - -
97,629 - 195,000 56,000 5,000 - - -
1,144 133 197,609 17,568 5,218 (63,997) 3 101,564
46,742 22,191 214,706 3,213 30,703 407,704 379 114
$ 47886 $§ 22324 $412315 $ 20781 $ 35921 § 343707 5 382 % 101,678

88



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE G (CONTINUED)

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Invastment inceme (net of unrealized
gainsfiosses)
Other
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES Y .
Capitaloutlay " -
Other *

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENRITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANGCING SOURCES
{LISES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITSY
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JULY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JUNE 30

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

PW TS Police Parks/ cfsn PS Fire

Roadway Vehicles Vehicle Station Fagllittes Capital Impact Station
Paving Reserve Reserve Capital Capital _ Improvement Fees Capital
% {517) $ 3896 § 1 8 53 % 767§ 524 8 987 % 153
- - - - - - 46,163 -
(517 3,898 1 53 787 524 47,150 153
- 9,150 - - - - - .
- 2,618 - 3z 485 318 579 93
- 11,768 - 32 465 318 579 93
(5817) (7.872) 1 by 302 206 46,571 60
- 141,700 - - - - -
141,700 + - - - - - -
(517) 133,828 1 21 302 208 46,571 680
(7,348} 126,664 50 3,474 50,287 34,416 62,540 10,057
§ (7865} $ 260492 § 51 § 3495 § 50,580 $ 34622 $ 109111 $ 10117

89



SCHEDULE G (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PRCJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Eliot Police Ellet Flra Dept Town Office “Transfer Energy ViIPS
Fire Dept Capital Stormwater Capital Capltal  StatlonFacility Efficiency Capital
Equipment _Improverments Reserve Improvements mprovemenis Capital Capital Reserve Total

REVENUES

Invasiment incomes (net of unrealized

galnslosses) $ 143 § 615 § 491 % 196 § 1502 % 338 % - 8 30 $ 23563

Othar - - - - : - - - - 147,732
TOTAL REVENUES 143 815 481 196 1,692 333 - 30 171,285
EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay - - “ - " - - - 47,865

Other 04 373 298 119 3.048 202 - 18 179,797
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 94 373 208 119 3,048 202 - 18 227,662
EXGCESS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDI{TURES A9 242 193 77 {1,456) 131 - 12 (56,367)
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)

Transfers in - - - - 30,000 - - " 525,329

Transfers {out) - - C . - - - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQOURCES

(USES) - . - - 30,000 - - - 525,329
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 49 242 193 77 28,544 131 - 12 468,962
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JULY 1 10,224 40,366 32,19 12,809 76,766 21,870 (6,763) 1,862 1,196,335
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - JUNE 30 $.10273 S 40597 $ 32384 $ 12886 % 105209 § 22001 § (5,763) § 2.(:'!04 $ 1,665,297

See accompanying in'depéndent auditor’s report and netes to financial statements.
90



Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to account for assets held by the Town of Eliot, Maine
that are legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State Statutes, as
amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and not principal, may be used
for purposes that benefit the Town or its citizenry. These funds have been established
for various purposes including the provision and/or maintenance of the cemeteries.

91



SCHEDULE H
TOWN OF ELICT, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

-

Mt Pleasant Frost-Tufts Marie Lizzie Lena Grover

Cemetery Pari Spinney Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Cashand cashequivalents  § 125 § 541 % 1173 $ 41 § 1,880

Investments 2,648 11,437 24,775 876 39,736
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2773 & 11,978 § 25948 917 $ 41,618
LIABILITIES

Due to other funds $ - & - % -8 -8 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -
FUND BALANCES

Nenspendable - - - - -

Resticted 2,192 11,219 24,910 724 39,045

Committed .. - o= - - -

Assigned T 681 759 1,038 193 2,571

Unassigned . - - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ™ - . 2773 11,978 25,948 917 41,616
TOTAL LIABILITES AND -

FUND BALANCES $ 2773 % 11,078 § 25948 § 917 $ 41,816

See dtcompanying independent auditor’'s report and notes to financial statements.
St T 92




SCHEDULE |
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Mt Pleasant Frost-Tufts Marie Lizzie Lena Grover

Cemetery Park Spinney Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Investment income {net of unrealized
gains/losses) $ 59 § 254 % 551 % 19 § 883
TOTAL REVENUES 59 254 551 19 883
EXPENDITURES :

Cther 113 488 1,056 37 1,694
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 118 488 1,056 37 1,604
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (54) (234} {505) {18) {811)
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 2,827 12,212 26,453 935 42 427
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 $ 2,773  $ 11978 § 25948 § 917 % 41,618

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.
93



General Capital Assets

General capital assels are those assefs related to activities reported in the
governmental funds. These assets are reported in the governmental activities’ column
of the government-wide statement of net position.

94



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTICN
JUNE 30, 2023

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Recreation and Culture
Sewer

Total General Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net General Capital Assets

SCHEDULE J

Furniture,
Land and Buildings, Fixtures,
Non-depreciable  Building Improvements  Equipment
Assets and Land Improvements and Vehicles Infrastructure Total

$ 68,001 $ 571124 § 28707 § 4288 § 672120
2 2,531,424 1,623,753 - 4,155,179
1 401,009 1,525,955 3,620,880 5,547,845
116,418 775,829 96,5623 13,500 1,002,270
3,759,904 - - 3,873,456 7,633,360
3,944,326 4,279,388 3,274,938 7,512,124 19,010,774
- ' (3,202,694) (1,593,504)  (4,148113) (9,034.211)
$ 3944326 % 086,792 $1681434 $3364011 $ 9,978,563

See accompanying independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

95



SCHEDULE K
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE .

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

General General

Capital Capital

Assets Disposals/ Assets

7HM[22 Additions Transfers 6/30/23
" General Government $ 671125 $ 22888 $ (21,893) § 672,120
“  Public Safety 4811913 57,801 {714,535) 4,155,179
Public Works 5,479,808 283,189 (215,152) 5,547,845
Recreation and Cullure 1,008,117 - (5,847) 1,002,270
Sewer 65,229,480 1,403,880 - 7,633,360
Total General Capital Assets 18,200,443 1,767,758 (957.427) 19,010,774
Less: Accumulated Depreciation '(9,393,286) (577,087) 936,162 {9,034,211)
Net General E)apital Assets $ 8807157 $1,190871 $ (21,265) $ 9,076,583

See accompanying independent auditor's repo‘f't and notes to financial statements.
98



Proven Experiive & Integrify

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Selectboard
Town of Eliot
Eliot, Maine

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Eliot, Maihe as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Eliot, Maine’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 6, 2024.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
the Town of Eliot, Maine's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the- audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Eliot, Maine’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Eliot, Maine's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented,or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material’ weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
Tel: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 929-4609
www.thrsmith.com

a7



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesseés .or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Eliot,
Maine's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We noted
certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Eliot, Maine in a
separate letter dated March 6, 2024.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
inté§fral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this

communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Buxton, Maine *. y
March 6, 2024

98



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

ELIOT Payroll Warrant 03/20/2024
12:17 PM Pay Date: 03/21/2024 Page 1
WARRANT: 91

Check D/D Check Empblovee Gross Pay
15695 350.00 42458 4501 JAY P. MUZEROLL 1,000.35
15696 300.00 1,039.02 3010 Norman R Albert 1,900.00
115695 843.18 0.00 1005 MELISSA T. ALBERT 1,559.60
115696 963.71 0.00 1059 Kristin D McNulty 1,600.00
115697 406.34 0.00 1104 Sierra A Pawnell 440.00
115698 1,696.98 0.00 1041 Michael J. Sullivan 2,346.40
115699 264.12 0.00 6084 Robert B. Veino 291.24
115700 652.30 0.00 1077 Mikayla L.F. Ferrara 954.00
115701 679.02 0.00 1068 Kylie R Gordon 920.00
115702 1,187.18 0.00 1010 WENDY J. RAWSKI 1,730.80
115703 787.72 0.00 1101 Lauren A Small 1,135.20
115704 979.69 0.00 1003 Rochelle M Bishop 1,502.80
115705 988.32 0.00 1032 Jeffery S. Brubaker 1,607.20
115706 1,043.95 0.00 1099 Donald K Ferrara 1,576.80
115707 666.16 0.00 1069 Kim R Tackett 990.01
115708 785.80 0.00 5078 Casey R Cyr 1,263.99
115709 772.15 0.00 5053 BRIAN P. DELANEY 1,367.20
115710 1,240.85 0.00 5076 William A. Dries 1,966.64
115711 852.15 0.00 5077 Robert Govoni 1,291.05
115712 858.80 0.00 5019 Ronald H Lund 1,509.20
115713 1,203.34 0.00 5074 Ryan D. Mazur 2,157.07
115714 1,185.96 0.00 5068 ELLIOTT L. MOYA 2,230.80
115715 638.70 0.00 5071 JUDITH F. SMITH 912.40
115716 640.06 0.00 3104 Douglas M Blaisdell 1,059.60
115717 597.22 0.00 4538 BRIAN C. HOLT 952.00
115718 683.07 0.00 3116 Austin D Mahoney 1,018.00
115719 983.38 0.00 3013 Kasey A Ross 1,406.00
115720 763.99 0.00 1026 David R Ross-Lyons 1,114.80
115721 900.27 0.00 3028 JAMES G. ROY 1,421.20
115722 232.90 0.00 3008 DONALD E. SYLVESTER 252.20
115723 319.57 0.00 3102 RONALD PEARSON 406.98
115724 412.26 0.00 1263 Thomas J. Phillips, III 509.85
115725 304.32 0.00 3083 RALPH E. PLACE 385.51
115726 233.05 0.00 3084 Daryl R Theriault 319.77
115727 304.47 0.00 3059 Robert H. Whittaker 377.91
115728 276.10 0.00 3110 Nicholas P Willis 345.99
115729 427.57 0.00 1310 Lindsay M. Jardine 559.90
115730 948.93 0.00 1060 HEATHER MUZEROLL-ROY 1,500.00
115731 783.62 0.00 1286 Megan E Roche 1,075.00
115732 246.46 0.00 1297 Nancy Young 266.88
115733 153.53 0.00 1103 Amanda E McKay 166.25
115734 117.17 0.00 1081 Ella G Vennard 126.88
115735 0.00 28,67436 D/ D9 KENNEBUNK SAVINGS BANK

15697 0.00 54.74 T & A9 Mission Square

15698 0.00 54.74 T & A 10 Mission Square
115736 0.00 11,185.61 T & A1 Kennebunk Savings Bank
115737 0.00 180.00 T & A 7 Maine State Retirement Service
115738 0.00 2,122.91 T & A4 Treasurer of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

ELIOT Payroll Warrant 03/20/2024
12:17 PM Pay Date: 03/21/2024 Page 2
WARRANT: 91
Check D/D Check Empblovee Gross Pay
Total 28,674.36 43,735.96 45,517.47
Put into A/P 18,916.36
Taken out of A/P (13,598.00)
Total Payroll 49,054.32
Count
Checks 48

WE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELIOT AUTHORIZE THE TOWN TREASURER
Kristin McNulty TO PAY THE INVOICES ON THIS WARRANT.

Lauren Dow Bruce Cabot Trott

Richard Donhauser Stanley Shapleigh

William Widi



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 1
Varrant 92
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
02854 Amazon Capital Services
1029 32707 03 cabl e 13Wi- 6HCR- 6X6R
cabl e E 10-01-03-05 19.98 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Training
I nvoi ce Total - 19.98
1029 32707 03 Ext parts 11N6- QGVR- WG
Ext parts E 10-01-24-10 92. 95 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equipnent
I nvoi ce Total - 92.95
1029 32707 03 Easel stand 1CTV- HCLL- WSLK
Easel stand E 10-01- 03-05 189. 99 0.00
Enpl oyees / Training
I nvoi ce Total - 189. 99
1029 32707 03 Curtains 131D PGR9- RK9Q
Curtains E 10-01-24-20 93.97 0.00
Rep. & Maint / Building
I nvoi ce Total - 93. 97
1029 32707 03 Med supplies 11XV- KY9K- R33Q
Med supplies E 10-01-03-05 91. 40 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Training
I nvoi ce Total - 91. 40
1029 32707 03 SCBA batt. 1Q1LJ- TIMW NL46
SCBA batt. E 10-01-10-16 56. 12 0. 00
Contract Svc / SCBA Maint.
I nvoi ce Total - 56. 12
1029 32707 03 suppl i es 1DVC- N7D7- NP3K
suppl i es E 10-01-24-20 105. 78 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Building
I nvoi ce Total - 105. 78
1029 32707 03 supplies & truck 1LXY- PH3D- 1PLP
#10 truck E 20-01-24-15 150. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Vehicle
Hw of fice supplies E 20-01-20-40 13. 49 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Cfice
T/S office E 20-25-20-40 58. 00 0. 00
tation - Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 221. 49
1029 32707 03 supplies & equip 1XGC- P67J- 1HLC
Hwy office E 20-01-20-40 9.15 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
Hwy equi p. E 20-01-24-10 63. 12 0.00
Rep. & Maint / Equi pment
I nvoi ce Total - 72.27
Vendor Total - 943. 95
00072 BERNSTEI N, SHUR, SAWER & NELSON
1029 32708 03 Sewer Exp 4062843
Sewer Exp E 90-30-99-01 1, 376. 50 0. 00
Msc. / Msc.
I nvoi ce Total - 1, 376. 50
1029 32708 03 Franck Conpl ai nt 4062842



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 2
Varrant 92
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
Franck Conpl ai nt E 01-01-10-02 156. 00 0. 00
Contract Svc / Legal Serv.
I nvoi ce Total - 156. 00
1029 32708 03 Cener al 4062840
Gener al E 01-01-10-02 122. 00 0. 00
Contract Svc / Legal Serv.
I nvoi ce Total - 122.00
1029 32708 03 Taxt title 4062841
Taxt title E 01-01-10-02 30. 50 0. 00
Contract Svc / Legal Serv.
I nvoi ce Total - 30.50
1029 32708 03 Town hall reno 4062844
Town hall reno E 90-03-99-01 91. 50 0. 00
Msc. / Msc.
I nvoi ce Total - 91. 50
Vendor Total - 1,776. 50
00109 CENTRAL MAI NE POWER
1029 32709 03 66 Dow Hwy 718001924097
66 Dow Hwy E 10- 01-15-02 82. 45 0.00
Uilities / Electricity
Vendor Total - 82. 45
00121 Cintas Corporation #758
1029 32710 03 3/ 15/ 24 Uni forns 4186533415
3/15/ 24 Uniforns E 20-01-03-15 158. 37 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Uniforns
Vendor Total - 158. 37
01337 CNC ELECTRIC
1029 32711 03 PD El ectric 3411
PD El ectric E 10- 05-24-20 250. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Building
Vendor Total - 250. 00
02679 Cravens Inspection Services L.L.C.
1029 32712 03 backfl o test 342
backfl o test E 10- 01-24-20 55. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Building
Vendor Total - 55. 00
00147 CUMM NS | NC
1029 32713 03 General maint. V6- 2234
General maint. E 10- 05-24-20 429. 84 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Building
Vendor Tot al - 429. 84
02515 Edison Press
1029 32714 03 busi ness cards 124142
busi ness cards E 20-01-20-40 142. 10 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Cfice
Vendor Tot al - 142.10

02940 Fisher Auto Parts
1029 32715 03 Br akes #10 460- 283181



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 3
Varrant 92
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
Brakes #10 E 20-01-24-15 514. 23 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Vehicle
I nvoi ce Total - 514. 23
1029 32715 03 Core refund 460- 283191
Credit Meno G 01-9999- 00 -131. 63 0. 00
Clearing AC
I nvoi ce Total - -131.63
1029 32715 03 Cor e Refund 460- 283379
Credit Meno G 01-9999-00 -65. 00 0. 00
Clearing AC
I nvoi ce Total - -65. 00
Vendor Total - 317. 60
02015 HEATWAVE O L, LLC
1029 32716 03 Hwy heat 759867
Hwy heat E 20-01-15-01 575. 45 0. 00
Uilities / Heating
I nvoi ce Total - 575. 45
1029 32716 03 fuel - diesel 759919
fuel - diesel E 20-05-20-10 2,211.84 0. 00
Supplies / Fue
I nvoi ce Total - 2,211.84
Vendor Total - 2,787.29
00816 Irving Q|
1029 32717 03 FD Fuel 35453233
FD Fuel E 10-01-20-15 229. 93 0. 00
Supplies / Gasoline
I nvoi ce Total - 229. 93
1029 32717 03 T/ S fuel 35451698
T/ S fuel E 20- 05-20-10 34.62 0. 00
Supplies / Fue
I nvoi ce Total - 34.62
Vendor Total - 264.55
00340 KI TTERY WATER DI STRI CT
1029 32718 03 PD wat er 3527- 32024
PD wat er E 10-05-15-04 37.01 0. 00
Uilities / Water
I nvoi ce Total - 37.01
1029 32718 03 4291 quarterly 4291- 32024
4291 quarterly E 70-05-15- 04 37.00 0. 00
Uilities / Water
I nvoi ce Total - 37.00
1029 32718 03 3345 quarterly 3345- 32024
3345 quarterly E 70-05-15-04 37.01 0. 00
Uilities / Water
I nvoi ce Total - 37.01
1029 32718 03 3529 quarterly 3529- 32024
3529 quarterly E 01-01-15-04 93. 17 0. 00

Uilities / Water

I nvoi ce Total - 93. 17



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

El i ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 4
Varrant 92
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
1029 32718 03 6115 quarterly 6115- 32024
6115 quarterly E 01-01-15-04 93. 17 0. 00
Uilities / Water
I nvoi ce Total - 93. 17
Vendor Tot al - 297. 36
00000 Kyl ie Gordon
1029 32719 03 Travel reinbursenent 3/ 14/ 2024
Travel reinbursenent E 01-02-03-05 152. 69 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Training
Vendor Total - 152. 69
02956 Mai ne Government Finance Officers Association
1029 32720 03 Webi nar 1000458544
\ebi nar E 01- 01-03-05 15. 00 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Training
Vendor Total - 15. 00
01006 Mai ne Munici pal Enpl oyee Heal th Trust
1029 32721 03 April MVEHT 3/ 18/ 2024
April MVEHT E 01-01-03-10 34, 262. 65 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Health Ins.
April MVEHT G 01-2230- 00 6,435.71 0. 00
Heal t h/ MVEHT
Vendor Total - 40, 698. 36
00444 MAINE TOMWN & CI TY CLERK' S ASSN
1029 32722 03 KG vitals training 1000457725
KG vitals training E 01-02-03-05 60. 00 0. 00
Enpl oyees / Training
Vendor Total - 60. 00
01244 P. GAGNON & SON, I NC
1029 32723 03 FD heat 9587
FD heat E 10-01-15-01 323. 30 0. 00
Uilities / Heating
Vendor Total - 323.30
00555 Radi o Conmmuni cati ons Managenent, |nc.
1029 32724 03 Radi o cabl e 99433
Radi o cabl e E 10-01-24-15 131. 63 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Vehicle
Vendor Tot al - 131.63
00358 Randy M Buccin
1029 32725 03 PEG access 3/ 14/ 24
PEG access E 93-23-99-01 450. 00 0. 00
Msc. / Msc
Vendor Tot al - 450. 00
02722 Sebago Technics, Inc
1029 32726 03 Leach Rd Drai nage review 202312227
Leach Rd Drai nage review E 20-30-10-41 1, 619. 08 0. 00

Contract Svc / Engineering

Vendor Tot al - 1,619. 08




DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

El i ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 5
Warrant 92
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
00648 SOUTHERN MAI NE PLANNI NG
1029 32727 03 Conp. plan 17202
Conp. plan E 02- 03-99-01 280. 00 0.00
Msc. / Msc.
I nvoi ce Total - 280. 00
1029 32727 03 St or mwat er 17226
St or nwat er E 20- 30-05-35 1, 485. 00 0. 00
Service Fees / Consulting
I nvoi ce Total - 1, 485. 00
1029 32727 03 Wor kshop 17157
Wor kshop E 01-03-05-35 200. 00 0. 00
Service Fees / Consulting
I nvoi ce Total - 200. 00
Vendor Tot al - 1, 965. 00
02824 The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co.
1029 32728 03 T/S Tire 068- 1082151
T/S Tire E 20-25-24-10 320. 45 0.00
tation - Rep. & Maint / Equi prent
Vendor Total - 320. 45
01853 Town Hall Streams, LLC
1029 32729 03 nonthly streans 15412
nonthly streans E 01-01-05-24 250. 00 0.00
Service Fees / Video Stream
Vendor Total - 250. 00
00725 TREASURER OF STATE
1029 32730 03 BW Report 3/7-3/14
BW Report G 01-2040- 00 27, 805. 17 0. 00
DW Regs
Vendor Total - 27, 805. 17
00873 U.S. BANK CORPORATE TRUST/ BOSTON
1029 32731 03 Bond paynent MVBB2019A- ELI T1
Bond paymnent E 07-02-65-06 1, 028. 09 0. 00
Debt Service / Interest
Vendor Total - 1, 028. 09
00906 W B. MASON COMPANY, | NC.
1029 32732 03 Notary & enmbossers KMBLS 245073771
Notary & enmbossers KMBLS E 01-01-20-40 79. 40 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
Vendor Total - 79. 40
00904 West brook Paper City Hoops
1029 32733 03 Travel tournamnent 3/ 12/ 2024
Travel tournanent E 31-02-55-02 200. 00 0. 00
Prog. Exp. / Contracted
Vendor Tot al - 200. 00
02029 WEX Bank
1029 32734 03 Fuel 95613199
Fuel E 10-01-20-15 386. 39 0. 00

Supplies / Gasoline



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0F2E6C3F-8852-402A-92FC-6E2C76669F98

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 20/ 2024
2:10 PM Page 6
Warrant 92

Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
Vendor Tot al - 386. 39

02844 W N Waste | nnovations

1029 32735 03 Wast e 23- 0000260399
Wast e E 20-25-10-28 162. 84 0. 00
tation - Contract Svc / Disposal
Vendor Tot al - 162. 84
00570 York County Registry of Deeds
1029 32736 03 18 Littl ebrood deed rel ea 3/ 18/ 24
18 Littl ebrood deed rel ea E 01-02-05-20 32.00 0. 00
Service Fees / Tran/Liens
Vendor Tot al - 32.00
Prepaid Total - 0. 00
Current Total - 83, 184. 41
EFT Tot al - 0. 00
Warrant Total - 83, 184. 41

WE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELI OT AUTHORI ZE THE TOWN TREASURER
Kristin McNulty TO PAY THE | NVO CES ON THI S WARRANT.

Laur en Dow Bruce Cabot Trott

Ri chard Donhauser St anl ey Shapl ei gh

WIIliam Wdi



DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

ELIOT Payroll Warrant 03/13/2024
11:07 AM Pay Date: 03/14/2024 Page 1
WARRANT: 89
Check D/D Check Empblovee Gross Pay
15680 0.00 192.74 2030 J. PETER DENNETT 208.71
15681 0.00 241.35 2207 Maryann Place 283.00
15682 0.00 107.81 2206 Nedra Sahr 116.74
15683 0.00 98.01 2209 Janis A. Sullivan 106.13
15684 0.00 84.95 2208 Robert B. Sullivan 91.98
15685 0.00 209.36 4517 ROBERT O. MCPHERSON 285.00
15686 350.00 424.58 4501 JAY P. MUZEROLL 1,000.35
15687 0.00 107.67 2010 Mary Dennett 116.74
15688 0.00 84.95 2002 Raymond Faulkner 91.98
15689 0.00 94.74 2020 Jennifer F Himmer 102.59
15690 0.00 107.81 1030 Kim M. Reed 116.74
15691 0.00 110.59 2093 JANE SPINNEY 120.28
15692 0.00 1,339.02 3010 Norman R Albert 1,900.00
115680 843.18 0.00 1005 MELISSA T. ALBERT 1,559.60
115681 214.98 0.00 2125 ELLEN M. LEMIRE 287.83
115682 963.71 0.00 1059 Kristin D McNulty 1,600.00
115683 406.34 0.00 1104 Sierra A Pawnell 440.00
115684 1,696.98 0.00 1041 Michael J. Sullivan 2,346.40
115685 264.12 0.00 6084 Robert B. Veino 291.24
115686 652.30 0.00 1077 Mikayla L.F. Ferrara 954.00
115687 702.29 0.00 1068 Kylie R Gordon 954.50
115688 1,187.18 0.00 1010 WENDY J. RAWSKI 1,730.80
115689 787.72 0.00 1101 Lauren A Small 1,135.20
115690 979.69 0.00 1003 Rochelle M Bishop 1,502.80
115691 988.32 0.00 1032 Jeffery S. Brubaker 1,607.20
115692 1,043.95 0.00 1099 Donald K Ferrara 1,576.80
115693 666.15 0.00 1069 Kim R Tackett 990.00
115694 776.83 0.00 5078 Casey R Cyr 1,249.99
115695 1,102.57 0.00 5053 BRIAN P. DELANEY 1,879.90
115696 922.76 0.00 5076 William A. Dries 1,386.32
115697 1,167.28 0.00 5077 Robert Govoni 1,851.35
115698 858.80 0.00 5019 Ronald H Lund 1,509.20
115699 837.28 0.00 5074 Ryan D. Mazur 1,483.97
115700 1,185.96 0.00 5068 ELLIOTT L. MOYA 2,230.80
115701 785.64 0.00 5210 Paul W Shield 900.00
115702 638.70 0.00 5071 JUDITH F. SMITH 912.40
115703 640.06 0.00 3104 Douglas M Blaisdell 1,059.60
115704 646.07 0.00 4538 BRIAN C. HOLT 1,023.40
115705 683.07 0.00 3116 Austin D Mahoney 1,018.00
115706 983.39 0.00 3013 Kasey A Ross 1,406.01
115707 763.99 0.00 1026 David R Ross-Lyons 1,114.80
115708 972.33 0.00 3028 JAMES G. ROY 1,527.80
115709 464.64 0.00 3008 DONALD E. SYLVESTER 516.12
115710 319.57 0.00 3102 RONALD PEARSON 406.98
115711 412.26 0.00 1263 Thomas J. Phillips, III 509.85
115712 274.06 0.00 3083 RALPH E. PLACE 344.93
115713 233.05 0.00 3084 Daryl R Theriault 319.77
115714 304.47 0.00 3059 Robert H. Whittaker 377.91



DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

ELIOT Payroll Warrant 03/13/2024
11:07 AM Pay Date: 03/14/2024 Page 2
WARRANT: 89
Check D/D Check Empblovee Gross Pay
115715 276.10 0.00 3110 Nicholas P Willis 345.99
115716 620.69 0.00 1310 Lindsay M. Jardine 819.50
115717 948.93 0.00 1060 HEATHER MUZEROLL-ROY 1,500.00
115718 733.00 0.00 1286 Megan E Roche 1,000.00
115719 282.82 0.00 1297 Nancy Young 306.25
115720 145.45 0.00 1103 Amanda E McKay 157.50
115721 189.90 0.00 1081 Ella G Vennard 205.63
115722 0.00 29,916.58 D/ D9 KENNEBUNK SAVINGS BANK
15693 0.00 54.74 T & A9 Mission Square
15694 0.00 54.74 T & A 10 Mission Square
115723 0.00 11,799.57 T & A1 Kennebunk Savings Bank
115724 0.00 180.00 T & A 7 Maine State Retirement Service
115725 0.00 2,157.53 T & A4 Treasurer of State
Total 29,916.58 47,366.74 48,880.58
Put into A/P 19,554.50
Taken out of A/P (14,246.58)
Total Payroll 52,674.66
Count
Checks 61

VWE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN COF ELI OT AUTHORI ZE THE TOWN TREASURER

Docusignedby: Kri stin McNulty TO PAY THE | EebrsignedMy:THI S WARRANT.
amnen Dou Brwe (abet Trett
O4COTT8ABT79438" DOFZ5B64353D4E4~"

DocuSigned @yr uce Cabot Trott

ﬁiduwi Dovdrawsr R;wji;; Sluapleige

lséur en Dow

~——DocuSigned by:
9TESTEFCBEC3406... o8CY9COT/8EF47D..

R chard Donhautecj j St anl ey Shapl ei gh
pr\t’\ (—dq o

E3ZBUCFFFF404C8.

WIliamWdi




DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 13/ 2024
4:57 PM Page 1
Warrant 90
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
02846 Advanced Workpl ace Strategies, Inc.
0997 32682 03 Mandat ory fntsa drug test 611396
Mandatory fntsa drug test E 01-01-03-02 62. 00 0. 00
Enpl oyees / HR
Vendor Tot al - 62. 00
02854 Amazon Capital Services
0997 32683 03 LT office 13P7- 6MPM YLFJ
LT office E 10-01-24-20 548. 99 0.00
Rep. & Maint / Building
I nvoi ce Total - 548. 99
0997 32683 03 office 1C79- MBVR- P7THY
office E 10-01-24-20 167. 99 0.00
Rep. & Maint / Building
I nvoi ce Total - 167.99
0997 32683 03 of c. supplies & equip 11TJ- MYYV- DHRH
O fice supplies E 20-01-20-40 16. 86 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Cfice
O fice supplies E 20-25-20-40 136. 68 0. 00
tation - Supplies / Dept./Ofice
Equi pnent E 20-25-03-15 15.94 0. 00
tation - Enpl oyees / Uniforns
Equi pnent E 20- 05-24-10 100. 33 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equipnent
I nvoi ce Total - 269. 81
0997 32683 03 Ofice supply 1DPH CILC- D4X3
Ofice supply E 01-01-20-40 36.34 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 36. 34
0997 32683 03 El ection supply 1DFQ D96X- JKLV
El ection supply E 15-15-20-04 9.99 0. 00
Supplies / Election
I nvoi ce Total - 9.99
0997 32683 03 New phone prot. case 1R3C- GY17- WDQ
New phone prot. case E 01-01-20-40 11. 99 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 11.99
0997 32683 03 Cal endar 1G)9- GWM DN67
Cal endar E 01-01-20-40 16. 49 0.00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 16. 49
0997 32683 03 Credit Meno 1NAY- YKTT- 7H7/D
Credit Meno G 01-9999-00 -48. 99 0. 00
Clearing AIC
I nvoi ce Total - -48.99
Vendor Total - 1,012. 61
00121 Cintas Corporation #758
0997 32684 03 3/ 8 Uniforns 418582947
3/8 Uniforns E 20-01-03-15 158. 37 0.00
Enpl oyees / Uniforns
Vendor Total - 158. 37




DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 13/ 2024
4.57 PM Page 2
VWarrant 90

Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance

00131 COMCAST

0997 32685 03 PEG access 0475- 32024
PEG access E 93-23-99-01 110. 54 0. 00
Msc. / Msc
Vendor Total - 110. 54

00000 Donal d Ferrara

0997 32686 03 rei mburse mleage & tolls 3/ 2024
rei nburse nmleage & tolls E 01-03-03-06 166. 08 0. 00
Enpl oyees / M| eage
Vendor Tot al - 166. 08
02333 EcoMai ne
0997 32687 03 Bul ky waste BULELI OTO1
Bul ky waste E 20-25-10-28 2,411. 28 0.00
tation - Contract Svc / Disposa
I nvoi ce Total - 2,411. 28
0997 32687 03 Wast e ELI OT01
Wast e E 20-25-10-28 2,969.92 0.00
tation - Contract Svc / D sposa
I nvoi ce Total - 2,969.92
Vendor Total - 5, 381. 20
02475 Leaf
0997 32688 03 Lease copiers 16190561
Lease copiers E 07-02-65-08 721. 61 0. 00
Debt Service / Leases
Vendor Total - 721.61
00388 Mai nePERS
0997 999999 03 Feb 2024 2/ 2024
Feb 2024 E 01-01-03-40 20, 468. 75 0. 00
Enpl oyees / MPERs
Feb 2024 G 01-2215-00 15, 354. 76 0. 00
MSRS/ Enpl oye
Vendor Tot al - 35, 823.51
02675 MyRec. com
0997 32689 03 Rec software 03217106S
Rec software E 01-01-13-02 5,120. 00 0. 00
Technol ogy / Software
Vendor Tot al - 5, 120. 00
02901 Port City Architecture
0997 32690 03 Town hal | project 23424-3
Town hal | project E 90-03-99-01 18, 816. 85 0. 00
Msc. / Msc
Vendor Tot al - 18, 816. 85
01956 RHR SM TH & COMPANY
0997 32691 03 Final FY23 audit pymt 2024- 0859
Final FY23 audit pymt E 01-01-10-01 100. 00 0. 00
Contract Svc / Auditor
Vendor Tot al - 100. 00

00619 S.A.D. # 35



DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 13/ 2024
4.57 PM Page 3
VWarrant 90
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
0997 32692 03 March Assessnent 3/ 2024
March Assessnent E 62-01-99-01 912, 852. 25 0. 00
Msc. / Msc.
Vendor Total - 912, 852. 25
01955 Schrei ber/ Cohen, LLC
0997 32693 03 wage garni shnent - narch 3.2024
wage garni shnent - narch G 01-2223-00 50. 00 0. 00
Davi d Dubord
Vendor Total - 50. 00
00671 SULLI VAN TI RE COVPANI ES
0997 32694 03 Snow tires 101866
Snow tires E 10- 05-24-15 620. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Vehicle
Vendor Total - 620. 00
00679 TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNI ON #340
0997 32695 03 March 2024 Dues 3/ 2024
March 2024 Dues G 01-2237-00 644. 00 0. 00
Uni on Dues-P
Vendor Total - 644. 00
00622 Termi nal Supply Inc.
0997 32696 03 LED wi nter 21597
LED wi nter E 20- 05-24-10 185. 88 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equi pnment
Vendor Total - 185. 88
00038 Ti ghe & Bond, Inc.
0997 32697 03 Water & sewer ext 032496051
Water & sewer ext E 90- 30-99-01 5,512.50 0. 00
Msc. / Msc.
Vendor Total - 5,512. 50
01418 T-Mobile
0997 32698 03 Cells 0683- 32024
Adm n E 01-01-05-02 36. 69 0. 00
Service Fees / Communicatio
Land Use E 01-03-05-02 36. 69 0. 00
Servi ce Fees / Conmunicatio
Public Works E 20-01-05-02 12. 23 0. 00
Service Fees / Conmmunicatio
CsD E 30-01-05-02 54.51 0. 00
Servi ce Fees / Conmunicatio
Vendor Total - 140. 12
01753 Town of Kittery Sewer Department
0997 32699 03 Weekly station checks 3124
Weekl y station checks E 70-15-24-10 396. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equi pnent
Weekly station checks E 70-05-24-10 396. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equi pnent
Weekl y station checks E 70-10-24-10 396. 00 0. 00
Rep. & Maint / Equi pnent
Vendor Total - 1, 188. 00




DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 13/ 2024
4:57 PM Page 4
VWarrant 90
Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
00725 TREASURER OF STATE
0997 32700 03 BW Report 2/29-3/7
BW Report G 01-2040- 00 28, 427.98 0.00
DW Regs
Vendor Tot al - 28, 427.98
00899 TREASURER OF STATE
0997 32701 03 nont hly report 2/1-2/29
nonthly report G 01-2030- 00 1, 439. 00 0.00
Moses- | F&W
Vendor Tot al - 1,439.00
00824 TREASURER, STATE MAI NE
0997 32702 03 Mont hly report 2/1-2/29
Mont hly report G 01-2010- 00 158. 00 0.00
Dog License
Vendor Total - 158. 00
01770 UNDERWOOD ENG NEERS
0997 32703 03 Water & Sewer Ext project 21389
Water & Sewer Ext project E 90-30-99-01 12, 096. 87 0. 00
Msc. / Msc
I nvoi ce Total - 12, 096. 87
0997 32703 03 Water & Sewer Ext project 21423
Water & Sewer Ext project E 90- 30-99-01 2,131.01 0. 00
Msc. / Msc.
I nvoi ce Total - 2,131.01
Vendor Total - 14, 227. 88
00906 W B. MASON COMPANY, | NC.
0997 32704 03 printer toner cart. 244464092
printer toner cart. E 01-01-20-40 68. 40 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 68. 40
0997 32704 03 Notary supply - kylie 244801646
Notary supply - kylie E 01-01-20-40 47.75 0. 00
Supplies / Dept./Ofice
I nvoi ce Total - 47.75
Vendor Tot al - 116. 15
01051 VELLS FARGO FI NANCI AL LEASI NG
0997 32705 03 Copi er 5028851028
Copi er E 07- 02-65-08 223. 66 0.00
Debt Service / Leases
Vendor Tot al - 223.66
00447 Yoga In Action
0997 32706 03 Seni or yoga 1550
Seni or yoga E 31-02-55-02 500. 00 0.00
Prog. Exp. / Contracted
Vendor Total - 500. 00



DocuSign Envelope ID: 840EDCD6-2BFF-4481-BFF2-916F3C6C9613

Eli ot A/ P Warr ant 03/ 13/ 2024
4: 57 PM Page 5
VWarrant 90

Jrnl Check Mont h I nvoi ce Description Ref er ence
Description Account Pr oj Anount Encunbr ance
Prepaid Total - 35,823.51
Current Total - 997, 934. 68
EFT Total - 0. 00
Warrant Total - 1, 033, 758. 19

WE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELI OT AUTHCORI ZE THE TOMN TREASURER

Kr i igndoul ty TO PAY THE | NVOI CES ON THLSJARRAN.

Fannen. Voo Bruce (abot Trot

04CY9TT8ABT79438 ™ DOFZ5B6435304E4

DocuSigned by:

Lﬁﬂﬁo‘é&ugm% &s@ﬁk}&@}; TI’ ott

Kichard Dowliawser Standey Sleapleinl

9TEYTEFCBET3406. .. BoSCICOTTOEF4TD™

ES5ZBUCFFFFR4U4T o7

WIlliamWdi

Fa'(fra d Donhausger J St anl ey Shapl ei gh
sL/uAﬁ\"'\ Edq o



	Eliot Select Board Agenda (2)
	Eliot Select Board Agenda and Packet March 28, 2024.pdf
	Complete_with_DocuSign_Payroll_Warrant_91_fo
	Complete_with_DocuSign_PayrollWarrant_89_03 (1)



